
CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
Parks & Recreation Department
323 Church Street
Santa Cruz, California 95060

PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION

Regular Meeting
UPDATE (12/12/2022 at 2:06 PM): Agenda Packet Includes Correspondence 

Received by 12/12/2022 for Item #4; Appeal Procedures Corrected.

December 12, 2022

4:00 PM GENERAL BUSINESS AND MATTERS OF PUBLIC INTEREST, COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS – ZOOM: HTTPS://ZOOM.US/J/93143409514

Written material for every item listed on the agenda is available for review at the Parks & Recreation 
Administrative Office, 323 Church Street, and online at www.cityofsantacruz.com.

COVID-19 ANNOUNCEMENT: This meeting will be held via teleconference ONLY.

In order to minimize exposure to COVID-19 and to comply with the social distancing suggestion, the 
Council Chambers will not be open to the public. The meeting may be viewed remotely, using any of 
the following sources:

Online at https://www.facebook.com/CityofSantaCruzParksandRecreation

PUBLIC COMMENT and ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:
If you wish to comment on general business items, please see information below. Call at the start of 
the item.

Call any of the numbers below. If one is busy, try the next one. 

               (669) 900-9128

Enter the meeting ID number: 931 4340 9514
When prompted for a Participant ID, press #.
Press *9 on your phone to “raise your hand” when the Chair calls for public comment.
It will be your turn to speak when the Secretary announces you. You will then be unmuted and the 
timer will be set. You may hang up once you have commented on your item of interest.

If you wish to speak on another item, two things may occur:
If the number of callers waiting exceeds capacity, you will be disconnected and you will need to call 
back closer to when the item you wish to comment on will be heard, or You will be placed back in 
the queue and you should press *9 to “raise your hand” when you wish to comment on a new item.

https://zoom.us/j/93143409514
http://www.cityofsantacruz.com/
https://www.facebook.com/CityofSantaCruzParksandRecreation


NOTE: If you wish to view the meeting and don’t wish to comment on an item, you can do so at any 
time via one of the methods above.

Time limits set by Commission Policy are guidelines. Unless otherwise specified, procedures for all 
items, are:
            Public comment - 3 minutes per speaker
            Maximum total time may be established by the Chair at the beginning of an agenda item

No action will be taken on items listed under Presentations, Oral Communications, Announcements, 
Information Items and Subcommittee Reports.

Appeals - Any person who believes that a final action of this advisory body has been taken in error, that decision may or may not be appealable to 
the City Council.  Appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is considered to be in 
error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  Appeals must be received by the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar days 
following the date of the action from which such appeal is being taken.  An appeal must be accompanied by a fifty dollar ($50) filing fee.

Tree Permit appeals must be received by the Parks & Recreation Department Clerk within ten (10) calendar days following the date of the action 
from which such appeal is being taken. An appeal must be accompanied by a one-hundred dollar ($100) filing fee.

Additional Information 

Visit the City’s Web Site at www.cityofsantacruz.com with links including City Advisory Body Meeting Agendas and Minutes, Advisory Body 
Information, and the Santa Cruz Municipal Code.

A copy of the full agenda, agenda reports and attachments which are included in the meeting packet, is available for review at the Parks & 
Recreation Administrative Office on Church Street no later than three (3) days prior to the meeting date. 

The City of Santa Cruz does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  Out of consideration for people with chemical sensitivities, we ask 
that you attend fragrance free.  If you wish to attend this public meeting and will require assistance, such as an interpreter for American Sign 
Language, Spanish, or other special equipment, please call the department clerk at (831) 420-5270 or e-mail prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com at 
least five (5) days in advance so that arrangements for such assistance can be accommodated.  The Cal-Relay system number: 1-800-735-2922.

Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the commission less than 72 hours before this meeting is 
available for inspection at the Parks & Recreation Administrative Office at 323 Church Street.  These writings will also be available for review at 
the Parks & Recreation Commission meeting in the Council Chambers.

Parks & Recreation Commission - 831-420-5270 – prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com.

Parks & Recreation Commission

Call to Order

Roll Call - Commissioners: Bradley Angell, Leonardo Cruz, Hollie Locatelli, Jane Mio, 
Jacob Pollock; Vice Chair Gillian Greensite, Chair Kristina Glavis.

Staff: Tony Elliot, Travis Beck, Lindsay Bass, Iseth Rae, Leslie Keedy, Brian Burguno, 
Samantha Haschert, John Barisone, Timothy Maier, and Tremain Hedden-Jones.

Presentations - (No Action Shall Be Taken)

1. Department Budget: An Overview

Review department presentation on city budget formulation, development, 
policy and procedures.

NOTE: Presentations will take place at the end of the meeting to 

http://www.cityofsantacruz.com/
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


accommodate the public hearing item.

Statements of Disqualification - Section 607 of the City Charter states that ...All 
members present at any meeting must vote unless disqualified, in which case the 
disqualification shall be publicly declared and a record thereof made. The City of Santa Cruz 
has adopted a Conflict of Interest Code, and Section 8 of that Code states that no person 
shall make or participate in a governmental decision which he or she knows or has reason to 
know will have a reasonably foreseeable material financial effect distinguishable from its 
effect on the public generally.

Oral Communications - (No Action Shall Be Taken)

Announcements - (No Action Shall Be Taken)

2. Commission and Department Updates.

Receive announcements from the following:
  1. Presiding Officer
  2. Commissioners
  3. Department Staff (written submission)
  4. Director of Parks & Recreation

Approval of Minutes

3. Approval of Minutes for the October 10, 2022, regular meeting of the Parks & 
Recreation Commission.

Approve the meeting minutes from the regular meeting of the Parks & 
Recreation Commission on October 10, 2022, as submitted.

Consent Agenda – None.

Public Hearings

4. 113, 119 Lincoln St: [CP22-0128; TR22-0201] (APNs 005-141-11, -21) – Appeal 
of the decision of the Director of Parks and Recreation to approve a Heritage 
Tree Removal Permit for removal of nine (9) Heritage Trees in conjunction 
with the Downtown Library and Affordable Housing Project (DLAHP) at a Site 
Located in the CBD/FP-O (Central Business District/Floodplain Overlay) 
Zoning Districts and on land within the Cedar Street Village subarea of the 
Downtown Area Plan. (Owner: City of Santa Cruz).

Open and continue the public hearing to a date certain (February 13, 2023) 
to all for review of the CEQA document which will provide a comprehensive 
analysis of the environmental impacts associated with proposed tree removal 
necessitated by the Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project.



Appeal Procedure:

A. Staff Report
B. Written Protests or Endorsements
C. Appellant Presentation Supporting Appeal
D. Applicant Presentation Opposing Appeal
E. Public Comment
F. Appellant Rebuttal of any New Information Presented
G. Applicant Rebuttal of any New Information Presented
H. Close Public Hearing
I. Commission Deliberation
J. Findings and Actions

General Business

5. Children's Fund Oversight Panel Appointment.

Appointment of a commission member to the newly established council 
advisory body for oversight of the children's fund.

6. Selection of a Retreat Date in January 2023.

Review future meeting calendar and schedule a date for the annual retreat.

Information Items - (No Action Shall Be Taken) – None.

Subcommittee Oral Reports – None.

Adjournment



Parks & Recreation Commission
Staff Update
December 12, 2022

Mission: 
To provide quality public spaces and experiences that build a healthy community, foster equity, and better the 
environment.

Vision:
We envision a thriving Parks & Recreation system that creates recreational and cultural opportunities, improves 
quality of life, and strengthens the health of the local environment and economy for all.

Values: Communication, Openness, Service, Collaboration
The parks and recreation department is essential to the community. To that end, we commit to:

 transparent and honest communication as the foundation of great relationships.
 a spirit of equity, openness and innovation, welcoming differences and diversity.
 service to the community in a manner that is sustainable, safe, responsive and accessible to all. 
 collaboration to achieve results that reflect our department vision, leveraging the strengths of the 

community.

Recreation Division Update

Highlight #1: Santa Cruz Civic Auditorium continues to have a busy Winter Season.

The Civic Auditorium is having a busy Winter season with more bookings/events than a normal pre-
pandemic winter. In the last two weeks alone, three events have kept the streamlined staffing team on 
its toes: the 66th annual Dad’s Club basketball tournament featured eight different high school teams 
from the Bay Area; the Dancenter Winter Showcase attracted more than 500 attendees; and finally, 
Santa Cruz Ballet Theatre’s annual Nutcracker performance had four performances over the December 
10th weekend drawing 2,400 attendees. Hats off to the staff for their energy and professionalism in 
loading equipment into the venue for each event, providing quality front and back of house experiences 
to patrons and promoters, and then loading equipment out to begin the cycle again!

Highlight #2: P&R Participated in the Downtown Holiday Parade for the first time since 2019.

The Department’s Recreation Team along with the Santa Cruz Junior Guard Booster Club entered floats 
in the Downtown Holiday Parade held on Saturday, December 3. A vintage VW bus was the feature of 
one float accompanied by a very energetic grinch! Over 50 Junior and Little Guards joined the 
celebratory parade despite it being a rainy morning. Several hundred members of the public lined up 
along Pacific Avenue to watch the entire parade!

Parks Division Update

HIGHLIGHT #1: San Lorenzo Park Redesign

The Parks & Recreation Department has hired Bionic Landscape of San Francisco to lead a conceptual 
redesign process for San Lorenzo Park. With the closure of the Benchlands encampment and this 
winter’s restoration of San Lorenzo Park, this project will set the stage for future use and development 
of the park. The process will involve extensive community outreach and public discussion of the desired 

Commission and Department Updates.

2.1



vision for the park, beginning in the new year. The consultants will ultimately deliver a conceptual 
master plan for the park that identifies the desired uses for this park in the coming decades and how 
they can fit together in a cohesive design. Bionic Landscape has considerable experience designing 
public spaces and waterfront areas throughout the Bay Area.

HIGHLIGHT #2: Friendship Garden cleanup
The City’s Homelessness Response Team identified Friendship Garden and adjacent natural areas as the 
focus of our first major encampment abatement effort following the San Lorenzo Park Benchlands 
Restoration Project. Campers in this area had damaged park facilities, disturbed reserved events, 
harassed Parks staff, and left considerable garbage. With support from the Homelessness Response 
team, Police Department, and Public Works staff, Parks staff led a major weeklong cleanup, removing 
over 60 cubic yards of garbage from the area. Nine campers accepted the City’s offer of shelter and 
moved to the Overlook program at the Armory.

HIGHLIGHT #4: West Cliff Restoration and other projects
The Parks & Recreation Department has completed three landscape improvement projects along West 
Cliff this fall. In coordination with Public Works’ West Cliff Storm Damage Repair project at the far end of 
the West Cliff path, the Department hired Confluence Restoration to remove existing ice plant and 
install native coastal bluff plants that support native fauna, including the monarch butterflies that 
overwinter at Natural Bridges State Park. At Lighthouse Point, K&D Landscaping installed new turfgrass 
sod on the east side of the Lighthouse. This has been a challenging area to maintain turf in and we are 
hopeful that the new installation will succeed. At a landscape bed south of the Cowell surf access stairs, 
Department staff designed and installed a new planting that is designed to increase the attractiveness of 
the area while keeping the focus on the broader setting.

Administrative Division Updates

HIGHLIGHT #1: FY2024 Budget Development Timeline
The FY2024 budget process is getting underway and will officially kick-off in January for internal city 
staff. The following process timeline includes high-level internal city budget milestones, as well as City 
Council and Commission meetings that will include FY2024 budget-related items. 

2.2



The Finance Director has outlined three broad guiding principles for budget development: 1) Fiscal 
Responsibility; 2) High Service Levels; and 3) Transparency. Along with these principles, the following 
goals for future fiscal planning were shared:

 Services must align with the budget
 Fiscal policy requires reserves of two months budgeted expenditures (or approximately $20M)
 Fiscal Sustainability requires new revenues

HIGHLIGHT #2: Administrative Staffing Changes
After eliminating the Special Event Coordinator position at the height of the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
department secured support and approval in the FY2023 budget to bring back the position. We are 
happy to welcome aboard our new special event (permit) coordinator, Mike Murray. With a long history 
of producing events in Santa Cruz, Mike comes from the Seaside Company, where he managed event 
sales, branding strategies and bookings. In addition, Mike has a background in public relations 
management and has been a champion of continuous improvement of customer experience. As the new 
Special Event Coordinator, he will lead the permitting of all events in the city, inclusive of major and 
minor public special events, film permits, neighborhood block parties and major park facility rental 
reservations.

Other FY2023 approved changes to the Administrative team have also been implemented with Betsy 
Powers assuming a half-time Administrative Assistant III role, which will allow her to provide higher level 
support to the department management team as well as serve in a leadership capacity for our frontline 
administrative services. Further, Corinna Harrison will depart her Accounting Assistant role to assume 
new Administrative Assistant II duties. This adjustment creates greater equity within the administrative 
frontline team and adds more flexibility to how work assignments are shared. Many congratulations to 
our new and existing staff as they settle into their new roles!

2.3



CITY OF SANTA CRUZ
Parks & Recreation Department
323 Church Street
Santa Cruz, California 95060

PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION

Regular Meeting Minutes - DRAFT

October 10, 2022

4:00 PM GENERAL BUSINESS AND MATTERS OF PUBLIC INTEREST, COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS – ZOOM: HTTPS://ZOOM.US/J/93143409514

Parks & Recreation Commission

Call to Order – 4:02 PM

Roll Call - Commissioners: Bradley Angell, Leonardo Cruz, Gillian Greensite, Hollie 
Locatelli, Jane Mio, Jacob Pollock; Vice Chair Kristina Glavis.

Staff: Tony Elliot, Travis Beck, Lindsay Bass, Iseth Rae, Leslie Keedy and Tremain 
Hedden-Jones.

Presentations – None.

Statements of Disqualification -  None.

Oral Communications

Vice Chair K. Glavis opened oral communications to the public at 4:06 PM.

The following members of the public spoke:

None.

Announcements

1. Commission and Department Updates.

Item heard at 4:07 PM.

Approval of Minutes for the October 10, 2022, regular...

3.1

https://zoom.us/j/93143409514


1. Presiding Officer
a. Vice Chair K. Glavis welcomed new commissioner Leonardo Cruz, 

resident of the city of Santa Cruz; works for City of Watsonville 
(public works); originally from Mexico City.

b. Announced that Children’s fund (Item 3) will be pulled for 
commission comments and deliberation.

2. Commissioners
a. No announcements.

3. Department Staff
a. No announcements

4. Director of Parks & Recreation
a. Director T. Elliot commented on closure of zones in San Lorenzo 

Park benchlands; commented on other encampments in the parks 
system; illegal camps can be reported at 
cityofsantacruz.com/crps. 

Approval of Minutes

2. Approval of Minutes for the August 8, 2022, regular meeting of the Parks & 
Recreation Commission.

Vice Chair K. Glavis opened item at 4:26 PM and asked for any corrections.

MOTION: Commissioner H. Locatelli, seconded by Commissioner G. 
Greensite, moved to approve the meeting minutes from August 8, 2022, with 
a correction to list Commissioner B. Angell in the record.

ACTION: The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES: Angell, Cruz, Greensite, Locatelli, Mio, and Pollock; 
Vice-Chair Glavis

NOES: None.
ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None. 

Consent Agenda – None.

Public Hearings – None.

General Business

3.2



3. Election of Officers.

Vice Chair K. Glavis opened the item at 4:29 PM.

Secretary T. Hedden-Jones commented on the election procedure.

The secretary asked for nominations for the position of chair. The following 
member(s) were nominated:

Kristina Glavis

MOTION: Commissioner H. Locatelli, seconded by Commissioner B. Angell, 
moved to close the nominations for the position of chair.

ACTION: The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES: Angell, Cruz, Greensite, Locatelli, Mio, and Pollock; 
Vice-Chair Glavis

NOES: None.
ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.

Commissioner K. Glavis received the following votes for the position of 
chair:

VOTES: Unanimous.

Chair K. Glavis opened the election of vice chair at 4:33 PM.

The secretary asked for nominations for the position of chair. The following 
member(s) were nominated:

Gillian Greensite

MOTION: Commissioner H. Locatelli, seconded by Commissioner J. Pollock, 
moved to close the nominations for the position of vice chair.

ACTION: The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES: Angell, Cruz, Greensite, Locatelli, Mio, and Pollock; 
Chair Glavis

NOES: None.
ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.

3.3



Commissioner G. Greensite received the following votes for the position of 
chair:

VOTES: Unanimous. 

4. Acceptance of a License Agreement and Use of Park Facilities Tax Funds for 
Pickleball Court Improvements at University of California, Santa Cruz’s Court 
Facility at 2300 Delaware Avenue.

Chair K. Glavis introduced the item at 4:36 PM.

Planner N. Downing provided background on the development of pickle ball 
in Santa Cruz.

Commissioners asked about to play for both pickleball and tennis.

Chair K. Glavis opened to the public for comment at 5:03 PM.

The following members of the public spoke (38 in attendance):

Joan Fierry (sp?)
Thad Nodine
Melissa
Jenny Nixen
Tony Sloss
Maia Zohara
***-4678 (Kathryn Mintz)
***-5164 (Mark Dettle)
Kate Roberts
***-0473 (Dave Allenbaugh)

Returned to commissioner deliberation at 5:28 PM.

Commissioners deliberated and provided comments on the item. 

MOTION: Vice Chair G. Greensite, seconded by Commissioner J. Mio, moved 
to recommend the City Council authorize a license agreement with the 
University of California, Santa Cruz for pickleball courts at 2300 Delaware 
Avenue and appropriate funds for the project.

ACTION: The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES: Angell, Cruz, Locatelli, Mio, and Pollock; 
Vice-Chair Greensite, Chair Glavis

NOES: None.

3.4



ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.

MOTION: Vice Chair Greensite, seconded by Commissioner J. Pollock, moved 
to extend the meeting end time by 30 minutes.

5. Heritage Tree Mitigation Requirements Update.

Chair K. Glavis opened the item at 5:42 PM.

Superintendent T. Beck introduced item to the commission; provided 
background on tree in-lieu fees.

Commissioners asked about fees for heritage trees.

Chair K. Glavis opened the item for public comment at 6:11 PM.

The following members of the public spoke:

None.

Commissioners deliberated on fees for replacing unapproved street trees.

MOTION: Commissioner J. Pollock, seconded by Vice Chair G. Greensite, 
moved to 1) approve the proposed heritage tree mitigation requirements; 
and 2) recommend City Council adopt a resolution governing those 
requirements with newly calculated fees; and 3) base the calculated 
maintenance fee amount on five (5) years instead of two (2) years; and 3) 
double the fees for unapproved removals of heritage trees and heritage 
shrubs.

FRIENDLY AMENDMENT: to 1) remove the five (5) year maintenance fee 
calculation for approved tree permits; and 2) keep in place the higher fee 
calculation for unapproved heritage tree and heritage shrub removals. 
Accepted. 

ACTION: The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES: Angell, Cruz, Mio, and Pollock;
Vice-Chair Greensite, Chair Glavis

NOES: Locatelli.
ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.

Information Items

3.5



6. Children’s Fund and Bill of Rights - Updates

NOTE: Item tabled to a future meeting.

Subcommittee Oral Reports – None.

Adjournment – 6:41 PM

3.6



Parks & Recreation Commission
AGENDA REPORT

DATE: 12/05/2022

AGENDA OF: 12/12/2022

DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation

SUBJECT: 113, 119 Lincoln St: [CP22-0128; TR22-0201] (APNs 005-141-11, -21) – 
Appeal of the decision of the Director of Parks and Recreation to approve a 
Heritage Tree Removal Permit for removal of nine (9) Heritage Trees in 
conjunction with the Downtown Library and Affordable Housing Project 
(DLAHP) at a Site Located in the CBD/FP-O (Central Business 
District/Floodplain Overlay) Zoning Districts and on land within the Cedar 
Street Village subarea of the Downtown Area Plan. (Owner: City of Santa 
Cruz).

RECOMMENDATION:  Open and continue the public hearing to a date certain (February 13, 
2023) to all for review of the CEQA document which will provide a comprehensive analysis of 
the environmental impacts associated with proposed tree removal necessitated by the Downtown 
Library Affordable Housing Project.

BACKGROUND:  On October 12, 2022, an application for Heritage Tree Removal Permit was 
submitted to the Director of Parks and Recreation in conjunction with proposed development of 
the Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project (DLAHP).  The application proposes 
removal of nine non-native trees of Heritage size, defined by the City of Santa Cruz Municipal 
Code Section 9.56 as any tree whose trunk measures 44 inches or larger in diameter at a height 
of 54” or greater above underlying ground. 

The proposed DLAHP, encompasses construction of a new, approximately 273,194 square-foot, 
eight-story building and associated site improvements in the Cedar Street Village subarea of land 
within the Downtown Area Plan. The approximately 1.55-acre project site is situated at the 
southeast corner of Lincoln Street and Cedar Street, spanning the full block from Lincoln Street 
southward to Cathcart Street. The building comprises a new, approximately 38,000 sq. ft. City 
library; parking structure with 243 parking spaces; 100% affordable housing component 
containing approximately 124 residential units; approximately 10,000 sq. ft. commercial tenant 
space; 1,800-2,500 sq. ft. commercial childcare facility; new roof deck(s); and associated site 
improvements.  

As proposed, the footprint of the new building would occupy nearly the entire project site and 
would replace all existing features on the subject lot.  With an emphasis on efficient utilization of 
space and integration of a variety of uses achieving the City Council’s directive for construction 
of a project including a new downtown library, affordable residential housing with 100 to 125 
dwelling units, parking facility with up to 400 parking spaces, commercial childcare component, 

Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St:...

4.1



and commercial tenant space, the mixed-use project would require demolition of the existing 
commercial building located at 113 Lincoln St. and existing surface parking lot on each of the 
two (2) existing parcels composing the project site, and would necessitate removal of all trees 
within the bounds of the properties at 113 Lincoln St. and 119 Lincoln St.  

A Heritage Tree Removal Permit is required for removal of any trees of Heritage size per 
Municipal Code Section 9.56.060(a), which states

 No person shall prune, trim, cut off, or perform any work, on a single occasion or 
cumulatively, over a three-year period, affecting twenty-five percent or more of the 
crown of any heritage tree or heritage shrub without first obtaining a permit pursuant to 
this section. No person shall root prune, relocate, or remove any heritage tree or heritage 
shrub without first obtaining a permit pursuant to this section.

A Heritage Tree Removal Permit constitutes a discretionary permit reviewed through a process 
in parallel with, the application for other entitlements for any project. The City’s Municipal 
Code, including Chapter 9.56, Preservation of Heritage Trees and Heritage Shrubs (“Heritage 
Tree Ordinance”), contains no requirement for approval of land-use permits prior to, or 
concurrent with, granting of entitlement for a Heritage Tree Removal Permit associated with a 
project.  In the case of the DLAHP, other entitlements include a Nonresidential Demolition 
Authorization Permit, Special Use Permit, Design Permit, and Lot-Line Adjustment\ established 
in Title 24, Zoning, of the Municipal Code and which must be reviewed for recommendation by 
the Planning Commission and heard for a final decision by the City Council.  An appeal of a 
Heritage Removal Permit, as presently considered, is regulated by Section 9.56.070, Right of 
Appeal.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 9.56, Preservation of Heritage Trees and Heritage Shrubs, 
an application for Heritage Tree Removal Permit was submitted on October 12, 2022, by 
applicant Jim Rendler of For the Future Housing, Inc.  As required by Code Section 9.56.100 and 
code section 9.56.060(f), payment of a tree replanting mitigation bond was provided by the 
applicant, which would accommodate installation of a minimum of nine, 24-inch box-sized 
replacement trees as street trees along the perimeter of the project area.  Additionally, the 
landscape plan submitted in support of the DLAHP would integrate 13 City Street trees, adding 
further to the stock of trees replaced in conjunction with the proposed project.

In support of the application, an arborist report dated January 18, 2022, was prepared by 
International Society of Arboriculture (ISA)-Certified arborist Torrey Young of Dryad, LLC in 
accordance with Municipal Code Section 9.56.060(f). 

Subsequently, an addendum, dated September 9, 2022, was submitted by the same arborist, 
clarifying findings and recommendations included in the original arborist report dated January 
18, 2022, which are further described below.

On October 18, 2022, City Urban Forester Leslie Keedy tentatively approved a Heritage Tree 
Removal Permit allowing removal of nine Heritage Trees, making the required findings in 
accordance with Municipal Code Section 9.56.060(e).  On October 27, 2022, an appeal of the 
Heritage Tree Removal Permit was submitted by Pauline M. Seales and is the subject of the 
present hearing
 

4.2



DISCUSSION:
Heritage Tree Removal Permit
On October 18, 2022, approval of a Heritage Tree Removal Permit was tentatively granted by 
the Director of Parks and Recreation for removal of nine Heritage Trees in conjunction with the 
proposed redevelopment of 113 and 119 Lincoln Street to accommodate the Downtown Library 
and Affordable Housing Project.  In support of the application, an arborist report dated January 
18, 2022, was prepared and submitted by Registered Consulting Arborist Torrey Young of 
Dryad, LLC.  The arborist report includes a discussion of site observations of the health and 
vitality of each of twelve trees, including recommendations for retention or removal.  The 
arborist report serves as a baseline assessment of the status of trees contained on the subject site, 
based on physical inspection and evaluation, inventory, measurement, photography, and tagging, 
and includes a determination of the viability of relocation of any trees assessed.

Arborist Report and Addendum
As identified in the arborist report, nine of the twelve trees are characterized as Heritage-sized 
trees.  All twelve trees represent exotic (non-native) varieties, each tree displaying an array of 
adverse health conditions.  Detrimental conditions observed include restricted growing areas; 
severe pruning; structural weaknesses and evidence of past failures; limb and stem decay; and 
the presence of buried root collars, which may disguise root disease and resulting decay.

The arborist report specifies four Heritage-size trees as worthy of preservation, including one 
such specimen as viable for relocation, with the remaining three  trees of questionable potential 
for long-term viability, the success of which would require implementation of a range of 
measures, including physical modifications to the project site.  The report relays that, as the 
subject trees grow, existing detrimental conditions will worsen, with retention of any existing 
trees ill-advised absent extensive design accommodations to enhance their growing conditions 
and reduce risk of structural failure which may result in injury to members of the public or 
damage to property.  The report additionally incorporates recommendations, including, among 
others, removal and replacement of all existing trees.  It should be noted that the project includes 
replacement, at a ratio 1:1, the nine heritage trees proposed to be removed, with each 
replacement tree a minimum of 24-inch box-size, as well as placement of additional trees and 
foliage per an approved landscape plan associated with the Downtown Library Affordable 
Housing Project, assuming future project entitlement.

An addendum to the original arborist report, dated September 9, 2022, was additionally prepared 
by Dryad, LLC in order to clarify the viability for retention and relocation of existing trees in 
light of the proposed development of the DLAHP based on a review of the plans and documents 
submitted for that project.  The addendum underscores the findings and recommendations of the 
original report and clarifies that only one Heritage-sized tree constitutes a candidate for 
relocation, stipulating that the likelihood for success of such relocation can be assessed only 
through an evaluation of the tree’s root system requiring removal of existing hardscape, which 
falls outside the purview of an arborist report.  The addendum describes the low likelihood for 
long-term health of any relocated tree and highlights the significance of a tree’s existing vitality 
in determining the success of transplantation off-site.  
Evaluation by City Urban Forester/Arborist
The City’s Urban Forester concurs with the findings contained in the arborist report and 
subsequent addendum and, anticipates that relocation of any existing trees from the project site 
to a nearby location would incur practical difficulties and high costs associated with minimal 
available land area and related to the complex nature of existing downtown infrastructure, which 

4.3



includes many potential limitations including the presence of on-street parking and narrow 
intersections, and the prevalence of existing utilities such as low wires and service drops.  
Further, no City land within the downtown area can feasibly accommodate relocation of trees of 
the number and size considered.

Tentative approval of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit for the removal of nine Heritage Trees 
was granted on October 18, 2022.  In accordance with Municipal Code Section 9.56.060(h), the 
permits “shall be conspicuously posted near the subject(s) of the permit.”  Accordingly, each of 
the nine Heritage Trees proposed for removal was posted with a conspicuous notice, placed by 
the City’s Urban Forester, each displaying a Notice of Action effective from October 18, 2022, 
to October 31, 2022 at 5:00 PM.  The placed notices clearly stated that proposed tree removal 
would remain contingent upon the certification of the election results of Measure O, as well as 
the rendering of a decision by the City Council regarding entitlement of the Downtown Library 
and Affordable Housing Project, and the issuance of Building Permit(s) for the same project.  As 
stated in the permit postings, no tree removal would be allowed to take place prior to issuance of 
Building permit for the DLAHP, should entitlements for that project be granted by the City 
Council, and all necessary funding to finance the project be obtained.

Appeal
Following tentative approval of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit, on October 27, 2022, an 
appeal was filed by Pauline M. Seales.  In submitting the appeal, the appellant states the 
following:

“This appeal is based on City Council Resolution, Criteria and Standards, Exhibit A, 
specifically, 

A heritage tree shall only be removed if:
(c)(3) A construction project design cannot be altered to accommodate existing 
heritage trees.  

No evidence is presented that the project design cannot be altered.

Health of Existing Trees
Twelve total trees are proposed to be removed in connection with the Downtown Library 
Affordable Housing Project.  Of the twelve, six existing trees, in varying states of vigor as 
detailed in the submitted arborist report and addendum, are situated in the middle of the subject 
lot.  Two trees located at the site’s perimeter currently demonstrate very poor health, and 
retention of the remaining four trees cannot be accommodated to achieve the project goals and 
objectives of the DLAHP, as directed by the City Council, without significant root loss and 
impacts leading to further decline or destabilization of those trees. 

Response to Appeal
On June 23, 2020, the City Council adopted a resolution to approve in concept and make the 
recommendation for staff to proceed with a mixed-use downtown library project including 
relocation of the existing downtown library; inclusion of an affordable housing project 
containing a minimum of 50 low-income dwelling units; integration of a parking garage with no 
more than 400 parking spaces, which will provide vehicular parking for patrons and employees 
of the project and  residents and guests of the proposed housing units, and furnish replacement 
public parking  to offset the loss of parking capacity associated with recent and anticipated future 

4.4



development in the downtown area; and limitation of the total height of the building not to 
exceed the height of the University Town Center development or, if infeasible, the development 
at 1010 Pacific Avenue. 

Following the June 23, 2022 meeting of the City Council, the Council and staff engaged the 
community in an extensive public outreach process, including six stakeholders' meetings and two 
public community workshops.  Such outreach efforts produced a diversity of feedback which 
collectively informed programming actions and recommendations for revisions to project design.  
Subsequent to such community engagement, the City Council took action to update the stated 
objectives of the Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project.  By a vote of 6-1, the Council 
adopted a resolution, establishing revised project priorities, including an increase in the number 
of affordable housing units from a minimum of 50 to a minimum range of 100 to 125 units; 
reduction of the parking count from 400 to 310 parking stalls; expansion of the scope program to 
incorporate an onsite daycare facility; effectuation of design changes to include a two-story 
library facing Cedar and Lincoln Streets with a green roof and adjacent roof deck and other 
design elements as presented by the Master Library Architect; and direction of staff to return to 
Council with a preliminary cost model based on the updated Library design and site program 
changes (including the library, commercial tenant space, and childcare use). At the same hearing, 
the Council directed staff to bring back a preliminary cost model which includes sources and 
uses of funds, including, but not limited to, Measure S funding. 
 
In response to the contention which forms the basis of the appeal of staff’s decision to approve 
the Heritage Tree Removal Permit, it is notable that retention of most of the existing Heritage-
sized trees would physically preclude placement of enclosed area in the locations occupied by 
trees, thereby requiring design of a building with a footprint limited to the perimeter of the 
subject site, where removal of some Heritage-sized trees would still prove a necessity.  
Moreover, given the limited size of the lot and constraints inherent to its dimensions in relation 
to the project objectives, no reasonable alteration of the proposed site plan that would allow for 
preservation of all Heritage Trees at the subject site while simultaneously affording attainment of 
the DLAHP’s objectives for development of a mixed-use library project integrating 124-unit 
affordable housing development, as envisioned, can be achieved.  Reasonable development of 
the subject site of a scale and of any conceivable project design capable of achieving the City 
Council’s stated objectives for the DLAHP project necessitates removal of trees at the subject 
site.  

The applicant has provided information regarding the design of the Downtown Library 
Affordable Housing Project as submitted for CP22-0128 (the formal application for the 
DLAHP).  The two attached memoranda (Exhibit 6 and Exhibit 7) prepared by For the Future 
Housing, applicant for the DLAHP, and Jayson Architecture, architect for the library component 
of the DLAHP, respectively, contain detailed evaluations explaining why the design of the 
project cannot be altered to accommodate the existing Heritage trees on the project site.  

As stated in the attached memoranda, programming requirements of the DLAHP necessitate a 
total building area of 273,194 square feet, while the land area bounded by the project site 
contains 66,921 square feet.  Provision of access to adjacent properties through retention and 
improvement of an alley on the east side of the parcel requires reservation of some land, which 
reduces the site’s usable area to 60,381 square feet.  Placement of stormwater and landscape 

4.5



infrastructure further winnows the buildable area to 58,441 square feet.  Configuration of 
required building elements of the DLAHP (including library, housing, and parking, among 
others), requires design for minimum building dimensions affording basic functionality of the 
various program elements (i.e., book stacks for the library, unit corridors and windows for the 
housing, parking spaces and drive aisles for the parking, and the like). Any narrowing of the 
building or removal of portions of the project to accommodate existing Heritage Trees would 
jeopardize required building layouts and nullify basic operations of the project’s uses as directed 
by the City Council.  The project design, as proposed, maximizes efficiency of space utilization, 
and both the constrained area of the lot, in combination with limitations inherent to existing site 
dimensions, provide no opportunity for discovery of additional building area on the site.  
Restrictions to the building’s height imposed by the City’s Downtown Plan further limit the 
buildable space available for elements of the project, including the library, parking facility, 
childcare use, and commercial component, precluding options for alternative designs which 
would allow for preservation of existing trees.  

Further, should the Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project receive entitlements, it can 
be reasonably expected that project construction will involve major site disturbance required to 
support the building’s foundation and associated improvements.  Preservation of existing trees 
would almost certainly require maintenance of open area beyond the land covered by existing 
tree canopies.  As stated above, achievement of project goals established by the City Council 
provide no opportunity for use of land not already proposed to be occupied by the project.  As 
reinforced by the attached memorandum, For the Future Housing, as project applicant, and 
Jayson Architecture, as the Library Master Architect, have evaluated impacts to the library 
associated with the on-site locations of Heritage Trees and have determined that the project 
design cannot be altered to both accommodate such existing trees and simultaneously continue to 
fulfill the requirements of the project as established by the City Council.  As expounded in the 
attached memorandum, the architect has concluded that, should Heritage Trees remain, the 
library would necessarily be diminished to a size no longer adequate to serve as the central 
branch of the Santa Cruz Public Libraries, thereby invalidating a key goal of the overall 
Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project. Pursuit of alternative designs avoiding tree 
removal would also require modifications to the DLAHP, yielding adverse consequences to 
aspects of project design of likely concern to the community, such as increased bulk and visible 
mass of the building, effecting impacts to views and loss of sunlight exposure to neighboring 
properties.  Redesign of the project to preserve existing trees may also prompt relocation of 
project components underground, thus minimizing the availability of natural light to the 
building's interior; diminish ready access to the library, parking, and other components; and 
eliminate desirable features, such as the proposed rooftop deck and expansive exterior glazing, as 
well as mandatory facilities, such as outdoor uncovered childcare space.  Finally, retooling of the 
project to avoid loss of on-site trees would, by default, result in a haphazard project design 
lacking in unified exterior presentation and logical interior floor plan.  Achievement of program 
requirements as confirmed by the City Council on a lot confined to the constructable areas, 
compels design of the DLAHP to maximize density and height, rendering preservation of 
existing trees on-site a practical impossibility.   

FINDINGS
Pursuant to City Council Resolution No. NS-23,710, removal of Heritage-sized trees may be 
permitted continent upon the Director of Parks and Recreation’s making one or more of the 
following findings: 

4.6



1) the heritage trees have, or are likely to have, an adverse effect on the structural 
integrity of a building, utility, or public/private right-of-way; 

2) the physical condition or health of the trees warrants removal; or
3) construction of project design cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage 

trees.

Should one or more of the above criteria be satisfied, existing heritage trees at the project site 
may be removed in conformance with the standards for tree replacement set forth by City 
Resolution No. NS-30,072, which requires replanting of three, 15-gallon trees or one, 24-inch 
size specimen; or through payment of the equivalent current retail value to be determined by the 
Director of Parks and Recreation.  The applicant has deposited a bond in the amount of 
$2,250.00 to ensure that a minimum of nine, 24-inch box-sized replacement trees will be planted 
on-site near the perimeter of the proposed building.

Minimally two of the criteria of Resolution No. NS-23,710 can clearly be demonstrated to have 
been met.  The submitted arborist report, supported by its addendum, confirms that all subject 
trees exhibit various states of decline, with only a handful serving as potential candidates for 
retention or relocation, and, even then, only through extensive intervention, addressing the 
physical health criterion of Resolution No. NS-23,710. Per the submitted arborist report, two of 
the trees on-site exhibit severe decline, six existing trees are situated in the approximate center of 
the subject lot, and a further four would suffer from significant impacts associated with project 
construction or may become destabilized.  Of the twelve total, nine constitute Heritage Trees as 
defined in the Municipal Code.  Maintaining the trees in their current form would severely 
restrict the area of the library, and possibly preclude construction of both the library and 
residential building entirely, and would prevent fulfillment of the project objectives previously 
recommended by the City’s Downtown Commission and Planning Commission and as 
confirmed by the City Council, including creation of a mixed-use project featuring a flagship 
downtown central branch library, additional affordable housing stock, integrated commercial 
tenant space, community-serving commercial childcare use, and public parking capacity to serve 
the proposed use and to address loss or parking capacity prompted by downtown development. It 
is noteworthy that the City Council resolution adopted December 14, 2021 was borne of an 
extensive public outreach process, including a series of community meetings as described in 
Attachment 6, collectively contributing to the evolution, and currently proposed design, of the 
project. 

Given the limited size of the lot and constraints inherent to its dimensions, as supported by the 
narratives included in the memoranda by the project architects, with which City staff concur, no 
reasonable alteration of the proposed site plan would allow retention of the trees while 
simultaneously achieving the Project's objectives of creating a mixed-use development inclusive 
of a  library and 124-units of affordable housing, thus, obviating the necessity for removal of 
such trees, addressing the third criterion of Resolution No. NS-23,710 above.  

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)
Appeal of any Heritage Tree Removal Permit constitutes a quasi-judicial (discretionary) 
application, subject to review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  
Proposed tree removal alone (i.e., not submitted in conjunction with the DLAHP) remains 
categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

4.7



pursuant to CEQA Section 15304 (Class 4) related to “minor public or private alterations in the 
condition of land, water, and/or vegetation which do not involve removal of healthy, mature, 
scenic trees except for forestry or agricultural purposes.”  As proposed, removal of nine 
Heritage-sized trees would result in no significant environmental impacts at the project site.  
Planting of replacement trees as recommended in the arborist report is required; per City Council 
Resolution No. NS-30,072, replacement trees are required to be installed in a ratio of three 15-
gallon trees or one, 24-inch box-sized tree for each Heritage-sized tree removed.  A bond for 
purchase and planting of a total of nine, 24-inch box-sized replacement trees has been paid by 
the applicant, and additional trees, shrubs, and associated vegetation will be provided in 
accordance with an approved landscape plan, should the Downtown Library Affordable Housing 
Project be entitled.

As the subject Heritage Tree Removal Permit application has been submitted in conjunction with 
the proposed DLAHP project, the application for Heritage Tree Removal Permit may also be 
contemplated in light of the overall DLAHP.  An in-depth analysis of environmental impacts 
associated with the DLAHP, including potential environmental effects associated with proposed 
tree removal, has not yet been finalized; preparation of said analysis is anticipated to be complete 
by mid-January 2023. To provide the Parks and Recreation Commission with a comprehensive 
assessment of the impacts of proposed tree removal in connection with the proposed Downtown 
Library Affordable Housing Project, staff recommends that the Commission defer hearing of the 
subject appeal until a date certain, namely, the next scheduled hearing scheduled to be held on 
February 13, 2023, by which time the aforementioned analysis under CEQA is expected to have 
been completed. 

For the Commission’s consideration, conditions of approval, attached as Exhibit A, have been 
prepared for potential future action by the Commission in rendering of a decision in response to 
the submitted appeal, which is the subject of this hearing.  A condition of approval states that 
exercise of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit would remain contingent upon simultaneous or 
subsequent approval of the land use permit application for the DLAHP.  That is, as stated in the 
condition of approval, no tree removal may take place prior to issuance of Building permit for 
the DLAHP, should entitlements for that project be granted by the City Council.

Health in All Policies (HiAP)

HiAP is a collaborative approach to improving the health of all people by incorporating health 
considerations into decision-making across sectors and policy areas.  HiAP is based on 3 pillars: 
equity, public health, and sustainability. The goal of HiAP is to ensure that all decision-makers 
are informed about the health, equity, and sustainability impacts of various policy options during 
the policy development process. The Heritage Tree Removal Permit supports the pillar of equity 
by facilitating the review of the DLAHP, which integrates affordable housing units on a site in 
an area that is improved with sidewalks and new street trees providing replacement canopy, and 
that lies in close proximity to public transportation, commercial goods and services, and 
recreational areas. The development of residential units in this central location encourages a 
sustainable and healthy lifestyle by promoting alternative forms of transportation. Therefore, the 
project is considered to be consistent with the three pillars of the HiAP and is recommended as 
an efficient use of the land. 

SUMMARY

4.8



An appeal of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit approved for 113 and 119 Lincoln Street has 
been submitted based on the contention that no evidence has been presented that alternative 
designs were considered of the proposed Downtown Library and Affordable Housing Project that 
would avoid removal of the existing trees on-site.  Any project of a reasonable design 
accommodating the number of residential units, size of library, integration of childcare and 
commercial components, and the volume of parking capacity per the directive of the City 
Council, would necessitate development of the majority of land area bounded by the project site, 
including construction activity and site disturbance preluding adequate protection of trees’ root 
systems, therefore requiring removal of the existing trees.   Staff have made the findings 
necessary to support a Heritage Tree Removal Permit in conformance with City Council 
Resolution No. NS-23,710 and No. Resolution NS-30,072.  Nevertheless, as the Heritage Tree 
Permit application for which an appeal has been filed, has been submitted in conjunction with the 
Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project whose environmental analysis remains 
forthcoming, it is recommended that the Parks and Recreation Commission continue the hearing 
related to the submitted appeal pending completion of  the CEQA document which will provide a 
comprehensive analysis of the environmental impacts associated with proposed tree removal 
necessitated by the Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Parks and Recreation Commission open the public hearing and 
continue the hearing to a date certain, namely February 13, 2023, at which time a full analysis of 
the potential environmental impacts associated with proposed tree removal as part of the 
Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project is anticipated to have been prepared, and that the 
Commission consider for future potential action the Conditions of Approval attached as Exhibit 
“A”.  Staff additionally recommends that the Commission accept testimony from members of the 
public who will not be available to testify at the continued hearing on February 13, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable.

Prepared By:
Timothy Maier, Senior 

Planner
Leslie Keedy, Urban Forester

Submitted By:
Samantha Haschert
Principal Planner

Approved By:
Tony Elliot

Director of Parks and 
Recreation

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Conditions of Approval 
2. Application of Appeal of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit by Pauline M. Seales, dated 

October 27, 2022
3. Appellant Supplemental Information and Statement
4. Tree Survey & Preliminary Impact Assessment (Arborist Report) dated January 18, 2022, 

prepared by Dryad, LLC
5. Addendum to the Arborist Report dated September 9, 2022, by Dryad, LLC 
6. Memorandum of For the Future Housing regarding impacts to the DLAHP associated 

with retention of existing trees at the project site
7. Memorandum of Jayson Architecture regarding impacts to the DLAHP associated with 

retention of existing trees at the project site
8. Notice of Action (Posting) Tentatively Approving the Heritage Tree Permit
9. Heritage Tree Permit Application Submitted by City date 10/12/2022
10. Proof of Tree Mitigation Bond Submittal

4.9



11. Resolution No. NS-23,710
12. Resolution No. NS-30,072
13. Notice of Public Hearing
14. Correspondence received as of 12/07/2022

4.10



EXHIBIT "A"

FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION –
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE PROJECT ON PROPERTY AT

113, 119 Lincoln St. – TR22-0201 (in conjunction with CP22-0128)
Heritage Tree Removal Permit for removal of nine (9) Heritage Trees in conjunction with 
the Downtown Library and Affordable Housing Project (DLAHP) at a Site Located in the 
CBD/FP-O (Central Business District/Floodplain Overlay) Zoning Districts and on land 

within the Cedar Street Village subarea of the Downtown Area Plan.

1. If one or more of the following conditions is not met with respect to all its terms, then this 
approval may be revoked.

2. All plans for future modification to the project site which are not covered by this review shall 
be submitted to the City Council for review and approval.

3. This permit shall be exercised within three (3) years of the date of final approval or it shall 
become null and void.  

4. The use shall meet the standards and shall be developed within limits established by Chapter 
24.14 of the Santa Cruz Municipal Code as to the emission of noise, odor, smoke, dust, 
vibration, wastes, fumes or any public nuisance arising or occurring incidental to its 
establishment or operation.

5. The applicant shall be responsible for the completeness and accuracy of all forms and 
supporting material submitted in connection with any application.  Any errors or discrepancies 
found therein may result in the revocation of any approval or permits issued in connection 
therewith.

6. The proposed tree removal shall be in substantial accordance with the approved plans and 
associated documents submitted and on file in the Department of Planning and Community 
Development of the City of Santa Cruz. Major modifications to plans or exceptions to 
completion may be granted only by the City authority which approved the project.

7. All requirements of the Building, Fire, Public Works and Water Departments shall be satisfied 
and continuously maintained thereafter.

8. Any person exercising a development permit or building permit who, at any time in the 
preparation for or process of excavating or otherwise disturbing earth, discovers any human 
remains of any age or any artifact or any other object which reasonably appears to be 
evidence of an archaeological/cultural resource or paleontological resource, shall:
a. Immediately cease all further excavation, disturbance, and work on the project site;
b. Cause staking to be placed completely around the area of discovery by visible stakes not 

more than ten feet apart forming a circle having a radius of not less than one hundred feet 

4.11



from the point of discovery; provided, that such staking need not take place on adjoining 
property unless the owner of the adjoining property authorizes such staking;

c. Notify the Santa Cruz County sheriff-coroner and the city of Santa Cruz planning director 
of the discovery unless no human remains have been discovered, in which case the 
property owner shall notify only the planning director;

d. Grant permission to all duly authorized representatives of the sheriff-coroner and the 
planning director to enter onto the property and to take all actions consistent with this 
section. 

9. Exercise of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit shall remain contingent upon final approval of 
all entitlements required for the Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project (CP22-
0128).  No tree removal may take place prior to issuance of all necessary Building permits 
required for construction of the Downtown Library Affordable Housing Project (CP22-0128) 
for which removal of Heritage Trees at 113 Lincoln St. and 119 Lincoln St. has been 
proposed.  Should removal of any Heritage Trees be conducted and the Downtown Library 
Affordable Housing Project not subsequently built, replacement trees pursuant to all 
applicable Municipal Code provisions and any pertinent policy/ies shall be planted at the 
project site.

10. The applicant and contractor who obtains a building permit for the project shall be required to 
sign the following statement at the bottom of these conditions, which will become conditions 
of the building permit: 

“I understand that the subject permit involves construction of a building (project) 
with an approved Design Permit. I intend to perform or supervise the performance 
of the work allowed by this permit in a manner which results in a finished 
building with the same level of detail, articulation, and dimensionality shown in 
the plans submitted for building permits. I hereby acknowledge that failure to 
construct the building as represented in the building permit plans, may result in 
delay of the inspections process and/or the mandatory reconstruction or alteration 
of any portion of the building that is not in substantial conformance with the 
approved plans, prior to continuation of inspections or the building final.” 

Signature of Building Contractor Date

4.12



4.13



4.14



4.15



4.16



4.17



4.18



4.19



4.20



4.21



4.22



4.23



4.24



4.25



4.26



4.27



4.28



4.29



4.30



Santa Cruz Parks and Recreation Commission 
Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201 

 
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants 
Contact: Pauline Seales, paulineseales120@gmail.com 

 
Statement of Appeal, December 6, 2022 

 
Introduction. 
 
We are a diverse group of organizations who are jointly appealing the tree removal permit TR-
22-201 (attachment 1) applied for on October 12, 2022, for the removal of all heritage trees 
from Lot 4. Granting this permit would violate the city’s heritage tree ordinance. 
 
It should be noted that many citizens are greatly upset by the proposed tree removal. The value 
of mature trees in urban communities is not simply the purview of “tree huggers.” It is well 
documented by scientific research (attachments 2 & 3). Trees have been found especially 
valuable in urban neighborhoods. 
 
Commissioners should also be aware that the City’s Climate Action Plan 2030, passed by the 
Council in 2022, includes planting many more trees and maintaining existing trees to absorb 
greenhouse gasses and other toxins (attachment 4). 
 
In this statement, we present findings of facts, analysis of facts, and the specifics of our appeal 
requests. We conclude that the tree removal permit should be rejected. The garage/ library/ 
housing plan could and should include retention of at least a few of the heritage trees.  The 
City’s failure to accommodate any of the heritage trees violates its own laws. 
 
Findings of fact. 
 
1. City Council resolution NS-23, 710 (attachment 5) references SCMC 9.56 (webpage 1) and 

states, in part, that “this resolution, and the criteria and standards hereby adopted, shall be 
used to determine the only circumstances under which any heritage tree … may be altered 
or removed,” and includes Exhibit A, “Criteria and Standards,” which states, “A heritage tree 
… shall only be altered or removed in the following circumstances. (c)  One or more of the 
following findings are established by the applicant and confirmed by the Director of Parks 
and Recreation: … (3) A construction project designed cannot be altered to accommodate 
existing heritage trees” [emphases added]. 

4.31



2     / 
 

 
2. Beginning as early as July 6, 2021, numerous organizations and individuals have 

communicated with City staff and the City Council, drawing attention to the heritage tree 
ordinance and requesting that the City and its developer adhere to the ordinance in relation 
to the development of the Lot 4 project. The City’s Director of Economic Development and 
the Mayor acknowledged receipt of certain of these communications. 

 
3. The arborist’s report submitted by Torrey Young of Dryad LLC on January 18, 2022 

(webpage 2), states that “all twelve [trees] could be retained on site.” According to the 
report, using its tree number notation, trees #4, 7, 9, 10, and 11 are “worthy of 
preservation”; other trees on Lot 4 would require extensive preservation and site 
improvement efforts. Of these trees, trees #4, 10, and 11 – all heritage trees – are on the 
perimeter of Lot 4, adjacent to the Cedar Street sidewalk; they are recommended for 
preservation with “specific maintenance.” They are thus strong candidates for 
accommodation in a Lot 4 development project. The other trees – trees #1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 
12 – either are not judged worthy of preservation or fall in the interior of the Lot 4 footprint 
and thus could not easily be accommodated in a project design. 

 
4. In a June 17, 2022 letter (attachment 6), Michael Guth, executive committee chair of the 

Sierra Club, wrote, “It appears that the city and the architect are failing to follow the legal 
requirements of the city’s Heritage Tree Removal Resolution,” and requested a “mid-course 
correction” to “alter the current design” to conform with the City’s heritage tree ordinance. 

 
5. A June 21 email (attachment 7) from Leslie Keedy, City arborist, to Tony Elliot, Bonnie 

Lipscomb [cc: Travis Beck, Brian Borguno], asked, “Have any design changes been asserted 
that would save any trees per the res[olution] requirement?” The email spells out a plan for 
the City to have Dryad LLC review the Lot 4 plan and draft a follow-up so that the Economic 
Development department can respond to the Sierra Club with reports about the trees 
assessment in relation to the actual Lot 4 plan. 

 
6. On June 22, 2022, the City’s Director of Economic Development, Bonnie Lipscomb, emailed 

Michael Guth of the Sierra Club (attachment 8), stating that designs for the Lot 4 project to 
that point were “conceptual in nature,” that the project architect was aware of the heritage 
tree ordinance, and that the project team was reviewing the site layout and trees to see if 
any of them “could be accommodated in the new design.” 

 
7. There is no evidence in the public record that the project architect for the project team 

made any statements concerning adherence to the heritage tree ordinance. 

4.32



3     / 
 

 
8. On August 22, 2022, a Senior Planner for the City advised City project coordinator Brian 

Borguno (attachment 9) that the project land use application “required a Heritage Tree 
Removal Permit.” 

 
9. On September 9, 2022, Torrey Young of Dryad LLC sent an addendum to its January 18, 

2022, arborist report (webpage 3) to Economic Development Director Bonnie Lipscomb. The 
addendum refers to “Review of the impact of construction based on revised site plans 
entitled ‘Entitlements Package 04/29/22’,” and states that “all 12 trees on site must be 
removed to accommodate construction. Specifically, the building footprint encompasses an 
area including all twelve trees.” 

 
10. On September 9, 2022 (the same day that Dryad submitted its arborist report addendum), 

Eden Housing and For the Future submitted development application CP 22-0018 with plans 
for the Lot 4 project (webpages 4). The project narrative (webpage 5) does not include any 
mention of heritage trees or the heritage tree ordinance. Neither the project submission 
letter (webpage 6) nor the project narrative includes any discussion of the Dryad LLC 
arborist’s report of January 18, 2022. The project submission cover letter states that 
“reports in progress” include a tree removal application. The footprint of the project design 
for Lot 4 does not represent any substantial change from earlier “conceptual” plans 
presented to the City Council in December 2021 and May 2022. 

 
11. The application for the heritage tree removal permit, TR22-0201, dated October 12, 2022, 

states that the Removal Permit is “Requesting permit issuance at time of building permit” 
(emphasis added). 

 
12. The application for the heritage tree removal permit, October 12, 2022, includes a “For 

office use only” statement signed by Leslie Keedy, Forester, stating that, as of October 14, 
2022, she has completed an inspection and recommends, “Remove trees as planning & E.D. 
approved by staff plan for construction.” Leslie Keedy adds a parenthetical statement, 
“(NOTE! No cutting prior to council funding & measure approvals.)” 

 
13. The October 22, 2022, heritage Tree Removal application notice (attachment 10) for the Lot 

4 development states that the application is conditional on “Measure O election results and 
City Council deliberation of library project agenda item and issuance of building permit.” 
(The City website [webpage 7] states the matter differently, namely that “The Heritage Tree 
Removal Permits are conditional on the Planning Application approval and requested to be 
issued at the time of construction expected to take place in 2024” [emphasis added].) 

4.33



4     / 
 

 
14. In relation to SCMC 9.56.020(d), the public record does not demonstrate that the Director 

of Parks and Recreation has reviewed all development and construction plans for the 
purpose of determining their negative impact. 

 
15. In relation to SCMC 9.56.020(g), the public record does not show that the Director of Parks 

and Recreation has determined mitigation requirements pursuant to the City Council 
resolution NS-23, 710. 

 
16. In relation to SCMC 9. 56.060(e), the public record does not demonstrate that the Director 

of Parks and Recreation has made findings of fact upon which he/she would base granting 
the permit applied for, after a city official inspection report. 

 
17. In relation to 9. 56.070(a)(11), no development permit for the project has been approved, 

and the permit applicant thus is not in a position to conform with the ordinance 
requirement that all work be completed within 45 days of the effective date of the permit. 

 
18. Although the permit application is framed as “conditional,” there is no citation of any 

general Santa Cruz precedent or provision in chapter 9.56 of the SCMC for granting a permit 
conditionally. 

 
Analysis of facts 
 
1. Unless the developer and the Santa Cruz Parks and Recreation director can demonstrate 

that they have followed the procedures set forth in SCMC and the criteria and standards set 
forth in City Council resolution NS-23, 710, there is no basis for granting a heritage tree 
removal permit. 

 
2. The application for a development permit made on September 9, 2022, makes no reference 

to the Dryad arborist’s report of January 22, 2022. It provides no indication that the project 
architect considered alternatives in design that might accommodate heritage trees. The 
application also does not include any discussion of why the project design could not be 
altered to accommodate selected heritage trees. Unless it can be demonstrated that such 
alternatives were considered in advance of submitting an application for a development 
permit, it has to be concluded that the developer failed to conform to SCMC 9.56 and City 
Council resolution NS-23, 710 prior to submitting its application. 

 

4.34



5     / 
 

3. The arborist’s report addendum sent on September 9, 2022, makes statements about the 
necessity of removing all trees on Lot 4 to “accommodate construction” in reference to  
“entitlement” site plans dated April 29, 2022, that is, before the date of June 22, 2022. On 
that date, Economic Development Director Bonnie Lipscomb emailed Michael Guth, stating 
that designs for the Lot 4 project were “conceptual in nature,” that the project architect 
was aware of the heritage tree ordinance, and that the project team was reviewing the site 
layout and trees to see if any of them “could be accommodated in the new design.” 
Because the arborist’s addendum conclusions are based on a “conceptual” plan set 
predating the June 22, 2022, email, that addendum is irrelevant to any claim that the 
heritage tree ordinance has been followed. 

 
4.  The arborist report addendum does not indicate that the arborist was asked to consider or 

did consider whether any alternative approach to construction would accommodate 
keeping some of the trees on Lot 4. 

 
5. The submission of the development application on the same day that the arborist report 

addendum was sent, September 9, 2022, demonstrates that the development application 
could not have taken into substantial account any statements in the arborist report 
addendum. 

 
6. The applicant for the project development is applying for a tree removal permit for a 

project that has not received a development permit. Such an application is premature. In 
the absence of any City legal precedent or SCMC stipulation of such a process, a 
“conditional” application for heritage tree removal has no standing for consideration by 
either the City or its Parks and Recreation Commission. 

Appeal 

We hope that the Commission takes seriously the science and human experience that 
demonstrates the invaluable benefits offered by trees, heritage or not. Although our appeal 
recognizes those benefits, it is based upon adherence to laws that govern heritage trees in the 
city of Santa Cruz. The City and the developer have failed to comply with those laws in applying 
for and issuing a conditional permit for their removal.   

1.   We request that the Parks and Recreation Commission deny the Heritage Tree Removal 
Permit on the grounds that the developer has not demonstrated a good-faith effort to 
accommodate the heritage trees in the plans for the Lot 4 development. 

2.   We request that the Parks and Recreation Commission deny the Heritage Tree Removal 
Permit on the grounds that the procedures specified in SCMC 9.56.060(e) have not been 

4.35



6     / 
 

properly followed in that the Director has not reviewed development and construction plans 
and the City inspection report, and made findings of fact on that basis. 

3.   We request that the Parks and Recreation Commission withhold any further consideration of 
a permit for removal of Heritage trees on Lot 4 until such time as the developer has 
demonstrated a good faith effort to accommodate heritage trees in the design for the 
development, which certainly could include preservation of trees #4, 10, and 11, along the 
west side of the development, adjacent to the sidewalk, facing Cedar Street. 

4.   We request that the Commission not issue any “conditional” permit, as there is no basis in 
the SCMC 9.56 or City Council resolution NS-23, 710 for the issuance of conditional permits, 
nor is there any such procedure to be found more widely in the SCMC. 

5.   If our appeal is not granted, we request that the Commission direct the Director of Parks and 
Recreation to issue a Heritage tree removal permit for trees on Lot 4 only at such time, and 
if and only if the development proposal for the Lot 4 mixed-use project has received full City 
Council approval, all necessary permits, and complete financing to fund construction. 

 

List of Referenced Webpages and Attachments 
  
Webpages. 
  
Webpage 1. Santa Cruz Municipal Code chapter 9.56, “Preservation of Heritage Trees and Heritage 
Shrubs,” https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaCruz/html/SantaCruz09/SantaCruz0956.html. 
  
Webpage 2. Arborist Report, https://www.cityofsantacruz.com/home/showpublisheddocument/91505. 
  
Webpage 3. Arborist Report Addendum, 
https://www.cityofsantacruz.com/home/showpublisheddocument/91507. 
  
Webpage 4. Project Plans Set Package, 9-8-22, 
https://www.cityofsantacruz.com/home/showpublisheddocument/90869/638001412453600000. 
  
Webpage 5. Project Narrative, 
https://www.cityofsantacruz.com/home/showpublisheddocument/90875/638001412470630000. 
  
Webpage 6. Project Cover Letter 9-8-22, 
https://www.cityofsantacruz.com/home/showpublisheddocument/90871/638001412459870000. 
  
Webpage 7. Downtown Library & Affordable Housing Project, 
https://www.cityofsantacruz.com/government/city-departments/economic-
development/development-projects/mixed-use-library-project. 

4.36



7     / 
 

  
 
Attachments. 
  
1. October 12, 2022, Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201. 
  
2. Cavalieri, Susan, and Pauline Seales, “Benefits of trees.” 
  
3. Weiss, Peter, et al., “Shade as a climate option.” 
  
4. Seales, Pauline, “Considerations based on the City of Santa Cruz 2030 Climate Action Plan.” 
  
5. City Council resolution NS-23, 710. 
  
6. June 17, 2022, letter of Michael Guth, executive committee chair of the Sierra Club, to Bonnie 
Lipscomb, Director of Santa Cruz Department of Economic Development. 
  
7. June 21, 2022, email from Leslie Keedy, Santa Cruz City arborist, to Tony Elliot, Bonnie Lipscomb [cc: 
Travis Beck, Brian Borguno]. 
  
8. June 22, 2022, email from Bonnie Lipscomb, Director of Santa Cruz Department of Economic 
Development, to Michael Guth, executive committee chair of the Sierra Club. 
  
9. August 22, 2022, email from Timothy Maier to Brian Borguno, with attached Land Use Application 
form. 
  
10. October 18, 2022, Tree removal permit application TR22-0201, posted notice #2. 

4.37



Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 1.

4.38



4.39



4.40



4.41



4.42



4.43



4.44



4.45



Benefits of trees by Susan Cavalieri and Pauline Seales

The following is a short review of a wide range of current literature about the benefits of trees with brief

excerpts from each source.

Why large trees are essential for healthy cities 2022 City Monitor
Trees are important elements of our urban landscape. With more than 50 per cent of the world’s population
living in cities, it is impossible to imagine cities without the many services and benefits trees provide to
residents and ecosystems.    …………..
Trees with a larger trunk diameter have a greater woody biomass (amount of wood), which allows them to
store more carbon than smaller trees. Similarly, trees’ ability to intercept precipitation and air pollutants
increases with greater canopy size (the tops of dominant trees) and total leaf area (the total area of all
leaves), which are both associated with greater overall tree size. As a result, larger trees are generally more
effective than smaller ones at providing essential regulating services for urban environments and,
especially, in a changing climate.

Benefits of Urban Trees: University of Illinois Extension, 2019
On an annual basis, it is estimated that US urban trees provide $18 million in economic benefits by reducing
air pollution, energy use, and pollutant emissions while increasing carbo sequestration. A more diverse and
mature urban forest has been shown to increase both environmental and economic benefits of trees.   While
other infrastructure depreciates over time, trees appreciate as they mature.  Compared to planting or
maintenance costs, the annual benefit from trees far outweighs their costs.

Urban Trees and Human Health: A Scoping Review By National Library of Medicine, 2020
Overall, urban trees and forests appear to remove a variety of air pollutants, which may in turn reduce some
of the negative health outcomes associated with air pollution, although the magnitude of this benefit varies
under different circumstances.
Overall, findings indicate that trees may reduce the incidence of various types of crime and possible
influencing factors include the size, location, and health status of the trees.
Our findings support the growing public recognition of urban trees as an essential component of

health-supportive environments

6 Ways Trees Benefit All of Us Nature Conservancy 2020
#1: Trees eat the greenhouse gases that cause climate change—for breakfast.
More like breakfast, lunch and dinner. Trees’ food-making process, photosynthesis, involves absorbing
carbon dioxide from the air and storing it in its wood. Trees and plants will store this carbon dioxide
throughout their lives, helping slow the gas’s buildup in our atmosphere that has been rapidly warming our
planet.  Smarter management of trees, plants and soil in the US alone could store the equivalent carbon of
taking 57 million cars off the road!

STREET TREES SF Urban Forest Plan 2014

San Francisco’s trees work hard each day to improve our quality of life and the urban environment. They purify the air,

reduce stormwater runoff, beautify neighborhoods, increase property values, and improve our health and well-being.

Trees increase San Francisco’s desirability as a place to live, work and visit. This “green infrastructure” is essential to

the city’s sustainability. These pages describe some of the specific social, economic and environmental services

provided by trees and other forms of landscaping

Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 2.

4.46

https://citymonitor.ai/environment/green-space/large-tree-cities
https://extension.illinois.edu/blogs/garden-scoop/2019-09-27-benefits-urban-trees
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7345658/
https://www.nature.org/en-us/what-we-do/our-priorities/build-healthy-cities/cities-stories/benefits-of-trees-forests/?gclid=Cj0KCQiA-JacBhC0ARIsAIxybyPEDojN9q4BtqF71UPUhOBXuK4Xp-J-b45QgTYEvEEQKTWQ5pWVO0QaAqwPEALw_wcB&gclsrc=aw.ds
https://www.nature.org/en-us/what-we-do/our-priorities/tackle-climate-change/climate-change-stories/how-nature-can-help-heal-our-planet/
https://www.nature.org/en-us/what-we-do/our-priorities/tackle-climate-change/climate-change-stories/how-nature-can-help-heal-our-planet/
https://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-city/urban-forest-plan/Urban_Forest_Plan_Final-092314WEB.pdf


Trees In Urban Design

This article contained the following summary

Trees: The Critical Infrastructure Low-Income Neighborhoods Lack | The Pew Charitable Trusts 2021
Trees provide important public health benefits, starting with the cooling shade they provide. A study
published last year in the journal Environmental Epidemiology found that heat causes thousands of excess
deaths in the United States each year, far above official estimates. City and state leaders expect climate
change to worsen the threat.
“Trees are nature's air conditioners, and we're starting to talk about them as a real adaptation investment,”
said Shaun O’Rourke, a managing director at the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank who also serves as the
state’s chief resilience officer.
Even in cities with strong tree planting programs, leaders have found they’re still losing canopy cover each
year as urban sprawl and development :uproots existing trees to make way for housing. Forestry experts
say cities need strong tree protection ordinances to have a chance of reaching their goals.

5 reasons why cities need a healthy tree cover | World Economic Forum 2022
1. Tree cover acts as natural climate control mitigating the urban heat island effect
2. Carbon dioxide vacuums with large trees storing more CO2 which is released back into the environment
when the tree is cut down.
3. General health indicators improve with urban trees
4. Local community builders as trees improve the quality of life that can attract greater business
opportunities and raise real estate prices by 3-15%.
5. A good tree cover promotes urban biodiversity for birds that live off insects, sap and fruits of urban trees.

Short Video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=t4eE9Fqu1yE 3 minute Nat Cons video

4.47

https://www.cnu.org/sites/default/files/trees_in_urban_design.pdf
https://www.pewtrusts.org/en/research-and-analysis/blogs/stateline/2021/07/06/tree-the-critical-infrastructure-low-income-neighborhoods-lack
https://journals.lww.com/environepidem/fulltext/2020/06000/estimating_the_number_of_excess_deaths.1.aspx
https://www.weforum.org/agenda/2022/06/cities-urban-trees-climate-change/
https://depts.washington.edu/hhwb/Thm_Economics.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=t4eE9Fqu1yE


Shade as a Climate Option - Temperature measurements at paired sun-shade locations in Santa
Cruz, CA during a heat wave

Peter Weiss-Penzias, Jarett Jones, Saleem Mokatrin, Isabella Trask
University of California, Santa Cruz, Department of Environmental Studies

October 25, 2022     pweiss@ucsc.edu

Introduction

Prevalence of shade trees in urban areas significantly controls the temperature of the surface in these
areas, moderating the temperature fluctuations. This is especially important in minimizing summertime
temperature extremes during heat waves, which can reach unhealthy levels in some urban areas. Many
people are susceptible to extreme heat which causes life threatening conditions and mortality. Tree cover in
urban areas is also associated with socioeconomic class, with poorer neighborhoods having many fewer
trees resulting in average temperatures that can be 4-8°C hotter in poorer neighborhoods compared to
richer neighborhoods, which presents a disproportionate risk to human health across classes (Macdonald et
al., 2021).

Localized temperature measurements may in fact reveal even more disparity in temperatures between
areas with shade and without much shade. Previous studies used temperature measurements from
satellites on a kilometer grid scale, but this may be too coarse to understand the effects of shade on
temperature moderation on the spatial scale of a city-block.

This research project set out to compare temperatures taken on a 1-min timescale at six locations in a
relatively small region of downtown Santa Cruz. Three locations were chosen based on each location
having a large sunny area with no shade and a group of trees where there was shade all day. The basic
question we wanted to address was if there was a significant difference between the three locations in the
shade-sun paired temperatures and whether that difference could be explained by relative amounts of tree
cover between the three locations.

Locations

Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants, Attachment 3

4.48



The above map shows the 6 locations used for the deployment of thermometers. Locations 1 and 2 were
the sun/shade pair at the Civic Auditorium and Walnut St., respectively. Locations 3 and 4 were at the
Farmer’s Market parking lot (sun and shade, respectively). Locations 5 and 6 were in the Trader Joe’s
parking lot (sun and shade, respectively). Of the three locations, the Trader Joe’s parking lot has the lowest
overall tree coverage on the scale of a city block.

Temperature Measurement Device and Deployment
We used six identical devices purchased from Amazon.com: Gove Hygrometer Thermometer, Wireless
Thermometer, Mini Bluetooth Humidity Sensor. These have a bluetooth range of up to 262 ft and the data
were retrieved weekly during the experiment.

The Govee thermometers were deployed on August 18, 2022 until September 10, 2022 using a power lift
truck and zip-ties with the help of the City of Santa Cruz. The thermometers were attached to tree branches
in the shade, and to light poles where there was no shade (“in the sun”) at a height of 5-7 meters. The data
in this report are from August 31 until September 10 when a severe heat wave occurred.

Results - The Labor Day Heat Wave of 2022

Figure 1: Raw 1-min temperature data from six thermometers in Downtown Santa Cruz over the time period
when a severe heat wave occurred.

4.49



Figure 2: Close up in time showing the hottest 4 days in downtown Santa Cruz

N total
(1 min
data)

Mean oF Standard
Deviation
oF

Minimum
oF

1st
Quartile
oF

Median
oF

3rd
Quartile
oF

Maximum
oF

Civic Sun 15840 70.5 12.1 51.1 60.8 66.0 81.0 102.4

Civic
Shade

15648 68.4 8.6 53.8 62.2 66.0 74.5 96.8

Farmers
Market
Sun

15444 69.4 10.9 52.3 61.3 65.5 77.9 99.5

Farmers
Market
Shade

15840 68.9 8.2 54.3 63.1 66.7 74.5 94.5

Trader
Joes Sun

15840 73.0 10.2 54.5 65.7 70.0 80.1 102.2

Trader
Joes
Shade

12294 66.7 8.3 51.6 60.8 64.8 72.3 93.2

Table 1: Statistics on the measurements from six thermometers over the period Aug 31 - Sep 10, 2022.

4.50



avg delta T (sun -
shade) all times

avg delta T (sun -
shade) morning

avg delta T (sun -
shade) afternoon

Civic 1.79 -2.56 5.27

Farmers Market 0.57 -1.47 4.94

Trader Joes 5.53 4.92 8.93

Table 2: The average temperature differences between the sun and shade pairs at the same location.
Positive numbers indicate the thermometer in the sun is warmer than the one in the shade and negative
numbers indicate the opposite. Afternoon is defined as 12:00  to 17:00 and morning is 01:00 to 06:00.

Discussion

Not surprisingly the thermometers in the sun had higher mean temperatures than the ones in the shade
(Table 1). However, when we look at the difference between temperatures between the sun/shade pair of
thermometers, we see that while daytime temperatures were higher at the sunny location, at night for two of
the sites (Civic and Farmer’s Market) the temperatures were higher on the thermometer in the shade (Table
2). This indicates that the presence of the trees moderated both the high and low temperatures.

The temperature trends at the Trader Joes parking lot locations were quite different from the other two sites.
The thermometer in the sun at this site had the highest mean temperature (Table 1) and the highest daily
maximum temperature (Figure 1 and 2). The sun thermometer also had the highest nighttime temperature
(Figure 1 and 2), much different than any of the other thermometers.

The difference between the sun and shade thermometers at the Trader Joes parking lot was 4.92°C during
the morning and 8.93°C during the afternoon, indicating the anomalously high temperatures experienced at
this site compared to the others.

The Trader Joes parking lot has very few trees and this could be a reason why we observed this anomalous
temperature behavior. However, we can’t rule out other explanations such as being closer to the river and
great air flow coming from the ocean/upriver. However, that a clear temperature pattern was observed in line
with our original hypothesis, suggests that further study is warranted to determine the effects of shade cover
on temperature patterns in urban spaces.

Reference:
McDonald RI, Biswas T, Sachar C, Housman I, Boucher TM, Balk D, et al. (2021) The tree cover and temperature
disparity in US urbanized areas: Quantifying the association with income across 5,723 communities. PLoS ONE 16(4):
e0249715. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0249715

4.51



Appeal of Permit for removal of Lot 4 heritage trees

Pauline Seales,

Considerations based on the City of Santa Cruz 2030 Climate Action Plan

The City Climate Action Plan 2030 adopted by city council in 2022 has extensive references to maintaining and expanding the city urban forest.

Clearly cutting down mature trees and replacing them several years later with immature saplings does not fit with this plan.

Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 4.

4.52

https://www.cityofsantacruz.com/home/showpublisheddocument/90696/637983259409670000


In addition the plan includes this about reducing parking for single passenger vehicles.

So cutting down heritage trees to build a garage violates the Climate Action Plan as well as the heritage tree ordinance.

4.53



I 

I 

I 

RESOLUTION NO NS-23,710 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANT A CRUZ RESCINDrNG RESOLUTION NO. NS-21,433 REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS FOR THE ALTERATION OR REMOVAL OFHERITAGE TREESANDSHRUBS 

WHEREAS, Chapter 9.56 of the Sama Cruz Municipal Code titled "Preservation of Heritage Trees and Heritage Shrubs" authorizes the alteration or removal of any hentage tree or hentage shrub only under circumstances to be set forth by City of Santa Cruz City Council resolution;and 
WHEREAS, it is the llltention of the City Council ofth_e City of Santa Cruz that this resolution, and the criteria and standards hereby adopted, shall be used to determine the only circumstances under which any heritage tree or hentage shrub may be altered or removed. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Santa Cruz that it hereby adopts the critena and standards set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference mcorporated herein for the detem1ination of the crrcumstances under which any heritage tree or hentagc shrub may be altered or removed, and that Resolution No. NS-21,4331s hereby rescinded. 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of Apnl, 1998, by the following vote 

AYES· 

NOES. 
ABSENT: 
DISQUALIFIED: 

Councibnembers: 

Counc1lmembers: 
Councilmembers: 
Councilmembers: 

ATTEST: __ /;,, 
City Clerk 

Be1ers, Rotkm, Hernandez, Mathews, Kennedy, Mayor Scott. 
None 
Campbell 
None. 

Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 5.

4.54



4.55



Bonnie Lipscomb 
Economic Development Director 
City of Santa Cruz 

June 17, 2022 

Dear Ms. Lipscomb, 

The Sierra Club is monitoring the proposed mixed-use project for Lot 4 in downtown Santa Cruz. 
Among other concerns, we are especially attentive to the preservation of the onsite heritage 
trees. 

We watched the recent presentation to council on the project from Jayson Architecture. Given 
the widespread interest in this project it was surprising that no public comment was allowed.  

It appears that the city and the architect are failing to follow the legal requirements of the city’s 
Heritage Tree Removal Resolution. As you know, among other criteria, a heritage tree can be 
removed only if “a construction project design cannot be altered to accommodate existing 
heritage trees or shrubs.” 1. (3) Criteria and Standards Exhibit A. You may also recall that the 
Criteria and Standards were subject of a lawsuit in 2015 in the published case, Save Our Big 
Trees v. City of Santa Cruz, when the city sought to change and weaken the Heritage Tree 
Removal Criteria. The Appellate Court judges ruled against the city.  

Sierra Club members have shared with us that they wrote to you at the beginning of this 
process, drawing your attention to the above-mentioned criterion and asking that whoever was 
chosen as architect for the project be advised of the city’s legal requirement vis a vis its 
Heritage Trees.  Apparently, you agreed to do so.  

Since that time, Jayson Architecture was selected to design the mixed-use project and has 
publicly shared the initial project design both in a community zoom and at council. The 
presented design makes no accommodation for any of the existing heritage trees. The architect 
made no mention of the heritage trees at either the zoom meeting or in his presentation to 

Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 6.

4.56



council. That omission suggests he was either not advised of the city’s law or he was advised 
and ignored it. When a council member asked about the heritage trees following the architect’s 
presentation to council, he replied that the trees were in the center of the lot so couldn’t be 
preserved and the new project will have a lot of greenery to make up for the loss of heritage 
trees. 
 
That is not how the Heritage Tree Resolution works. Either the architect should have developed 
a design to accommodate as many trees as possible given that some are next to the sidewalk or 
explained in detail why and how a design to accommodate any heritage tree was impossible. 
Not, less appealing but impossible. 
 
That there is an arborist’s report expected at some point and after the design is fixed does not 
make sense. Obviously the first step was for an arborist evaluation of each tree, then 
deliberation with the architectural team on design options for preserving as many viable 
heritage trees as possible. That none of these steps was apparently taken demonstrates a 
disregard for the public, for heritage trees and the city’s obligation to both. 
 
It is not too late to make a mid-course correction. The design is still preliminary. The Sierra Club 
respectfully requests that considering the above, the city give direction to Jayson Architecture 
to alter the current design to comply with city’s legal obligations with respect to its heritage 
trees. 
 
We look forward to hearing back from you on this matter. 
 

Sincerely,      

 
  Michael A. Guth 
  Executive Committee Chair 
  Sierra  Club, Santa Cruz Group 
 
 
 
cc. 
City Manager Matt Huffaker 
mhuffaker@cityofsantacruz.com 
Jayson Architects  
abe@jaysonarch.com 
Mayor Sonja Brunner 
sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com 
 

4.57

mailto:abe@jaysonarch.com


1

Julia Wood

From: Leslie Keedy
Sent: Tuesday, June 21, 2022 1:58 PM
To: Tony Elliot; Bonnie Lipscomb
Cc: Travis Beck; Brian Borguno
Subject: RE: Letter
Attachments: Letter-report, Dryad, LLC, 21045, 01-18-22.pdf; Letter-report COPY, Dryad, LLC, 21045, 01-18-22.pdf; 

Sierra Club ltr to City of Santa Cruz lot 4 trees.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi the attached arborist report was prepared as somewhat of a pre‐project review, to address if trees are worthy of 
preservation in general terms,  to evaluate their current condition tree by tree,  & also to speak to relocation potential 
which is not recommended by the consultant or myself.   It appears that the arborist report was not shared at the 
council presentation if the SC letter is accurate.    

Have any design changes been asserted that would save any trees per the reso requirement? 

Also it is std that the project arborist review the actual development plans & make a recommendation based on the plan 
for removal & retention so Dryad should be paid to review the plan & then draft a follow‐up letter specific to the plan 
stating that trees will not be retained for this project given the plan & reiterate that many are not worthy of retention.   

When ED responds to SC it should contain the tree reports & the current assessment of the trees relative to the actual 
proposed plan. 

In the future if you want me to be a panelist when you go to council I’m happy to sit in on these tree technical matters. 

  LKeedy 

From: Tony Elliot <telliot@cityofsantacruz.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, June 21, 2022 12:42 PM 
To: Leslie Keedy <lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com> 
Cc: Travis Beck <tbeck@cityofsantacruz.com> 
Subject: Letter 

FYI – Please do not share. For your information. 

Tony Elliot 
Director 
City of Santa Cruz Parks & Recreation Department 
323 Church St. Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 420‐5366
www.santacruzparksandrec.com

The Parks & Recreation Department’s mission is to provide quality public spaces and experiences that build a 
healthy community, foster equity, and better the environment. 

Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 7.

4.58



City of Santa Cruz response to Sierra Club letter re:  Lot 4 trees (June 17, 2022) 

On 6/22/2022 5:29 PM, Bonnie Lipscomb wrote: 

Hello Mr. Guth,  

 Acknowledging receipt of your letter. As you may not be aware, we have not formally submitted 
an application for the total mixed-use project which includes multiple project components 
including housing, commercial, and a daycare center in addition to the library. The designs and 
presentations to Council have been project updates on the library component of the project 
specifically and have been conceptual in nature.  

 Our project architect is also aware of the heritage tree ordinance and the project team has been 
reviewing the site layout and trees to see if any could be accommodated in the new design. We 
have been in regular communication with our City attorney regarding full compliance with the 
heritage tree ordinance.  As we move forward in the process, we will return to Council with more 
information.  

Sincerely, 

Bonnie 

Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 8.

4.59



From: Timothy Maier
To: Brian Borguno
Cc: Bonnie Lipscomb; Samantha Haschert
Subject: Required Steps for Submittal of Land Use Application - Library Mixed-Use/Affordable Housing Project, 119 Lincoln

St. (CP22-0128)
Date: Monday, August 22, 2022 11:45:47 AM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Lincoln St 119 Application CP22-0128.pdf
Form 4 Use Permit Information.pdf
Form 5 Variance.pdf
Form 10 Demolition-Conversion Authorization Permit.pdf
Form 14 Lot Line Adjustment.pdf
Form 17 Density Bonus.pdf
Form 2 - Project Design Data.pdf

Hi Brian,

       Attached, please find the project application form and supplemental information forms for
review of the Library Mixed-Use/Affordable Housing Project, 113 and 119 Lincoln St. (CP22-0128). 
As proposed, the scope of work requires a Nonresidential Demolition Authorization Permit, Special
Use Permit, Design Permit, Lot-Line Adjustment, Sign Permit, and Heritage Tree Removal Permit to
demolish the existing surface parking lot and structures and construct the project encompassing a
new, approximately 38,000 sq. ft. City library; parking structure with up to 350 parking spaces; 100%
affordable housing component comprising approximately 124 residential units; approximately
10,000 sq. ft. commercial tenant space; 1,800-2,500 sq. ft. commercial childcare facility; new roof
deck(s); and associated site improvements at 113 and 119 Lincoln St. (CP22-0128).

      The project application form includes the estimated fees, list of required application materials,
and associated forms. The application has been given the project number CP22-0128.  

      Please complete the following steps to submit your application:
1. Plans can be uploaded and payment can be made on the “My City of Santa Cruz” website.

a. If you are a first-time user, visit the following link to register. Your temporary password
will be sent to you. https://www.mycityofsantacruz.com/register

b. If you are already registered, simply log in at www.mycityofsantacruz.com
2. Navigate to “Business Center”
3. Select “Building and Planning Permits” button
4. Enter Application/Permit Number, as shown above
5. Follow online prompts

     Please note that submittal of an uploaded application form, plans, and required documents and
payment of all fees is required to initiate staff review of the project proposal.  You will receive a
confirmation email message once the application has been submitted and is under review.

     Feel free to contact me, should you have any questions.

Best regards,
Tim

Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 9.

4.60



Timothy Maier, AICP
Senior Planner
City of Santa Cruz
(831)420-5129
cityofsantacruz.com
logo

 

4.61



P:\_Public\Dept Forms\Land Use Application & Zoning Clearances\Land Use Applications\LU Applications- Word Docs\Universal Land 
Use Application Rev 7-1-20.docx 

LAND USE APPLICATION
Department of Planning & 
Community Development 
809 Center Street, Room 10   
Santa Cruz, CA 95060  
www.cityofsantacruz.com 
(831) 420-5100 phone 
(831) 420-5434 fax 

APPLICATION # DATE STAMP 

RECEIVED BY 

ZONING 

CODE ENFORCEMENT 

PROJECT ADDRESS ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER (APN) 

PROPERTY OWNER APPLICANT* 

NAME NAME 

ADDRESS ADDRESS 

CITY/STATE/ZIP CITY/STATE/ZIP 

PHONE PHONE 

EMAIL EMAIL 

CERTIFICATION 

“I hereby certify that the facts given on this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I agree to, and authorize, such 
investigations as are deemed necessary by the City of Santa Cruz City Planning Department for the preparation of reports related to this application, 
include the right of access to the property involved. In submitting this application, I agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, 
officers, employees and agents , from and against any claim,  including  attorney 
fees and litigation costs , arising out of or in any way related to the City’s processing, consideration or approval of this application

.” 

APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE* If applicant is not the property owner, an owner-agent form is required. 

 
DATE 

APPLICATION TYPE(S) – STAFF USE ONLY FROM THIS POINT 

 APPEALS  
 BOUNDARY/LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT (14) 
 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE   
 COASTAL PERMIT (11) 
 CONDITIONAL FENCE PERMIT (6) 
 CONDITIONAL DRIVEWAY PERMIT 
 DEMOLITION AUTHORIZATION PERMIT – RESIDENTIAL (10) 
 DEMOLITION AUTHORIZATION PERMIT – HISTORIC (2) 
 DESIGN PERMIT (2) 
 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 EXTENSION AREA (15) 
 GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT (12) 
 HISTORIC ALTERATION PERMIT (7) 
 HISTORIC BUILDING SURVEY DELETION 
 HISTORIC DESIGNATION 

 MINOR MODIFICATION (2) 
 MAJOR MODIFICATION (2) 
 PLANNED DEVELOPMENT  
 RECONSTRUCTION PERMIT (2) 
 SIGN PERMIT (2) 
 SLOPE MODIFICATION (2,5) 
 SPECIFIC PLAN 
 SUBDIVISION (13)  
 USE PERMIT – ADMINISTRATIVE (2,4) 
 USE PERMIT – SPECIAL (2,4) 
 VARIANCE (5) 
 WATERCOURSE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
 WATERCOURSE VARIANCE 
 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT (12) 
 OTHER 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

CP22-0128

TM
CBD/FP-O

N/A

119/113 Lincoln St. 005-141-21

City of Santa Cruz City of Santa Cruz Econ. Develop. Dept./For the Future Housing, Inc.

809 Center St. 809 Center St./945 W. Julian St.

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Santa Cruz, CA 95060/San Jose, CA 95126

831-420-5150 831-420-5150/408-374-1553

blipscomb@cityofsantacruz.com blipscomb@cityofsantacruz.com/jrendler@ftfhousing.com

Nonresidential Demolition Authorization Permit, Special Use Permit, Design Permit, Lot-Line Adjustment, Sign Permit, and Heritage Tree Removal Permit to demolish the existing surface parking lot and structures and

construct the Library Mixed-Use/Affordable Housing Project encompassing a new, approximately 38,000 sq. ft. City library; parking structure with up to 350 parking spaces; 100% affordable housing component comprising approximately 124 residential units;

approximately 10,000 sq. ft. commercial tenant space; 1,800-2,500 sq. ft. commercial childcare facility; new roof deck(s); and associated site improvements (anticipated environmental determination: statutory, categorical exemptions).

4.62



P:\_Public\Dept Forms\Land Use Application & Zoning Clearances\Land Use Applications\LU Applications- Word Docs\Universal Land 
Use Application Rev 7-1-20.docx 

HEARING BODY ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW COASTAL REVIEW 

 Staff Review (OTC) 
 Zoning Administrator  
 Historic Preservation Commission  
 Planning Commission 
 City Council 

 Categorical Exemption 
 (Mitigated) Negative Declaration 
 Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 

 Outside of CZ-O 
 Exclusion – Zone ___ 
 Exemption 
 State Coastal Commission  
 Appealable to State Coastal Commission 
 Not Appealable to State Coastal Commission 

APPLICATION FEES – ALL APPLICATIONS MADE TO CORRECT VIOLATIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE ARE SUBJECT TO DOUBLE FEES. 

APPLICATION INTAKE –  
NO PUBLIC HEARING $1  

MINOR MODIFICATION $1,  

DOCUMENT HANDLING –  
NO PUBLIC HEARING $  

BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT $1,5  PLANNED DEVELOPMENT $  

APPLICATION INTAKE –  
PUBLIC HEARING $2  

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE $1,  
RECONSTRUCTION 
PERMIT $3,0  

DOCUMENT HANDLING –  
PUBLIC HEARING $1  

COASTAL PERMIT $1,  SIGN PERMIT $3  

PUBLIC NOTICE $28  

COASTAL PERMIT EXCLUSION $13  
SLOPE MODIFICATION  
BETWEEN 10’-20’

$  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
– CATEGORICAL EXEMPT $1  

$1  
SLOPE VARIANCE – 
LESS THAN 10’ 

$  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
– NEG DEC/INITIAL STUDY $  

RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL 
DEMOLITION PERMIT 

$ 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
– STATUROTY EXEMPTION $5,3  

DESIGN PERMIT – MULTI-RES/ 
COMMERCIAL $42 /1,000 SF 

USE PERMIT – 
ADMINISTRATIVE $  

MITIGATION MONITORING 
– MINOR  (DEPOSIT) $500 

DESIGN PERMIT – LARGE 
HOUSE/SUBSTANDARD $3,0  

USE PERMIT – SPECIAL $3,  

MITIGATION MONITORING 
– MAJOR  (DEPOSIT) $6,  

DESIGN PERMIT – REMODEL/ 
SITE ALTERATION $1,  

VARIANCE $3,  

ARBORIST REVIEW $  FIRE REVIEW $11  

WATERCOURSE 
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT $  

ARCHAEOLOGICAL REVIEW $7  POLICE REVIEW $3  

WATERCOURSE
$3,1  

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
(DEPOSIT) $ EXTENSION AREA $2  

ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT (DEPOSIT) $6,  

BIOTIC REVIEW $14  FENCE – NO PUBLIC HEARING 
(OTC) $1,  

OTHER

DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (DEPOSIT) 

$5,2  FENCE – PUBLIC HEARING $  SUBTOTAL $ 

STAFF RESEARCH/ 
ZONING INFO ($14 /HR) $ HISTORIC ALTERATION PERMIT $  TECHNOLOGY FEE  

(5% OF SUBTOTAL) $ 

ABANDONMENT $  MAJOR MODIFICATION $2,  TOTAL $ 

REFERRAL ROUTING 

 Architectural Consultant 
 Bicycle/Transportation  
 Building 
 City Attorney 
 City Manager 
 County Environmental Health 
 County Fire Marshall 

 Economic Development 
 Fire 
 Housing ( 5 units) 
 Parks & Recreation 
 Police 
 Public Works 
 Traffic Engineer 

 Transit District 
 Urban Forester 
 Wastewater 
 Water 
 Water Conservation 
 ______________________________ 
 ______________________________ 

NOTES 

 
$1  

$ 

APPEAL $  

OTHER $

✔

✔ ✔

✔

✔ ✔

✔ 137,045.76✔

✔ ✔

✔

✔

✔ ✔

✔ ✔

$130/hr.

151,032.76

7,551.64

158,584.40

4.63



REQUIRED MATERIALS 
The following materials must be submitted in order for the application to be deemed complete. All sheets within a plan set must be 
internally consistent and must be consistent with associated technical reports. Note: Details, plan sheets, and reports that are not 
required as part of the Planning Application may be required as part of the Building Permit application.  

The below information may be presented on combined or individual plan sheets. If sheets are combined, please make sure that the 
information is clearly presented or the application may not be deemed complete. 

Please speak with the Planning Counter in advance of submitting an application if there are extenuating circumstances related to the 
project or parcel that could affect the required application materials.  

ALL PROJECTS 

1. Digital Application
Materials must be submitted in .pdf format and on a flash drive. Hardcopy materials will not be accepted. Other forms of delivery 
such as email attachments, downloadable links, and third party transfer services (ex. Dropbox) will not be accepted.  

2. Land Use Application and all additional required forms

3. Signed Owner-Agent Form

4. Fee Payment (cash, check, VISA, MasterCard)

5. Site Plan (1’=1/8” scale or larger)
Contact information for preparer, property owner, business owner, architect, etc.
Date of preparation and dates of revisions
Property address
Assessor’s Parcel Number
North arrow
Scale
Vicinity map
Property lines with dimensions
Adjacent Streets and alleys
All existing and proposed easements for parking, access, utility, sewer, water, stormdrain, and all easements on surrounding
properties benefiting the subject property.
Existing structures and their uses
Building footprints of adjacent properties and use of adjacent properties
Building setbacks
Off-street parking, bike parking, and loading and circulation areas. Include dimensions, and labeled as compact, standard,
accessible, and/or electric vehicle supply equipment installed (EVSE), bike parking labeled as Class 1 or Class 2. Parking
and bike calculations must be provided on a separate 8.5” x 11” sheet.
Fencing labeled as existing to remain, existing to be demolished, and/or proposed new.
Slope contours (contour interval shall be two feet for slopes up to 20% and 5 feet for slopes over 20%)
Existing trees and shrubs labeled as to be preserved or to be removed. Indicate circumference of all existing trees
measured 4.5 feet from grade. If circumference is larger than 44 inches (14 inches in diameter) and tree is proposed for
removal, a Heritage Tree Removal Permit is required.
The centerline, riparian corridor, development setback area, and management area of any creeks or waterways in close
proximity to the area of proposed disturbance or on the subject parcel. Setbacks must be consistent with the Citywide
Creeks and Wetlands Management Plan.
Locations of existing and proposed on-site lighting features.
Locations, dimensions, and design (elevations) of trash enclosures designed to Public Works specifications.
Accurate location of all existing and proposed utilities.
Location of existing and proposed sewer, water and storm drain lines, manholes, inlets, outlets etc.
For projects less than 2500 square feet of new and replaced impervious surface area, preliminary drainage improvements
clearly showing proposed and existing low impact design measures identified in City’s Best Management Practices for
Development Projects. See attached stormwater plan requirements and materials for projects greater than 2500 square
feet.

4.64



In accordance with the prohibition on natural gas infrastructure, projects that require Design Permit approval must include
the following statement on the cover sheet of the architectural plans (“Natural Gas-Free Design as required by SCMC
6.100”) and must be designed in accordance with Chapter 6.100 of the Municipal Code. Existing buildings undergoing
alterations, additions, or tenant improvements are exempt.  For new construction not requiring a Design Permit, the
prohibition effective date is October 29, 2020. The ordinance may be viewed at:
http://www.cityofsantacruz.com/home/showdocument?id=79473
Note: The 2019 Santa Cruz Green Building checklists contain many features to optimize all-electric building design and
may be viewed at: http://www.cityofsantacruz.com/greenbuilding
It is strongly advised your energy professional is engaged with the project's design team at the project's outset.

6. Improvement Plans
Required for any project that includes a modification of a property line, the division of land, the construction of a new building, or 
the expansion of an existing building footprint, except for single-family dwellings and projects that only require Design Review due 
to the zone district or due to substandard lot.   

Survey prepared by a licensed surveyor that includes: the footprints of existing buildings and retaining walls on the site,
fully dimensioned public right-of-way improvements for both sides of the adjacent streets showing accurate locations for 
existing and proposed facilities such as streets, curbs, sidewalks, street trees, utility poles, electroliers, traffic signals, storm 
sewers, sanitary sewers, fire hydrants, median islands, project driveways, driveways on adjacent street frontages, bus 
stops, drainage inlets, and manholes.  

7. Topographic Map Required for any lot with slopes 10% or greater and prepared by a licensed surveyor.
Clearly differentiate 30% to 49% slope areas and 50% or greater slope areas with shading or cross-hatching.
Provide gross lot area and net lot area.
For lots with slopes greater than 30% the topographic map must show all proposed improvements and existing buildings
and structures to remain.

8. Floor Plan(s) (1/4”=1’ scale)
Total gross floor area
Total square footage of leasable floor area
Room labels for each room
Identify existing walls to remain (solid line), existing walls to be removed (dashed line), and new walls (bold/colored solid
line)
Seating areas with tables and chairs for commercial restaurants

9. Elevations (1/4”=1’ scale) Required for all sides of buildings.
Building heights
Existing and proposed grade lines.
Exterior materials and colors. A full color and materials board is required for projects that require Planning Commission or
City Council approval.
Vertical or diagonal setback lines, if project subject to a setback/height ratio.
Finished floor and top of plate elevations

10. Context
The following materials are required for all projects with the exception of single-family residential development on residentially-
zoned, standard-sized parcels that meet all of the site development standards for the zone district or as permitted by front yard 
averaging.  

One schematic streetscape elevation illustrating building height and mass in relationship to both structures on either side of
the applicant’s property, if applicable. The schematic elevation may be a single-line drawing at a scale of 1/8” = 1’ and 
must include building height and roof pitch. (See attached examples) 
Detailed rendering of the project with accurate site context. An accurate depiction of the structure(s) superimposed on the
project site in the proposed location either as a photosimulation or rendering. Include both structures on each side of the 
applicant’s property, accurate streetscape improvements, topography, and trees/landscaping. The rendering must 
accurately reflect the location, height, and design of the structure(s) and improvements, as shown on the final set of plans 
proposed for approval.   

11. Landscape Plan
Required for all projects that include front or exterior side yard open space area. Include planting plan (location, common and 
botanical name, container size, and quantity), paving, exterior lighting, fences/walls, screening, existing trees and vegetation. The 
landscape plan may be subject to the City’s Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance. 

4.65



12. Building and Site Sections (See attached example)
Required for all projects involving new multi-family residential, commercial or industrial development, or any development
proposing stepped or terraced buildings. Building Sections that include existing and finished grades, building height
measured from finished grade to the midpoint of the roofline, except finished floor elevations, and ceiling height.
Street Cross Section including the proposed improvements on the subject property, the accurate width of the right of way,
and structures/improvements on the opposite site of the street.
Site Cross Sections that include the proposed improvements on the subject property and the two adjacent parcels and
improvements on either side of the property. The cross section should be through the tallest element of the building.

13. Roof Plan
Include roof dimensions, shape, pitch, and location, size, and screening of all exterior mechanical equipment.
Include locations of all new downspouts and show if they will be connected to drainage piping or disconnected to
downspouts.

14. Demolition Plan
Identify existing structures and their uses and show structures to be removed in dashed lines.
Investigative demolition is required for all projects that include the demolition of exterior walls on a nonconforming structure
to ensure that the walls proposed to remain in place are in good condition and are structurally safe to remain. Investigative
demolition shall be completed by a California licensed structural engineer and shall include a report prepared by the
engineer detailing the process, results/conclusions, and recommendations.

15. Stormwater and LID Assessment Checklist
The appropriate Stormwater and LID Assessment Checklist (Appendix A of the City’s Best Management Practices Manual Stormwater 
BMP’s) must be completed and submitted with all projects: http://www.cityofsantacruz.com/LID 

16. Preliminary Grading Plan (1”=10’ minimum scale)
A grading plan, prepared by a licensed civil engineer, is required if project includes over 50 cubic yards of grading. Over 
excavation and recompaction does not in itself require the submittal of a separate grading plan. Grading plan shall include: 

Cut and fill quantities and typical cross sections
Limits of grading
Existing and proposed contours. Contour interval shall be two feet for slopes up to 20% and 5 feet for slopes over 20%.
Details and sections for new retaining walls including top and bottom of wall elevations, type of material, drainage for
walls, temporary over excavation limits, type of wall construction.

17. Shadow Study
Diagram for new multi-family residential, commercial and industrial development that clearly demonstrates shading effects on 
adjacent properties. Shadow study shall include the following: 

Winter/Summer shadow lines at 9:00 am, noon, and 3:00 pm on June 21st and December 21st.
All structures on adjacent properties.
Height and number of stories of adjacent structures.

18. Wall Section(s)
Required for projects that include new buildings or additions for multi-family residential, commercial, or industrial uses. 

Show roof parapet, window recesses, trim details, wall treatments, etc.

19. Details of Exterior Architectural Elements
Show canopies, balconies, parapets, trim, doors, eaves, reveals, soffits, returns, finish materials, recesses, etc. 

20. Storm Water Control Plan
See attached form 

21. Preliminary Engineered Improvement Plans
Required for all large multi-family projects, for projects where street improvements are proposed within a public right-of-way, 
and/or for projects where off-site improvements will be necessary. The preliminary engineered improvement plan shall be prepared 
by a licensed civil engineer and shall include: 

Drainage details and calculations
Circulation: Circulation details including points of ingress and egress; existing right-of-way (full street) and proposed right-
of-way, utilizing guidelines established by the Public Works Department.

4.66



22. Historic Evaluation
Prepared by a qualified historian for additions and remodels on parcels that are listed in the City’s Historic Building Survey or that 
are located in a designated Historic District.  

23. Sign Plans
Required for all projects that include new signs subject to approval of a Sign Permit. 

Site plan including property boundaries, existing buildings/structures, landscaping and parking areas, proposed sign
locations. 
Elevations including sign locations, building height, and building and/or tenant space width for wall signs.
Sign Design including size (area and key dimensions), materials, size, colors, and lettering.
Attachment/Mounting Details/Sections
Lighting Specifications/Details/Sections
Photographs of existing signs and proposed sign locations as needed)

24. Use Information
Required for projects that include uses subject to approval of a Use Permit. 

Total gross floor area of building and tenant space measured to the exterior of the walls and including all areas of the
building such as corridors/hallways, bathrooms, storage areas, etc. 
Labels for each room
Identify all tenant improvements. Existing walls to remain shall be identified by a solid line, existing walls to be removed
shall be identified by a dashed line, and new walls  shall be identified by a bold/colored solid line
Seating areas with the accurate number of tables and chairs proposed for new restaurants.
Location of existing and proposed grease traps and vent ducts.
A copy of the menu for new food service facilities with alcohol service.
Design details and dimensions for new or existing extension seating areas.
Operations Narrative: Indicate the hours of operation, number of employees, frequency and type of commercial vehicles
entering and exiting the site per day, potential nuisance features such as nature and extent of noise, smoke, dust, fumes, and
other such features generated by the use and types of controls proposed, list any corrosives, gases or chemical agents which
will be used at the site and the method of storage, handling and disposal of such products, description of live entertainment
proposed and frequency, and ABC license type if alcohol service is proposed.
Food Service Facility Wastewater Discharge Questionnaire
For Community and Day Care Facilities, submit the number and ages of children or adults to be served.

25. Other:_________________________________________________________________________________________________

SUBMIT THE FOLLOWING MATERIALS IF REQUIRED BY THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT: 

Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) Form 523

Prepared by a qualified historian for the demolition of structures that are greater than 50 years old.  

Reason:____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Geotechnical/Soils Report
Prepared by a licensed engineer for: new construction located within 20 feet of a 30% or greater slope; for new multi-family 
residential projects of more than four units located on a mapped high liquefaction area; new commercial, industrial, public, or quasi-
public structures proposed for construction within a mapped high liquefaction areas; and for any new habitable structures located in 
the Coastal Zone seismic hazard area.  

Reason:___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Acoustical Study
Prepared by an acoustic professional for all new development capable of producing noise or exposing residents or commercial 
tenants to noise in excess of the noise standards in the General Plan. The acoustical study shall evaluate existing noise conditions, 
estimate future noise impacts based on the noise level classifications in the General Plan, and recommended noise attenuation 
methods. 

Reason:___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

4.67



 
 Traffic Impact Study (TIS) 

City Staff will determine a need for and level of TIS based on an initial assessment of the transportation attributes, motor vehicle traffic 
generation, and parking generation of the proposed project.  A TIS will be required if a proposed project disrupts existing pedestrian, 
bicycle, or transit circulation.  Projects that are estimated to generate 50 or more vehicle trips during the p.m. peak hour require a TIS.  At 
a minimum the parking component of a TIS will be required for any project not meeting the City parking requirement for parking.  
See Transportation Impact Study Guidelines.* 

Reason:___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Arborist Report  
Prepared by a certified arborist for projects that include the removal of heritage tree or that include land disturbance within 10-
feet of the trunk of a heritage tree on the subject or adjacent property. The arborist report should include a full tree survey of the 
site, identification of heritage trees, and recommendations for removal and mitigation or preservation.  

Reason:___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Archaeological Report (see list of archaeological consultants) 
Prepared by a qualified archaeologist for projects located within areas that are mapped as highly sensitive for archaeological 
resources and for sites that are mapped as sensitive for archaeological resources and include projects that are not eligible for an 
exemption.  

Reason:___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Biotic Report (see list of biological consultants) 
Prepared by a qualified biologist for all projects that are mapped for sensitive species/habitats or for land disturbance adjacent to 
a creek, wetland, or other mapped watercourse.  

Reason:___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Geologic Investigation  
Prepared by a qualified professional and consistent with the California Division of Mines and Geology guidelines for all 
development proposed within one hundred feet of a coastal bluff 

Reason:___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Notice of Violation  
A Notice of Violation has been issued and requires the timely submittal of information to determine if unpermitted work can be 
retained. The following additional information is required: 

Reason:___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

SUBMIT THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL FORMS: 
 Form 2 Project Design Data   Form 10 Demolition – Conversion Authorization Permit 
 Form 3 Multi-Tenant Parking Matrix   Form 11 Coastal Permit  

 Form 4 Use Permit   Form 12 Amendments  
 Form 5 Variance   Form 13 Subdivisions and Minor Land Divisions 
 Form 6 Conditional Fence Permit   Form 14 Lot Line Adjustment 

 Form 7 Landmark- Historic Alteration  Form 15 Application for Revocable License to Operate Ext. Area 

 Form 8 Relocation of Structures  Form 16 Fee Waiver Supplemental Application 
 Form 9 Residential Allocation  Form 17 Density Bonus  

 

 
  

✔ ✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

4.68



Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application 22-0201
Santa Cruz Climate Action Network and Co-Appellants
Attachment 10.

4.69



Dryad, LLC

35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

21045-40027

January 18, 2022 

Bonnie Lipscomb, Economic Development Director  
City of Santa Cruz 
337 Locust St. 
Santa Cruz  CA  95060 

Re.:  Tree inventory and evaluations. 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 

Ms. Lipscomb; 

I am writing in response to your request for an inventory and evaluations1 of trees relative to pending 
construction for the Downtown Library Project.  WeA inspected2, tagged, measured3, photographedB, GPS-
located4 , and evaluated5 twelve trees on December 20, 2021.  While on site, I also met and discussed the 
project with Leslie Keedy, Santy Cruz Urban Forester.  Ms. Keedy emphasized that preserving trees was 
desirable and that the feasibility of relocating trees should be addressed. 

SUMMARY:  Nine of the twelve trees inspected qualify as protected, Heritage TreesC.  All twelve trees are exotic 
(non-native) and adapted to different environments.  All twelve trees exhibit myriad detrimental conditions and 
although all twelve could be retained on site, I only judged two (nos. 7 & 9 ) as viable candidates for relocation 
based upon their existing condition and longevity potential.  I judged five trees (nos. 4, 7, 9, 10 & 11) as worthy 
of preservation.  The remaining seven trees could be retained on site if extensive preservation and site 
improvements are implemented, but their existing condition renders such efforts questionable. 

The detrimental conditions I observed include the effects of severely restricted growing areas, severe pruning6,
structural7 weaknesses and evidence of past failures, limb and stem8 decay, and buried root collars9, which may 
disguise root disease and resulting decay.   

RECOMMENDATIONS:
1. Before deciding to relocate any trees, judiciously remove surrounding hardscape, excavate buried root 

collars to determine if the roots are sufficient, structurally and architecturally10 sound, and absent of 
disease and/or decay. 

2. For trees to be retained, expand and enhance rooting areas to at least the driplines11 or preferably, the 
fall zones12.

3. Install fencing or other deterrents to pedestrians and traffic surrounding the trees at the driplines or 
preferably the fall zones, to reduce risk from failures13.

4. Consider removing and replacing all twelve trees with sound specimens that will not achieve large size, 
and provide sufficient growing spaces.  

DISCUSSION:  Tree protection and long-term planning is not included in this report, as per the scope of workD,
and I have not reviewed construction plans.  The included tree protection guidelines (page 20) are for reference 
only.  The physiological condition of these trees is typical for mature trees in restricted growing spaces 
surrounded by hardscape and capable of attaining very large size.  Inherent structural and architectural 
weaknesses have not been addressed and/or were enhanced by pruning.  These trees will continue to increase 
in size, exacerbating current conditions.  Many of the conditions observed can be expected to worsen over time. 

                                                      
A

Assistant Arborist:  I was assisted in the field work by Jennifer Tso, Consulting Arborist; ISA Certified Arborist no. WE- 10270A, ISA Tree 
Risk Assessment Qualified.  J. Tso is an employee pf Traverso Tree Care, Inc., under contract with, and not an employee of, Dryad, LLC. 
B

The photographs in this report are intended to illustrate an overview of each tree.  Additional photographs are on file at the office of Dryad, 
LLC.
C

City of Santa Cruz Municipal Code, Title 9 Peace, Safety and Morals, Chapter 9.56 Preservation of Heritage Trees and Heritage Shrubs.
D

Dryad, LLC proposal dated 11/18/2021.

ile on site, I also met and discussed the ile on site, I also met and discussed the 
.  Ms. Keedy emphasized that preserving trees was .  Ms. Keedy emphasized that preserving trees was 

locating trees should be addressed. 

  Nine of the twelve trees inspected qualify as protected, Heritage Trees  Nine of the twelve trees inspected qualify as protected, Heritage TreesC.  All twelve trees are exotic 
twelve trees exhibit myriad detrimental conditions and twelve trees exhibit myriad detrimental conditions and 

udged two (nos. 7 & 9 ) as viable candidates for relocation udged two (nos. 7 & 9 ) as viable candidates for relocation 
ongevity potential.  I judged five trees (nos. 4, 7, 9, 10 & 11) as worthy ongevity potential.  I judged five trees (nos. 4, 7, 9, 10 & 11) as worthy 

of preservation.  The remaining seven trees could be of preservation.  The remaining seven trees could be retained on site if extensive preservation and site retained on site if extensive preservation and site 
improvements are implemented, but their existing condition renders such efforts questionable. condition renders such efforts questionable. 

The detrimental conditions I observed include the effects The detrimental conditions I observed include the effects of severely restricted growing areas, severe pruningof severely restricted growing areas, severe pruning
 weaknesses and evidence of past failures, limb and stem weaknesses and evidence of past failures, limb and stem8

of severely restricted growing areas, severe pruning

disguise root disease and resulting decay.   disguise root disease and resulting decay.   

1. Before deciding to relocate any trees, judiciously remove surrounding hardscape, excavate buried root 1. Before deciding to relocate any trees, judiciously remove surrounding hardscape, excavate buried root 
collars to determine if the roots are collars to determine if the roots are sufficient, structurally and architecturallysufficient, structurally and architecturally
disease and/or decay. 

2. For trees to be retained, expand and enhance rooting areas to at least the driplines2. For trees to be retained, expand and enhance rooting areas to at least the driplines

3. Install fencing or other deterrents to pedestrians and traffic surrounding the trees at the driplines or 3. Install fencing or other deterrents to pedestrians and traffic surrounding the trees at the driplines or 
preferably the fall zones, to reduce risk from failurespreferably the fall zones, to reduce risk from failures

4. Consider removing and replacing a

4.70



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 2 of 23

Significant issues are as follows: 
 Decline (thin canopy, chlorotic foliage with tip dieback)14

 Insufficient rooting area and encroaching hardscape 
 Absence of organic mulch15 soil cover 
 Excess soil over root collars 
 Weak, generally irreparable structure 
 Poor architecture10

 Poor pruning technique (e.g., overpruning, lion-tail pruning16 , excessive raising17 ,thinning18, inattention 
to structure, etc.)6

In my opinion, it is ill advised to retain these trees on site unless extensive design accommodation can be 
undertaken to both enhance their growing conditions and reduce risk.  Increasing the rooting areas, free of 
hardscape and with an organic mulch cover, is critical to improving physiological condition.  Fencing trees at 
least at the driplines or preferably, at the perimeters of fall zones, can reduce the risk of failures and resulting 
injury or damage.  Judicious pruning may improve structure and can reduce but not eliminate the risk of future 
failures.

Pruning:  Pruning is not a health treatment and trees and shrubs do not need to be pruned to thrive.  
Excessive, inappropriate and/or unnecessary pruning is detrimental to plant health.  Foliage density is critical to 
tree/plant health.  While acknowledging that aesthetic preferences or practical needs (clearance, structural 
improvement, etc.) may necessitate pruning, it is critical that the minimum pruning be performed that is 
necessary to achieve the goal.  Unnecessary and/or excessive pruning (e.g., thinning, raising) results in tree 
stress and structural weaknesses.  Lion-tailing and raising for clearance can result in poor stem and branch 
taper and eventually, failures (refer to images, page 7).  In all cases, pruning should target improving tree 
structure.  Removal of significant branches should be avoided, with the preference being multiple small cuts or 
branch reduction over removal of an entire branch. 

Rooting area:  Many trees appear to thrive in planters or when surrounded with hardscape to within a few feet 
of their trunks.  However, as trees grow, an increasing rooting area is required to provide sufficient moisture, 
nutrients, and to allow for physiological processes.  Hardscape precludes percolation of rainfall into the soil, 
interferes with root aeration and the often compacted base material inhibits root development.  Soil 
compaction19 also results from pedestrian and vehicular traffic.  While adequate mulching provides some 
protection, fencing or other barriers protecting root zones is preferable.  Dense groundcovers and turf are heavy 
competitors for trees, and often require maintenance (e.g., mowing) that results in tree damage. 

Mulch:  If planting spaces can be enlarged and/or trees are relocated, a layer of organic mulch, whether natural 
or installed, is critical to maintain soil moisture, moderate soil temperatures, enhance soil biology and reduce 
erosion.  I strongly recommend installing and maintaining mulch to a settled depth of 3-4”.  Allowing natural 
mulch to accumulate over the years will reduce the need to maintain the mulch cover. 

Excess soil over root collars :  This condition likely resulted from planting nursery stock too deeply.  The soil 
may cover root structural issues or disease that may in some cases, prove irreparable.  It is critical that root 
collar exposure and inspection20 be performed both to discover rooting structural problems, and to discover or 
prevent root disease.  I recommend that buried root collars of any trees to be retained or transplanted first be 
excavated and inspected. 

Transplanting (relocating):  It is my opinion that mature trees proposed for relocation should exhibit high vigor, 
desirable architecture, strong structure, and be free of significant disease and decay.  Under the best of 
circumstances, transplanting is severely traumatic on tree physiology and weak trees are likely to decline over 
time.  Trees at risk of decline or structural failure are poor candidates for relocation.  I also do not recommend 
relocation where operations would result in either an undersized rootball or damage to adjacent trees. 

  Pruning is not a health treatment and trees and shrubs do not need to be pruned to thrive.    Pruning is not a health treatment and trees and shrubs do not need to be pruned to thrive.  
 unnecessary pruning is detrimental to plant health.  Foliage density is critical to ant health.  Foliage density is critical to 

eferences or practical needs (clearance, structural eferences or practical needs (clearance, structural 
itical that the minimum pritical that the minimum pruning be performed that is uning be performed that is 

ssive pruning (e.g., thinning, raising) results in tree ssive pruning (e.g., thinning, raising) results in tree 
-tailing and raising for -tailing and raising for clearance can result inclearance can result in

taper and eventually, failures (refer to images, page 7).  In all cases, pruning should target improving tree taper and eventually, failures (refer to images, page 7).  In all cases, pruning should target improving tree 
anches should be avoided, with the prefanches should be avoided, with the preference being multiple small cuts or 

branch reduction over removal of an entire branch. 

  Many trees appear to thrive in planters or when surrounded with hardscape to within a few feet   Many trees appear to thrive in planters or when surrounded with hardscape to within a few feet 
of their trunks.  However, as trees grow, an increasing rooting area is required to provide sufficient moisture, of their trunks.  However, as trees grow, an increasing rooting area is required to provide sufficient moisture, 
nutrients, and to allow for physiological processes.  Hanutrients, and to allow for physiological processes.  Hardscape precludes percolation of rainfall into the soil, rdscape precludes percolation of rainfall into the soil, 
interferes with root aeration and the often compacinterferes with root aeration and the often compacted base material inhibits root development.  Soil ted base material inhibits root development.  Soil 

 also results from pedestrian and vehicular traffic.  While adequate mulching provides some  also results from pedestrian and vehicular traffic.  While adequate mulching provides some 
protection, fencing or other barriers protection, fencing or other barriers protecting root zones is preferable. protecting root zones is preferable. 
competitors for trees, and often require maintenacompetitors for trees, and often require maintenance (e.g., mowing) that results in tree damage. nce (e.g., mowing) that results in tree damage. 

 If planting spaces can be enlarged and/or trees are re If planting spaces can be enlarged and/or trees are re
or installed, is critical to maintain soil moistureor installed, is critical to maintain soil moisture, moderate soil temperatures, enhance soil biology and reduce 
erosion.  I strongly recommend instaerosion.  I strongly recommend installing and maintaining mulch to a settled lling and maintaining mulch to a settled 

he years will reduce the need to

4.71



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 3 of 23

Tree Location Diagram 
For location only; not to scale.  Modified 
from a Google earth® aerial image.  

4.72



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 4 of 23

SUMMARIES OF TREE DATA AND EVALUATIONS:

Data Summaries Quantity Ratio Descriptions/Comments 

Total trees inventoried 12 100% All trees within the construction zone 

Heritage trees 9 75% As defined by City of Santa Cruz³ ( 14"" dia.) 
(nos. 1-4, 6, 9-12) 

Trees not protected 3 25% As defined by City of Santa Cruz (<14" dia.) 

Trees to retain & protect 5 42% Management codes A & B (nos. 4, 7, 9-11) 

Trees that are of poor condition but can be retained 7 67% Management code C (nos. 1-3, 5, 6, 8, 12) 

Trees that are transplant viable 2 17% Tree nos. 7 & 9 

Trees recommended for removal  0 0% Management code D 

Management Codes Quantity Ratio Definitions/Comments 

A 0 0% Preserve, condition warrants long-term 
preservation. 

B 5 42% Preserve, specific maintenance recommended. 

C 7 58% Preservable, but not worthy of extensive effort 
or design accommodation. 

D 0 0% Remove due to existing condition. 

Species Variation & Ratio 4  - - - Species variation on site.  

Common Name Quantity Ratio Botanical Name (Genus-species) 

Chinese pistache 4 33% Pistache chinensis 

Maidenhair tree 1 8% Ginkgo biloba 

Southern magnolia 5 42% Magnolia grandiflora 

Sweetgum 2 17% Liquidambar styraciflua 

5 42% Preserve, specific maintenance recommended. 5 42% Preserve, specific maintenance recommended. 

3 25% As defined by City of Santa Cruz (<14" dia.) 3 25% As defined by City of Santa Cruz (<14" dia.) 

5 42% Manag5 42% Management codes A & B (nos. 4, 7, 9-11) 

7 67% Management code C (nos. 1-3, 5, 6, 8, 12) 7 67% Management code C (nos. 1-3, 5, 6, 8, 12) 

2 17% Tree nos. 7 & 9 2 17% Tree nos. 7 & 9 

0 0% Management code D 0 0% Management code D 

Quantity Ratio 

0 0% 0 0% 

7 58% 7 58% 

4.73



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 5 of 23

TREE INVENTORY DATA & EVALUATIONS:

No. 
Common 

name 
Genus-species 

Trunk diameter Canopy 
Hgt. 

Heritage 
status 

Mgt.
code 

Transplant
viable 

Observations/Comments 
1 2 3 N E S W

1
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 20.5 17 18 19 14 27 Yes C No 

Codominant stems and major limbs 
Many weak acute-angle attachments21

Evidence of previous limb failures 
Bacterial exudant22 present 
Twig growth stunted23 and tip dieback 
Pruning:  raised and lion-tailed; many large 
pruning cuts 
Restricted rooting area 
(Diameter measured at ~30" above grade) 

2
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 20.5 20 22 0 0 30 Yes C No 

Codominant stems and major limbs 
Many weak acute-angle attachments 
Evidence of previous limb failures 
Twig growth stunted and tip dieback 
Pruning:  raised and lion-tailed; many large 
pruning cuts 
(Diameter measured at ~36" above grade) 

3
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 21.5 17.5 13 14 23 18 41 Yes C No 

Codominant stems and major limbs 
Cable installed between primary stems 
Some weak acute-angle attachments 
Evidence of previous limb failures 
Bacterial exudant present 
Twig growth stunted 
Pruning:  raised and lion-tailed; many large 
pruning cuts 
Root pruning apparent 
(Diameter measured at ~36" above grade) 

4
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 33.0 21.5 27 23 22 29 42 Yes B No 

Good architecture other than codominant stems 
Canopy thin, stunted and chlorotic with tip dieback 
Pruning:  raised and lion-tailed; many large 
pruning cuts with decay 
Root pruning apparent 
(Low codominant limb measured 16" diameter) 

27 Yes 27 Yes 

30 Yes 30 Yes 30 Yes 

14 18

23

4.74



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 6 of 23

No. 
Common 

name 
Genus-species 

Trunk diameter Canopy 
Hgt. 

Heritage 
status 

Mgt.
code 

Transplant
viable 

Observations/Comments 
1 2 3 N E S W

5
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 13.5 12.5 12.0 19 18 15 16 26 No C No 

Codominant stems and major limbs 
Many weak acute-angle attachments 
Evidence of previous limb failures and one 
currently splitting 
Bacterial exudant present 
Twig growth stunted 
One stem has a large, decaying necrotic24 area 
near the base 
Pruning:  raised and lion-tailed; many large 
pruning cuts 
Surface roots damaged (bark missing) 
(Diameter of stem 1 measured at ~48" above 
grade) 

6
Chinese
pistache

Pistachia chinensis 14.0 13 5 9 14 28 Yes C No 

Foliage dense and twig growth vigorous 
Poor architecture (few lateral limbs/top-heavy) 
Evidence of major branch failures 
Pruning:  raised 
Extremely small rooting space 

7
Chinese
pistache

Pistachia chinensis 8.0 11 13 13 11 21 No B Yes 
Foliage dense and twig growth vigorous 
Pruning:  raised and lion-tailed 
Extremely small rooting space 

8
Chinese
pistache

Pistachia chinensis 12.5 9 11 10 14 29 No C No 

Foliage dense and twig growth vigorous 
Poor architecture (few lateral limbs/top-heavy) 
Pruning:  raised and lion-tailed, topped 
Buried root collar, extremely small rooting space 

9
Chinese
pistache

Pistachia chinensis 17.5 13 16 17 17 28 Yes B Yes 

Foliage dense and twig growth vigorous 
Poor architecture (few lateral limbs/top-heavy) 
Pruning:  raised and lion-tailed 
Buried root collar, extremely small rooting space 

10 Sweetgum 
Liquidambar 
styraciflua 

34.0 20 20 17 16 66 Yes B No 

Foliage dense and twig growth vigorous 
Poor architecture (few lateral limbs/top-heavy) 
Evidence of a major branch failures 
Pruning:  raised, lion-tailed and thinned 
Small rooting space 

11 Sweetgum 
Liquidambar 
styraciflua 

28.0 19 17 16 18 68 Yes B No 

Numerous codominant stems and limbs, many 
with weak, acute-angle attachments 
Pruning:  raised, lion-tailed and thinned 
Small rooting space 
(Diameter measured at ~36" above grade) 

12 Maidenhair tree Ginkgo biloba 17.0 3 0 8 8 22 Yes C No 

Poor architecture 
Topped 
Entire canopy headed (stubbed) 
Buried root collar, extremely small rooting space 

26 No 26 No 

28 Yes 28 Yes 28 Yes 

13 13 21 No 21 No 

14

17

20

4.75



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 7 of 23

TREE IMAGES:  Numbers refer to tree identification tags. 

1

Above right:  Codominant stems with weak, acute-angle 
attachments. 
Below left:  Restricted rooting area. 

4.76



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 8 of 23

Left:  Profuse acute-angle attachments, codominant 
limbs, lion-tail pruning, excessive thinning. 
Below right: Large decaying wound from limb failure. 
Below left:  Decaying wound from past limb failure 
and bacterial exudate. 

1

1

1

4.77



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 9 of 23

23

2

2

2

Above left:  Restricted rooting area and close proximity. 
Above right:  Acute-angle attachments and lion-tail pruning. 
Below left:  Codominant limbs, lion-tail pruning, excessive thinning, 
acute-angle attachments. 
Below right: Large decaying wound from limb failure encompassing 
an acute-angle attachment. 

Restricted rooting area and close proximity. 
 Acute-angle attachments and lion-tail pruning. 

 Codominant limbs, lion-tail pruning, excessive thinning, 
acute-angle attachments. 

Large decaying wound from limb failure encompassing 
an acute-angle attachment. 

4.78



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 10 of 23

3

3

3

2

Below and above right:  Codominant stems 
with acute-angle attachment. 
Below right:  Decayed flush cut and acute-angle 
attachments. 

4.79



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 11 of 23

4 4

All images:  Restricted rooting area and extensive root 
pruning.  Codominant stems and major limbs. 

4
4

4.80



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 12 of 23

Above:  Tip dieback, thin canopy. 
Below right:  Large, decayed pruning cuts.

4

4

4

4

Above:  Tip dieback, thin canopy. 
Below right:  Large, decayed pruning cuts.

4.81



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 13 of 23

5

Above middle:  Codominant stems with weak attachments.
Above right:  Large decaying wound on stem. 
Below left:  Decaying wounds from past limb failures. 
Below right:  Actively splitting acute-angle attachment. 

Codominant stems with weak attachments.
Large decaying wound on stem. 

Decaying wounds from past limb failures. 
 Actively splitting acute-angle attachment. 

4.82



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 14 of 23

6

6

7

7

Above:  Buried root collar and restricted growing space. 
Above right: Area of two major limb failures, i.e., poor remaining 
architecture. 
Below left:  Poor but manageable architecture; excessive pruning. 
Below right:  Buried root collar and restricted growing space. 

6
Buried root collar and restricted growing space. 

Area of two major limb failures, i.e., poor remaining 

Poor but manageable architecture; excessive pruning. 
 Buried root collar and restricted growing space. 

4.83



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 15 of 23

8

Above:  Poor architecture, overpruning and restricted growing space. 
Above right:  Poor architecture, heading (topping) cuts. 
Below right:  Buried root collar and restricted growing space. 

8

8

8

 Poor architecture, overpruning and restricted growing space. 
Poor architecture, heading (topping) cuts. 

4.84



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 16 of 23

Above:  Poor architecture, overpruning and restricted 
growing space. 
Left:  Buried root collar and restricted growing space. 

9

9

9

4.85



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 17 of 23

10
11

10

1010

10

11

Upper right:  Profuse acute-angle attachments, 
codominant limbs, lion-tail pruning, excessive thinning. 
Below:  Restricted growing space. 

Upper right:  Profuse acute-angle attachments, 
codominant limbs, lion-tail pruning, excessive thinning. 
Below:  Restricted growing space. 

4.86



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 18 of 23

11

11

11

Right:  Profuse acute-angle attachments, codominant 
limbs, lion-tail pruning, excessive thinning. 
Below:  Restricted growing space. 

4.87



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 19 of 23

12

Above:  Topped and headed throughout the canopy, all 
limbs removed on building side.  Severe pruning has 
destroyed the structure and architecture of this tree. 
Right: Restricted growing space. 

12

 Topped and headed throughout the canopy, all 
limbs removed on building side.  Severe pruning has 

4.88



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 

PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 
FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

Dryad, LLC

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 20 of 23

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION SITE TREE PRESERVATION GUIDELINES
(Not site or entity-specific) 

1. Tree Protection Zone25:
a. The Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) should consist of the largest possible area surrounding trees to be 

preserved that can remain undisturbed.  Ideally, an area of 1.5 times the longest dripline radius 
(measured from the trunk).  Alternatively, follow the TPZ guidelines as described in the most recent 
version of current industry standards and best management practices publications26. The TPZ can be 
continuous for trees with overlapping driplines. 

b. Surround the TPZ with protective fencing. 
i. Fencing should consist of chain link, at least 6 feet in height, surrounding the perimeter of the TPZ 

designated distance or beyond.   
ii. Anchor fence posts into the soil (i.e., do not use portable footings). 
iii. Protective fencing should remain in place until all grading and construction is complete. 

c. Do not allow vehicles, equipment, pedestrian traffic, building materials, debris storage, or disposal of 
phytotoxic27 materials inside of the fenced-off areas (TPZ). 

2. Mulching and irrigation: 
a. Soil moisture: 

i. Determine the status of soil moisture to a depth of 18-24” below grade within the dripline of all 
(each) trees to be preserved, via tensiometer, granular matrix sensor or manual soil probing. 

ii. Irrigate as/if necessary, via slow-application (drip) irrigation, to achieve approximately field 
capacity28 to a depth of 12-18”. 

b. Mulch: Cover exposed soil within all TPZ's with an organic mulch to a settled depth of no less than 3-4 
inches. 

3. Excavation, root pruning & repair: 
a. Excavation and root pruning should be performed by a Tree Worker currently certified by the 

International Society of Arboriculture (ISA Excavation and root pruning should be directly supervised by 
an arborist currently credentialed as at least one of the following: 
i. Certified Arborist by the ISA, 
ii. Board Certified Master Arborist by the ISA, 
iii. Registered Consulting Arborist by the American Society of Consulting Arborists (ASCA). 

b. Determine and mark (marking paint and stakes) the outside edge (towards trees) of required 
excavation, and adjacent to/surrounding any excavations within an area 1.5 times the dripline radius of 
trees to be preserved (or at large an area as feasible). 

c. Excavate a trench approximately 6-12" beyond the area to be disturbed (towards tree), or where roots 
have been damaged, to a depth of at least 18”, by hand excavation29 or with specialized hydraulic30 or 
pneumatic31 equipment. 
i. Wherever possible, relocate excavations or tunnel beneath encountered roots >1” in diameter. 
ii. Cut encountered roots cleanly with hand pruners or power saw.  Avoid tearing, dislodging of bark 

(or epidermis) or otherwise disturbing that portion of the root(s) to remain. 
iii. Immediately back-fill with soil to cover, and moisten. 
iv. If backfilling cannot be completed immediately, cover exposed roots with several layers of untreated 

burlap (or other similar absorbent material) or sand, mulch or soil and keep moist until permanent 
backfilling can be completed. 

d. Future excavations within the TPZ:   
i. If possible, relocate any future excavations (irrigation, landscape features, etc.) outside the TPZ and 

perimeter of previously pruned roots.
ii. If encroachment is required within the TPZ, endeavor to avoid pruning roots by tunneling beneath.
iii. If relocation or tunneling is not possible, handle any required root pruning as previously described.

4. Tree care and maintenance work: (pruning, cabling/bracing32, root pruning, etc.)
a. All tree care or maintenance work:  

i. All tree care work should be performed by a Tree Worker currently certified by the International 
Society of Arboriculture (ISA) or a current ISA Certified Arborist. 

ii. All tree care work should be directly supervised by an arborist currently credentialed as at least one 
of the following: 

h of 18-24” below grade within the dripline of all h of 18-24” below grade within the dripline of all 
granular matrix sensor or manual soil probing. granular matrix sensor or manual soil probing. 
rip) irrigation, to achieve approximately field rip) irrigation, to achieve approximately field 

b. Mulch: Cover exposed soil within all TPZ's with b. Mulch: Cover exposed soil within all TPZ's with an organic mulch to a settled depth of no less than 3-4 an organic mulch to a settled depth of no less than 3-4 

a. Excavation and root pruning should be performed by a Tree Worker currenta. Excavation and root pruning should be performed by a Tree Worker current
International Society of Arboriculture (ISA ExcavatiInternational Society of Arboriculture (ISA Excavation and root pruning should be on and root pruning should be 
an arborist currently credentialed as at least one of the following: an arborist currently credentialed as at least one of the following: 

st by the ISA, 
 Arborist by the ISA,  Arborist by the ISA, 

iii. Registered Consulting Arboriiii. Registered Consulting Arborist by the American Society ofst by the American Society of
b. Determine and mark (marking paint and stakesb. Determine and mark (marking paint and stakes) the outside edge (towards trees) of required ) the outside edge (towards trees) of required 

excavation, and adjacent to/surrounding any excavationsexcavation, and adjacent to/surrounding any excavations
trees to be preserved (or at large an area as feasible). trees to be preserved (or at large an area as feasible). 

c. Excavate a trench approximately 6-12" beyond the c. Excavate a trench approximately 6-12" beyond the 
have been damaged, to a depth of have been damaged, to a depth of at least 18”, by hand excavationat least 18”, by hand excavation

 equipment.  equipment. 
i. Wherever possible, relocate excavations or i. Wherever possible, relocate excavations or 
ii. Cut encountered roots cleanly with hand pruners or

4.89



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 

PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 
FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

Dryad, LLC

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 21 of 23

(1) Certified Arborist by the ISA, 
(2) Board Certified Master Arborist by the ISA, 
(3) Registered Consulting Arborist by the American Society of Consulting Arborists (ASCA) 

b. All tree care or maintenance work should be performed in accordance with current industry standards33.
c. Tree pruning: 

i. Avoid pruning that removes green foliage or live wood immediately before, during or within 2-3 
years after construction.   

ii. Prune to remove large deadwood only, or the minimum required for clearance purposes, in 
accordance with current pruning standards34.

5. Post-construction: 
a. Avoid pruning that removes live foliage for several years after construction.  Perform only that pruning 

that is necessary for clearance purposes. 
b. Arrange for periodic (biannual) inspection of the condition of the trees by a competent Consulting 

Arborist, and treatment of damaging conditions (insects, diseases, nutrient deficiencies, soil moisture, 
etc.), as they occur, or as deemed appropriate by the consultant for effective management. 

© Copyright Dryad, LLC, 2022 

Please feel free to contact me with questions or comments. 

Respectfully, 

Torrey Young         
Registered Consulting Arborist 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist, no. 282 
ISA Board Certified Master Arborist, no. WE-0131BM 
CUFC Certified Urban Forester, no. 121 
ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified (TRAQ) 
ASCA Tree & Plant Appraisal Qualified (TPAQ) 
CA Contractors License no. 363372 (C-27 & D-49; inactive)

Please feel free to contact me with questions or comments. Please feel free to contact me with questions or comments. 

Torrey Young         Torrey Young         
Registered Consulting Arborist Registered Consulting Arborist 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist, no. 282 ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist, no. 282 
ISA Board Certified Master Arborist, no. WE-0131BM ISA Board Certified Master Arborist, no. WE-0131BM 
CUFC Certified Urban Forester, no. 121 CUFC Certified Urban Forester, no. 121 
ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified (TRAQ) ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified (TRAQ) 
ASCA Tree & Plant Appraisal Qualified (TPAQ) ASCA Tree & Plant Appraisal Qualified (TPAQ) 

(C-27 & D-49; inactive)

4.90



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 

PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 
FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

Dryad, LLC

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 22 of 23

ENDNOTES:
                                                      
1

This project and report does not include a tree protection plan, as it was not included in the scope of work (Dryad, LLC proposal dated 
11.18.21).  Construction plans were neither reviewed nor provided. 
2

Inspection limitations:  The inspection of these trees consisted solely of a visual inspection from the ground.  While more thorough 
techniques are available for inspection and evaluation, they were not requested and/or not considered necessary or appropriate at the time.  
3

Height, distance and/or diameter measurements:  Diameters were measured via calculating diameter tape measurement of 
circumference.  Height and distance (canopy) measurements were taken with a laser rangefinder/hypsometer (TruPulse 360R or OptiLogic
LH400).  If measured, the reported height was averaged from several sets of measurements.  Where tree trunks or views were obstructed or 
inaccessible, either or both heights and diameters may have been estimated. 
4

GPS data:  GPS (Global Positioning System) data was collected with a Garmin 64 or 64st GPS device, described by the manufacturers as 
accurate to within 9 meters.  Accuracy may vary because of weather, canopy cover, etc.  This data is intended only to assist with tree 
location and is not intended to be of survey precision.  
5

Arborist Disclosure Statement:  Arborists are tree specialists who use their education, knowledge training and experience to examine 
trees, recommend measures to enhance their health and beauty and to attempt to reduce the risk of living near trees.  Clients may choose 
to accept or disregard the recommendations of the arborist or to seek additional advice.  Trees and other plantlife are living, changing 
organisms affected by innumerable factors beyond our control.  Trees fail in ways and because of conditions we do not fully understand.
Arborists cannot detect or anticipate every condition or event that could possibly lead to the structural failure of a tree.  Conditions are often 
hidden within the trees and below ground.  Arborists cannot guarantee that a tree will be healthy or safe under all circumstances, for any 
specific period or when a tree or its parts may fail.  Further, remedial treatments, as with any treatment or therapy, cannot be guaranteed.  
Treatment, pruning, bracing and removal of trees may involve considerations beyond the scope of the arborists skills and usual services 
such as the boundaries of properties, property ownership, site lines, neighbor disputes and agreements and other issues.  Therefore, 
arborists cannot consider such issues unless complete and accurate information is disclosed in a timely fashion.  Then, the arborist can be 
expected, reasonably, to rely upon the completeness and accuracy of the information provided.  Trees can be managed but not controlled.  
To live near trees, regardless of their condition, is to accept some degree of risk.  Tree removal is the only way to eliminate the risks 
associated with trees.
6

Pruning:  Proper pruning is performed in a manner intended to achieve a specific objective  while minimizing the negative effects on the
plant (tree).  Improper pruning is that which may not be coupled with a specific objective, may not employ techniques consistent with the 
identified objective, or may result in significant negative physiological and/or structural impacts on the plant.
Pruning standards:  The most current revisions of the following standards, developed by a consensus of representatives from various
industry professional organizations;  American National Standards Institute,. Standard Practices for Tree, Shrub and other Woody Plant 
Maintenance (Pruning), American National Standards Institute (ANSI A300 Part 1) and  International Society of Arboriculture, Best
Management Practices, Tree Pruning, International Society of Arboriculture.
7

Structure:  The nature, character, physical integrity and attachments of tree; primarily refers to the wood in limbs, branches, stems 
(trunks) and roots.  
8

Stem:  The primary portion of a plant's supportive and transportive architecture (synonymous with ‘trunk’).
9
Root collar (trunk flare, root flare, root crown):  One of several accepted terms describing the junction of trunk and buttress roots at the 

original soil grade.  Synonymous terms:  root crown, root collar, root flare, trunk flare.
10

Architecture:  For the purposes of this evaluation and/report, the arrangement of the (external) parts of a tree; primarily refers to the 
foliage crown including major (scaffold) limbs, lateral branches and trunks.
11

Dripline area:  The soil area surrounding the tree trunk whose outer perimeter is defined by the unaltered length of the outermost branch 
tips.
12

Fall zone/target zone:  The area where a tree or tree part is likely to land if the tree or parts were to fail.
13

Tree risk:  For the purposes of this evaluation and/report, a tree or tree part that presents a threat to humans, livestock, vehicles, 
structures, landscape features or other entity of civilization from uprooting, falling, breaking or growth development (e.g., roots).  While all 
large landscape trees in proximity to such targets present some degree of risk regardless of their condition, such inherent risk is not 
intended as within this definition and its usage in this evaluation and report.   
14

Decline (in trees):  The deteriorating condition of trees manifested most notably in chlorotic, thinning foliage and dying branch tips and 
entire twigs, branches and/or limbs.  Decline is the deficit condition of various plant cells and tissues (roots, foliage, wood) becoming inactive 
at a faster rate than new tissue can be formed.  Plant/tree decline can be indicative of pending plant death.   
15

Mulch:  Organic materials (e.g., brush chips, compost, processed wood chips, etc.) spread upon the soil for a variety of benefits: 
aesthetics, retains soil moisture, moderates soil temperatures, improves soil structure and increases fertility, protects against compaction, 
suppresses weeds, etc.  Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC highly recommends fresh, brush chip mulch in lieu of processed materials.  (Note: 
elsewhere, the definition of mulch may include non-organic materials).
16

Lion-tail pruning:  An extremely damaging pruning practice that consists of removing the interior lateral branches from individual limbs.  
This practice displaces the distribution of weight to the tips of branches, interferes with the dissipation of energy from wind-stress, 
redistributes (suddenly) the character of limb movement, and changes areas of stress.  It reduces the development of appropriate branch 
taper, interferes with the balance of foliage/wood, and can contribute to the development of watersprouts and sunburned limbs and stems.
Foliage, limb and branch distribution determines the degree of individual limb and stem (trunk) taper.  A lack of sufficient taper results in 
concentration of stress from movement towards the base of the limb or stem and to areas not adapted for such stress, resulting in a greatly 
increased potential for breakage or uprooting.  A lack of symmetry increases movement and resulting stress due to unequal wind resistance.
17

Raising:  Arboricultural term referring to pruning of branches to provide vertical clearance below the crown. (ANSI A300 Standards Part 1 
– Pruning, 2017)

could possibly lead to the structural failure of a tree.  Conditions are often could possibly lead to the structural failure of a tree.  Conditions are often 
antee that a tree will be healthy or safe under all circumstancantee that a tree will be healthy or safe under all circumstanc

specific period or when a tree or its parts may fail.  Further, remedial treatments, as with any treatment or therapy, cannot be guaranteed.  specific period or when a tree or its parts may fail.  Further, remedial treatments, as with any treatment or therapy, cannot be guaranteed.  
trees may involve considerations beyond the scope of the arborists skills and usual the scope of the arborists skills and usual 

such as the boundaries of properties, property ownership, site lines, neighbor disputes and agreemsuch as the boundaries of properties, property ownership, site lines, neighbor disputes and agreements and other issues.  There
arborists cannot consider such issues unless complete and accurate information is arborists cannot consider such issues unless complete and accurate information is disclosed in a timely fashion.  Then, the arbdisclosed in a timely fashion.  Then, the arb
expected, reasonably, to rely upon the completeness and accuracy of the information provided.  expected, reasonably, to rely upon the completeness and accuracy of the information provided.  Trees can be managed but not conTrees can be managed but not con

tion, is to accept some degree of risk.  tion, is to accept some degree of risk.  Tree removal is the only way to eliminateTree removal is the only way to eliminate

intended to achieve a specific objective intended to achieve a specific objective  while minimizing the negative effects on t while minimizing the negative effects on t
ich may not be coupled with a specific objecich may not be coupled with a specific objective, may not employ techniques consisten

 significant negative physiological and/or significant negative physiological and/or structural impacts on the plant. structural impacts on the plant. significant negative physiological and/or
Pruning standards:  The most current revisions of the following standards, developed by a consensus andards, developed by a consensus 

American National Standards Institute,. American National Standards Institute,. Standard Practices for Tree, Shrub and other Woody Plant Standard Practices for Tree, Shrub and other Woody Plant 
, American National Standards Institute (ANSI A300 Part , American National Standards Institute (ANSI A300 Part 1) and  International Society of Arboriculture, 1) and  International Society of Arboriculture, 

International Society of Arboriculture.International Society of Arboriculture.
:  The nature, character, physical integrity and attachments of:  The nature, character, physical integrity and attachments of tree; primarily refers to the wood in limbs, branches, stems  tree; primarily refers to the wood in limbs, branches, stems :  The nature, character, physical integrity and attachments of:  The nature, character, physical integrity and attachments of

:  The primary portion of a plant's supportive and tr:  The primary portion of a plant's supportive and transportive architecture (sansportive architecture (s

Root collar (trunk flare, root flare, root crown):Root collar (trunk flare, root flare, root crown):  One of several accepted terms describing t  One of several accepted terms describing t
original soil grade.  Synonymous terms:  root original soil grade.  Synonymous terms:  root crown, root collar, root flare, trunk flare.crown, root collar, root flare, trunk flare.

:  For the purposes of this evaluation and/report, the arrangement of the (external) parts of a tree; primarily refers to the :  For the purposes of this evaluation and/report, the arrangement of the (external) parts of a tree; primarily refers to the 
foliage crown including major (scaffold)foliage crown including major (scaffold) limbs, lateral branches and trunks. limbs, lateral branches and trunks.

:  The soil area surrounding the tree trunk whose outer perimeter is defined by the unaltered length of the outermost branch :  The soil area surrounding the tree trunk whose outer perimeter is defined by the unaltered length of the outermost branch 

The area where a tree or tree part is likely The area where a tree or tree part is likely 

:  For the purposes of this evaluation and/report, a tree or tr:  For the purposes of this evaluation and/report, a tree or tr
structures, landscape features or other entity of civilization 

4.91



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 

PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 
FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

Dryad, LLC

January 18, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of (Library; Griffin Structures) 
Project/Site:  Downtown Library Project 
Page 23 of 23

                                                                                                                                                                                     
18

Thinning pruning (crown thinning):  An antiquated pruning term that refers to the removal of live branches throughout the tree foliage 
crown (canopy).  Not included as a viable pruning method in current industry standards.
19

Compaction (soil):  An increase in soil bulk density through a process by which the porosity is decreased because of its mineral grains 
being squeezed together.  Compaction can occur intentionally for engineering purposes, or through natural or normal processes such as 
traffic, rainfall, sedimentation, etc.  Insufficient soil porosity is detrimental to plantlife, reducing soil and root aeration and affecting soil 
moisture drainage and retention.
20

Root collar excavation and inspection:  Excavation of the junction of trunk and buttress roots and immediate vicinity below grade for 
the purpose of inspection for biological and structural condition and/or to restore the original grade.  In a mature tree, root collar excavation 
should include clearing excess soil, rocks, planting containers and other debris within at least 24" of the tree base.  Sufficient soil should be 
removed from the tree's root collar region to expose at least 50-75% of the upper circumference of each buttress root, within at least 12-24” 
of the tree trunk.  Soil should be graded in a manner that directs drainage away from the tree base (where possible).  All such excavation 
should be performed by hand, with only the aid of hand tools, or via appropriate pneumatic or hydraulic excavation equipment, in such a 
fashion as to avoid traumatic damage to roots and trunk.  Where indicated, root collar excavations should be performed prior to any other 
required maintenance work.  In the event of discovery of significant root defects (root disease, girdling roots, concave trunk areas, etc.) in 
sizable trees, other maintenance work shall be postponed and such defects reported to the property owner or other proper authority.
21

Acute-angle attachments:  Branch/limb, limb/trunk, or codominant trunks originating at acute angles from each other.  Bark often 
remains between such attachment, preventing the development of a branch-bark ridge (branch collar) or grafting of the parts.  The inherent 
weakness of such attachments increases with time, through the pressure of opposing growth and increasing weight of wood and foliage,
frequently resulting in failure.  
22

Bacterial infection exudates:  Often exhibited as dark liquids or staining of the trunk or limbs along trunks limb and/or from wounds.  
While generally not significantly damaging, continuous fluxing can be indicative of wetwood, which can result in significant necrosis and 
decay. 
23

Twig growth:  The length of annual growth of a twig (smallest branch), measured between the twig tip and the last bud scar; also may 
include measuring previous years’ growth by measuring between bud scars; often used as a generalized measure of tree vigor based upon 
expectations for the species, and also as a rough guide to schedule of impacts or events affecting vigor.
24

Necrosis:  The death of most or all of the cells in tissue of a circumscribed area due to disease, injury, or physiological failures.
25

Tree Protection Zone (TPZ):  A delineated area of the rooting zone of a tree or group of trees to be protected from encroachment by 
construction activities.  Such activities may include excavation or grading, vehicle, equipment and pedestrian traffic; storage of vehicles, 
building materials, soil or debris; or disposal of phytotoxic materials.
26

American National Standards Institute, 2012. Standard Practices for Tree Care Operations - Management of Trees and Shrubs During 
Site Planning, Site Development and Construction (ANSI A300, Part 5, current revision);  International Society of Arboriculture, Best 
Management Practices, Managing Trees During Site Planning, Site Development and Construction (current revision).
27

Phytotoxic (phytotoxin):  Any substance or material capable of killing plant cells, parts or plants in their entirety.
28

Field capacity:  The maximum volume of moisture a soil can hold after drainage has occurred.  An expression of the water-holding 
capacity and moisture status of soils.
29

Hand excavation:  Manual soil excavation via the use of hand tools only.  Use of hand tools for initial excavation should be avoided.  
Hand tools shall not be used in a manner that results in breakage of roots, bark penetration or separation of bark from roots.  Hand tool use 
should be limited to small tools (e.g., spade, trowel) for minor excavations or in restricted spaces.  Picks, mattocks, digging bars or similar 
implements requiring striking the earth shall not be used for excavation.  Hand shovels may be used for minor excavations, or where access 
is limited for vacuum equipment, or hydraulic slurry cannot be flushed out of the excavation.  Such usage shall not result in breakage of 
roots, bark penetration or separation of bark from roots.
30

Hydraulic excavation:  Soil excavation performed using pressurized, focused water via 1) pressure washer, portable fire pump, or 
similar equipment or 2) hydraulic truck-mounted equipment (Hydra-vac).  Equipment should be used at the minimum pressure required to 
remove the soil from around roots and out of the resulting excavation void, without causing breakage of roots, bark penetration or separation 
of bark from roots.
31

Pneumatic excavation:  Soil excavation performed via supersonic compressed air excavation with a tool called an air spade.  This tool 
removes soil from roots (or pipes, wires, etc.) with little or no damage to the roots (or utilities).  Soil is separated and blown away via highly 
focused, supersonic velocity compressed air, which separates the soil particles without penetrating roots.   
32

Cabling & Bracing:  The installation of hardware in and/or about trees for the purpose of providing supplemental support of weak, 
defective or otherwise suspect limbs and/or stems; supporting of newly planted trees; bracing cracks; propping trees or limbs, or otherwise 
providing support.  The installation of cables, bolts and other hardware in trees is intended to reduce the potential for failure
(breakage/uprooting).  Such bracing does not permanently remedy structural weaknesses, and is not a guarantee against failure.  The trees 
and hardware must be inspected periodically for hardware deterioration, adequacy and changes in the tree's and site’s condition.
33

Current industry standards:  The most current and applicable publications of 1) Best Management Practices, International Society of 
Arboriculture; 2) American National Standards Institute, A300 and Z133 (all parts).  
34

Pruning standards:  The following standards were developed by a consensus of representatives from various industry professional 
organizations;  American National Standards Institute, Standard Practices for Tree, Shrub and other Woody Plant Maintenance (Pruning),
American National Standards Institute (ANSI A300 Part 1-current revision)  International Society of Arboriculture, Best Management 
Practices, Tree Pruning, International Society of Arboriculture (current revision) 

© Copyright Dryad, LLC, 2022 

essure of opposing growth and increasing weight of wood and folessure of opposing growth and increasing weight of wood and fol

trunk or limbs along trunks limb and/or from wounds.  trunk or limbs along trunks limb and/or from wounds.  
ontinuous fluxing can be indicative of wetwood, which can result in significant neontinuous fluxing can be indicative of wetwood, which can result in significant ne

:  The length of annual growth of a twig (smallest branch), measured between the twig tip and the last bud scar; also may :  The length of annual growth of a twig (smallest branch), measured between the twig tip and the last bud scar; also may 
by measuring between bud scars; often used by measuring between bud scars; often used as a generalized measure of tree vigor baseas a generalized measure of tree vigor base

de to schedule of impacts or events affecting vigor.de to schedule of impacts or events affecting vigor.
  The death of most or all of the cells in tissue of a circumscribed area due to disease, injury, or physiological failures.  The death of most or all of the cells in tissue of a circumscribed area due to disease, injury, or physiological failures.

  A delineated area of the rooting zone of a tree or   A delineated area of the rooting zone of a tree or group of trees to be protected from encroachment by group of trees to be protected from encroachment by 
activities may include excavation or grading, vactivities may include excavation or grading, vehicle, equipment and pedestrian traffic; storageehicle, equipment and pedestrian traffic; storage

building materials, soil or debris; or disposal of phytotoxic materials.
Standard Practices for Tree Care OperationsStandard Practices for Tree Care Operations

 (ANSI A300, Part 5, current revision);  In (ANSI A300, Part 5, current revision);  In
Managing Trees During Site Planning, SiManaging Trees During Site Planning, Site Development and Construction te Development and Construction 

 Any substance or material c Any substance or material capable of killing plant cells, partsapable of killing plant cells, parts

 The maximum volume of moisture a soil can hold after  The maximum volume of moisture a soil can hold after drainage has occurred.  An expression of the water-holding 

 Manual soil excavation via the use of hand tools only.  Use of hand tools for initial excavation should be avoided.   Manual soil excavation via the use of hand tools only.  Use of hand tools for initial excavation should be avoided.  
Hand tools shall not be used in a manner that results in breakage Hand tools shall not be used in a manner that results in breakage of roots, bark penetration or separation of bark from roots.  Hand tool use of roots, bark penetration or separation of bark from roots.  Hand tool use 
should be limited to small tools (e.g., spade, trowel) for minor exshould be limited to small tools (e.g., spade, trowel) for minor excavations or in restricted spaces.  Picks, mattocks, digging
implements requiring striking the earth shall not be used for excavation.  Hand shovels may be used for minor excavations, or wimplements requiring striking the earth shall not be used for excavation.  Hand shovels may be used for minor excavations, or w
is limited for vacuum equipment, or hydraulic is limited for vacuum equipment, or hydraulic slurry cannot be flushed out of the excavation.  Such usage shall not result in bslurry cannot be flushed out of the excavation.  Such usage shall not result in b
roots, bark penetration or separation of bark from roots.roots, bark penetration or separation of bark from roots.

Soil excavation performed using pressurized, focused waSoil excavation performed using pressurized, focused wa
similar equipment or 2) hydraulic truck-mounted equipment (Hydra-vsimilar equipment or 2) hydraulic truck-mounted equipment (Hydra-v
remove the soil from around roots and out of the resulting exca

4.92



Dryad, LLC
21045-40027

September 9, 2022 

Bonnie Lipscomb, Economic Development Director  
City of Santa Cruz 
337 Locust St. 
Santa Cruz  CA  95060 

Re.:  Consulting Arborist services for development – addendum report 
Site:  City Lot #4, Cedar St. between Cathcart St. & Lincoln St., Santa Cruz 

Ms. Lipscomb; 

I am writing in response to the request for an addendum to my report 21045-40027, dated 01/18/2022.  This 
addendum letter is as per my discussions with Brian Borguno and Leslie Keedy.  The intent of this letter and 
included data is to clarify determinations as to: 

1. Tree diameters and Heritage Tree status1.
2. Evaluation & ratings relative to tree protection during construction. 
3. Feasibility for relocation of trees to be removed. 
4. Review of the impact of construction based upon revised site plans entitled “Entitlements Package 

04/29/22.”

SUMMARY:  My review of the revised plans, collected data and categorizations remain unchanged from my 
original report (01/18/22).  All twelve trees on site must be removed to accommodate construction.  Specifically, 
the building footprint encompasses an area including all twelve trees.   Only two trees (nos. 7 & 9) might be 
viable for transplant, but that evaluation could change if their root systems are structurally poor, which can only 
be determined when surrounding curbs and pavement is removed.  Of these two, only tree no. 9 is a Heritage 
Tree1.

DISCUSSION:
Transplanting (relocating):  Under the best of circumstances, transplanting is severely traumatic to tree 
physiology, and weak trees are likely to decline over time.  The relocation process includes severing much of 
the root system, reducing the tree’s ability to recover.  The demolition of curbing and pavement required to 
relocate, close to tree trunks and covering roots systems, exposes the trees to further root system damage. 

The trees on this site exhibit many existing conditions that render them poor candidates for relocation2.  It is my 
opinion that mature trees proposed for relocation should exhibit high vigor, desirable architecture, strong 
structure, and be free of significant disease and decay.  Trees at risk of decline or structural failure are poor 
candidates for relocation.  I also do not recommend relocation where operations would result in either an 
undersized rootball or damage to adjacent tree root systems. 

                                                      
1

City of Santa Cruz Municipal Code, Title 9 Peace, Safety and Morals, Chapter 9.56 Preservation of Heritage Trees and Heritage Shrubs.
2

Refer to Dryad, LLC report 21045-40027, dated 01/18/2022.

thcart St. & Lincoln St., Santa Cruz 

dendum to my report 21045-40027, dated 01/18/2022.  This dendum to my report 21045-40027, dated 01/18/2022.  This 
rguno and Leslie Keedy.  The intent of this letter and rguno and Leslie Keedy.  The intent of this letter and 

2. Evaluation & ratings relative to tree protection during construction. 2. Evaluation & ratings relative to tree protection during construction. 
of trees to be removed. of trees to be removed. 

on based upon revised site plans entitled “on based upon revised site plans entitled “Entitlements Package 

  My review of the revised plans, collected   My review of the revised plans, collected data and categorizations remain unchanged from my data and categorizations remain unchanged from my 
original report (01/18/22).  All twelve trees on site muoriginal report (01/18/22).  All twelve trees on site must be removed to accommodate construction.  Specifically, st be removed to accommodate construction.  Specifically, 
the building footprint encompasses an area including all twthe building footprint encompasses an area including all twelve trees.   Only two trelve trees.   Only two tr
viable for transplant, but that evaluativiable for transplant, but that evaluation could change if their root systems on could change if their root systems 
be determined when surrounding curbs and pavement is remobe determined when surrounding curbs and pavement is removed.  Of these two, only tree no. 9 is a Heritage 

Transplanting (relocating): Transplanting (relocating):  Under the best of circumstances, transp Under the best of circumstances, transp
physiology, and weak trees are likely to decline over time.  The relocation process includes severing much of physiology, and weak trees are likely to decline over time.  The relocation process includes severing much of 
the root system, reducing the tree’s ability to recover.  The demolition of curbing and pavement required to the root system, reducing the tree’s ability to recover.  The demolition of curbing and pavement required to 
relocate, close to tree trunks and covering roots systemrelocate, close to tree trunks and covering roots system

The trees on this site exhibit many existing conditiThe trees on this site exhibit many existing conditi
opinion that mature trees proposed for relocation shopinion that mature trees proposed for relocation sh
structure, and be free of signstructure, and be free of significant disease and decay.  Trees at risk of decline or structural failure are poor ificant disease and decay.  Trees at risk of decline or structural failure are poor 
candidates for relocation.  I also do not recommend recandidates for relocation.  I also do not recommend re
undersized rootball or damage to adjacent tree root systems. undersized rootball or damage to adjacent tree root systems. 

4.93



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

September 9, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of  (City Lot #4) 
Re.:  Consulting Arborist services for development – addendum report 
Page 2 of 6

Tree Location Diagram 
For location only; not to scale.  Modified 
from a Google earth® aerial image.  

4.94



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

September 9, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of  (City Lot #4) 
Re.:  Consulting Arborist services for development – addendum report 
Page 3 of 6

SUMMARIES OF TREE DATA AND EVALUATIONS:

Data Summaries Quantity Ratio Descriptions/Comments 

Total trees inventoried 12 100% All trees on site 

Heritage trees 9 75% As defined by City of Santa Cruz ( 14" dia.) 
(nos. 1-4, 6, 9-12) 

Trees not protected 3 25% 
As defined by City of Santa Cruz (<14" dia.) 
(nos. 5, 6-8) 

Trees in conflict with construction 12 100% All trees are within the construction footprint 

Heritage Trees in conflict with construction 12 100% All trees are within the construction footprint 

Trees that are relocation viable 2 17% Tree nos. 7 & 9 (relocation not recommended) 

Heritage Trees that are relocation viable 1 8% Tree no. 9 (relocation not recommended) 

Species Variation & Ratio 4  - - - Species variation on site.  

Common Name Quantity Ratio Botanical Name (Genus-species) 

Chinese pistache 4 33% Pistache chinensis 

Maidenhair tree 1 8% Ginkgo biloba 

Southern magnolia 5 42% Magnolia grandiflora 

Sweetgum 2 17% Liquidambar styraciflua 

Southern magnolia Southern magnolia 5 42% 5 42% 

Descriptions/Comments 

12 100% All trees on site 

As defined by City of Santa Cruz (As defined by City of Santa Cruz ( 14" dia.) 
(nos. 1-4, 6, 9-12) (nos. 1-4, 6, 9-12) 

3 25% 3 25% 
As defined by City of Santa Cruz (<14" dia.) As defined by City of Santa Cruz (<14" dia.) 
(nos. 5, 6-8) (nos. 5, 6-8) 

12 100% 12 100% All trees are within the construction footprint All trees are within the construction footprint 

Heritage Trees in conflict with construction 12 100% All trees are within the construction footprint Heritage Trees in conflict with construction 12 100% All trees are within the construction footprint 

2 17% Tree nos. 7 & 9 (relocation not recommended) 2 17% Tree nos. 7 & 9 (relocation not recommended) 

1 8% Tree no. 9 (relocation not recommended) 1 8% Tree no. 9 (relocation not recommended) 

4  - - - Species variation on site.  4  - - - Species variation on site.  

Ratio 

4 33% 4 33% 

1 8% 1 8% 

Sweetgum 2 Sweetgum 2 

4.95



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

September 9, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of  (City Lot #4) 
Re.:  Consulting Arborist services for development – addendum report 
Page 4 of 6

TREE INVENTORY DATA & EVALUATIONS:
 Trunk diameters:  Unless otherwise described under Comments, trunk diameters were measured (12/20/21) at 54 inches above grade, as per the City of 

Santa Cruz1.  In a few cases, it was not physically possible to measure the diameter at 54 inches, but it was possible to determine that diameters were well 
above 14 inches diameter.   

 Heritage status:  Includes all trees with a single stem equal to or larger than 14 inches at 54 inches above grade1.
 Transplant viable:  The evaluations in this column were determined using the criteria described under Discussion on page 1. 

Tag 
no. 

Common 
name 

Genus-species 
Trunk diameter (ins.) Heritage 

status 
Transplant

viable 
Comments 

1 2 3

1
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 20.5   Yes No 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as multiple stems are >14" diameter.
Diameter:  
 Multiple stems >14" at 54" above grade, at juncture of multiple codominant limbs. 
 Primary stem diameter measured at ~36" above grade. 

Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak, irreparable canopy structure and 
damaged root system. 

2
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 20.5   Yes No 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the multiple stems are each >14" 
diameter. 
Diameter:  
 Multiple stems >14" at 54" above grade, at juncture of multiple codominant limbs. 
 Primary stem diameter measured at ~42" above grade. 

Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak, irreparable canopy structure, 
damaged root system, and overlapping rooting space with tree no. 3. 

3
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 21.5 17.5   Yes No 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as both codominant stems are >14" 
diameter. 
Diameter:  
 Codominant (2) stems >14" at 54" above grade. 
 Codominant stem diameters measured at 54" above grade. 

Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak, irreparable canopy structure, 
severely damaged root system, and overlapping rooting space with tree no. 2. 

4
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 33.0 21.5   Yes No 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as codominant stems and limb are >14" 
diameter. 
Diameter:  
 Codominant (2) stems >14" at 54" above grade. 
 Codominant stems & limb diameters measured at 54" above grade. 
 Low, codominant limb measured 16" diameter. 

Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to canopy decline, decay, and damaged 
root system. 

5
Southern
magnolia

Magnolia grandiflora 13.5 12.5 12.0 No No 

Heritage status: Does not qualify as a Heritage Tree as none of the multiple stems are 
>14" diameter. 
Diameter: 
 Diameter of stem 1 measured at ~48" above grade) 
 Codominant stems & limb diameters measured at 54" above grade. 

Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak structure, decay, traumatic stem 
damage, limb failures, bacterial exudate, and damaged root system. 

  Yes No   Yes No 

Heritage status: Heritage status: 

trunk diameters were measured (12/20/21) at 54 inches above gradetrunk diameters were measured (12/20/21) at 54 inches above grade
hes, but it was possible to determine that dhes, but it was possible to determine that d

 Heritage status:  Includes all trees with a single stem equal to or larger than 14 inches at 54 inches above grade Heritage status:  Includes all trees with a single stem equal to or larger than 14 inches at 54 inches above grade1.
ermined using the criteria described under Discussion on page 1. ermined using the criteria described under Discussion on page 1. 

  Yes No   Yes No 

Heritage status: Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as multiple stems are >14" diameter.Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as multiple stems are >14" diameter.
Diameter:  Diameter:  
 Multiple stems >14" at 54" above grade, at juncture of multiple codominant limbs.  Multiple stems >14" at 54" above grade, at juncture of multiple codominant limbs. 
 Primary stem diameter measured at ~36" above grade.  Primary stem diameter measured at ~36" above grade. 

Relocation potential: Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak, irreparable canopy structure and 
damaged root system. damaged root system. 

  Yes No   Yes No   Yes No 

Heritage status:Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the multiple stems are each >14" 
diameter. diameter. 
Diameter:  Diameter:  
 Multiple stems >14" at 54" above grade, at juncture of multiple codominant limbs.  Multiple stems >14" at 54" above grade, at juncture of multiple codominant limbs. 
 Primary stem diameter measured at ~42" above grade.  Primary stem diameter measured at ~42" above grade. 

Relocation potential: Relocation potential: 
damaged root system, and overlapping rooting space with tree no. 3. damaged root system, and overlapping rooting space with tree no. 3. 

diameter. 
Diameter:  
 Codominant (2) stems >14" at 54" above grade. 

Magnolia grandiflora Magnolia grandiflora   Yes No 

13.5 12.5

4.96



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 Dryad, LLC PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 

FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

September 9, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of  (City Lot #4) 
Re.:  Consulting Arborist services for development – addendum report 
Page 5 of 6

Tag 
no. 

Common 
name 

Genus-species 
Trunk diameter (ins.) Heritage 

status 
Transplant

viable 
Comments 

1 2 3

6
Chinese
pistache

Pistachia chinensis 14.0   Yes No 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the stem is 14" diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak structure, poor architecture, limb 
failures, and severely restricted root system. 

7
Chinese
pistache

Pistachia chinensis 8.0   No Yes 

Heritage status: Does not qualify as a Heritage Tree as the primary stem is <14" 
diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential:  Possible, but not recommended due to severe pruning and 
likely poor root system due to severely restricted rooting space. 

8
Chinese
pistache

Pistachia chinensis 12.5   No No 

Heritage status: Does not qualify as a Heritage Tree as the stem is <14" diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak structure, poor architecture, and 
severely restricted root system and buried root crown. 

9
Chinese
pistache

Pistachia chinensis 17.5   Yes Yes 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the stem is >14" diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential:  Possible, but not recommended due to severe pruning, and 
likely poor root system due to severely restricted rooting space with a buried root 
crown. 

10 Sweetgum Liquidambar styraciflua 34.0   Yes No 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the stem is >14" diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential:   Poor candidate due to weak structure, poor architecture, 
severe pruning, and severely restricted and damaged root system. 

11 Sweetgum Liquidambar styraciflua 28.0   Yes No 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the primary stem is >14" diameter (at 
54" above grade). 
Diameter:  

Multiple codominant limbs at 54" above grade.
Primary stem diameter measured at ~36" above grade. 

Relocation potential:   Poor candidate due to weak structure, poor architecture, 
severe pruning, and severely restricted and damaged root system. 

12
Maidenhair

tree 
Ginkgo biloba 17.0   Yes No 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the stem is >14" diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential:  Poor candidate for relocation due to severe pruning 
(topping/heading), extremely poor structure and architecture, likely poor root system 
due to severely restricted rooting space and buried root crown. 

Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the stem is 14" diameter.  Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the stem is 14" diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak structure, poor architecture, limb  Poor candidate due to weak structure, poor architecture, limb 
failures, and severely restricted root system. failures, and severely restricted root system. 
Heritage status:Heritage status: Does not qualify as a Heritage Tree as the primary stem is <14"  Does not qualify as a Heritage Tree as the primary stem is <14" 
diameter. diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential: Relocation potential:  Possible, but not recommended due to severe pruning and  Possible, but not recommended due to severe pruning and 
likely poor root system due to severely restricted rooting space. likely poor root system due to severely restricted rooting space. 

  No No   No No 

Heritage status:Heritage status: Does not qualify as a Heritage Tree  Does not qualify as a Heritage Tree 
Diameter: Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential: Relocation potential:  Poor candidate due to weak structure, poor architecture, and  Poor candidate due to weak structure, poor architecture, and 
severely restricted root system and buried root crown. severely restricted root system and buried root crown. 

  Yes Yes   Yes Yes 

Heritage status:Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the stem is >14" diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential: Relocation potential:  Possible, but not recommended due to severe pruning, and 
likely poor root system due to severely relikely poor root system due to severely re
crown. crown. 

  Yes No   Yes No 

Heritage status:Heritage status: Qualifies as a Heritage Tree as the stem is >14" diameter. 
Diameter: Diameter: Diameter measured at 54" above grade. 
Relocation potential:  Relocation potential:  
severe pruning, and severely restricted and damaged root system. severe pruning, and severely restricted and damaged root system. 

  Yes No   Yes No 

Heritage status: Heritage status: 
54" above grade). 
Diameter:  

Multiple codominant limbs at 54" above grade.

Ginkgo biloba   Yes No   Yes No 

4.97



35570 Palomares Rd. 
Castro Valley CA 94552 

PHONE:  (510) 538-6000 
FAX:  (510) 538-6001 
E-MAIL:  tyoung@dryadllc.com 
WEB SITE: www.dryadllc.com 

Dryad, LLC

September 9, 2022 
Torrey Young, Dryad, LLC 
21045-40027 Santa Cruz, City of  (City Lot #4) 
Re.:  Consulting Arborist services for development – addendum report 
Page 6 of 6

Please feel free to contact me with questions or comments. 

Respectfully, 

Torrey Young 
Registered Consulting Arborist 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist, no. 282 
ISA Board Certified Master Arborist, no. WE-0131BM 
CUFC Certified Urban Forester, no. 121 
ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified 
ASCA Tree & Plant Appraisal Qualified 
CA Contractors License no. 363372 (C-27 & D-49; inactive)

4.98



November 17, 2022 

Ms. Leslie Keely 
City Urban Forester/Arborist 
City of Santa Cruz Parks Department 
323 Church St.  
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

Re:  CP22-0018 Downtown Library & Affordable Housing Project- Tree Removal Application  

Dear Ms. Keely, 

On behalf of For the Future Housing, Inc., and Eden Housing, enclosed please find additional 
information relating to the design considerations as they relate to our tree removal application 
associated with our project application. Enclosed are a design diagram with proposed tree 
removal areas overlayed onto the proposed site plan (Exhibit A) and December 14, 2021 City 
Council approved required project programming direction (Exhibit B).  

A heritage tree or heritage shrub, as defined in chapter 9.56 of the Santa Cruz Municipal Code shall 
only be altered or removed under the following circumstances: 

(c) One or more of the following findings are established by the applicant and confirmed by
the Director of Parks and Recreation.

(3) A construction project design cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage
trees or heritage shrubs.

Per item (c)(3) of the Heritage Tree ordinance, it is respectfully submitted that the 119 Lincoln 
Street Library and Affordable Housing Project, project design cannot be altered to 
accommodate the existing heritage trees located on site for the following reasons: 

A. Per Santa Cruz City Council direction given December 14th 2021, the project must
provide:
1. 100-125 affordable housing units and required support spaces, including an onsite

daycare facility
2. 300-315 parking stalls and required circulation and bicycle parking
3. Library design to include a 30,000 – 35,000 SF two-story Library facing Cedar and

Lincoln Streets with a green roof and adjacent roof deck and other design elements
as presented by Jayson Architecture.

4.99



                                                                                                                                             

 
              
 

  
 
In order to accommodate these building program requirements a total building area of 
273,194 SF is needed.  The project site area is 66,921 SF of which 60,381 SF is usable 
due to the area needed for access to the adjacent existing buildings to the east, including 
University Town Center, which has been developed to the shared property line. Of this 
60,381 SF area, 58,441 SF is buildable, with 1,940 SF set aside for landscaping and 
stormwater management facilities around the ground floor perimeter. 

 
It is estimated that in order to preserve the existing heritage trees, at a minimum, areas 
the size of the tree canopies would need to be protected at the ground level and above 
(see Exhibit A).  An estimated area of 7,774 SF is needed to preserve the 9 existing 
heritage trees (see Exhibit C).  As this is a multistory building, this loss of area would 
result in a loss of available building program area of 30,974 SF. The three major program 
elements for Library, Housing and Parking that were set by City Council cannot be met if 
30,974 SF is removed from the available building area.  The building density and height 
have already been maximized in the proposed design, as allowed by the building code, 
providing no other opportunities to add building area on the site.  As such, all trees must 
be removed to accommodate the required program onto the site. 
 

B. Site proportions and buildable area: The site is approximately 326' x 181', with a taper 
along Cedar Street. Each of the three major program elements (Library, Housing and 
Parking) require minimum widths to accommodate their specific programs. Book stacks 
for the library; units, corridors & windows for the housing; parking spaces and drive 
aisles for the parking garage. Narrowing the building or removing sections of the 
building to accommodate the existing heritage trees would jeopardize the functionality 
and layouts of the required building program elements. The result would require more 
square footage to meet the required building program due to increased circulation 
needs and inefficiencies.  As noted above, there are no further opportunities to add 
required building area on the site. 
 

C. Major site disturbance: Due to the existing soil conditions and high-water table as 
identified in the site's geotechnical investigation, the project will require extensive 
disturbance of the entire building footprint in order to prepare for and accommodate 
the foundation system.  This major disturbance, occurring directly adjacent to the trees, 
may further increase the building carve-outs needed to preserve the trees. Here again, 
there are no opportunities to reduce building area and still meet the required program.  	
 

 

 

Based on above, it is respectfully submitted that the design cannot be altered to 
accommodate the existing heritage trees and still meet the City Council’s program direction. 

4.100



Please contact me with any questions and we appreciate your consideration of our application.  

Sincerely, 

Jim Rendler  

Vice President 
For the Future Housing, Inc.  
433 Marsh St.  
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
(408)891-8303 Cell
jrendler@ftfhousing.com

cc:  Tony Elliot- Director Parks & Recreation 

4.101



539 Marsh Street
San Luis Obispo, CA

805.541.1010
info@tenoverstudio.com

DOWNTOWN LIBRARY & AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT
S A N T A  C R U Z ,  C A

D A T E :  0 9 / 0 8 / 2 2 A1.2
S I T E  P L A N

S C A L E: 1” =  50 ’ -0”

N

PROPOSED NEW STRUCTURE
SANTA CRUZ LIBRARY MIXED USE

RESIDENTIAL BIKE PARKING 
80 BIKES (CLASS I)

RESIDENTIAL BIKE PARKING 
50 BIKES (CLASS I)

80 BIKES (CLASS II)

6 
BI

KE
S 

(C
LA

SS
 II

)

20 BIKES (CLASS II)

LIBRARY, COMMERCIAL & 
DAYCARE BIKE PARKING 

10 BIKES (CLASS I)

CEDAR STREET

CA
TH

CA
RT

 S
TR

EE
T

LI
N

CO
LN

 S
TR

EE
T

6 
BI

KE
S 

(C
LA

SS
 II

)
6 

BI
KE

S 
(C

LA
SS

 II
)

DAYCARE 
PLAY AREA

FL
US

H 
AC

CE
SS

4'
 - 

0"
 (E

) A
DA

16
' -

 0
"

1119 PACIFIC 
BUSINESS 
ACCESS

1117 PACIFIC 
BUSINESS 
ACCESS

1101 PACIFIC
SERVICE AREA

1101 PACIFIC 
ACCESS

105 LINCOLN 
SERVICE DOOR 1101 PACIFIC 

SUITE F ACCESS

1123 & 1125 PACIFIC 
PARKING AND SERVICE 

AREA

R
 4

0'
 - 

0"

ELEC & 
TRANSFORMER

RESIDENTIAL
GARBAGE

LIBRARY
GARBAGE

LIBRARY
LOADING

FIRE RISER

LIBRARY ENTRANCE 

MAIN LIBRARY 
ENTERANCE 

PARKING GARAGE 
PEDESTRIAN 
ENTRANCE

PARKING GARAGE 
VEHICULAR 
ENTRANCE

RESIDENTIAL 
ENTRANCE

RESIDENTIAL 
ENTRANCE

CL
R

20
' -

 0
"

(5) of (6)
EXISTING STREET
PARKING SPACES
TO REMAIN ON
LINCOLN

EXISTING (7) ON-STREET 
PARKING SPACES TO BE 
REMOVED TO ACCOMMODATE 
LARGER SIDEWALK NEW 12'-0" WIDE SIDEWALK WITH (4) 

LOADING/UNLOADING PARKING 
SPACES

NEW 10'-0" WIDE 
SIDEWALK TO MATCH 
ADJACENT 1101 
PACIFIC CATHCART 
SIDEWALK FRONTAGE

EXISTING (4) ON-
STREET PARKING 
SPACES TO BE 
REMOVED ON 
CATHCART TO 
ACCOMMODATE 
LARGER SIDEWALK

CL
R

16
' -

 5
"

18
2.

09
'

20.62'

123.34'

57.4'

135.42'

12
5.

0'
80

.6
4'

151.75'12
.0

5'

176.55'

TO
 P

.L
.

15
' -

3"

ONE-WAY ALLEY

ONE-WAY ALLEYCL
R

17
' -

 1
0 

1/
2"

NEW 12'-0" WIDE 
SIDEWALK TO MATCH 
ADJACENT 105 LINCOLN 
SIDEWALK FRONTAGE

BUS STOP

PARKING GARAGE

DAYCARE

COMMERCIAL

LIBRARY

MECHANICAL

539 Marsh Street
San Luis Obispo, CA
805.541.1010
info@tenoverstudio.com
www.tenoverstudio.com

SC
 L

IB
RA

RY
 M

IX
ED

 U
SE

60
0-

69
8 

CE
DA

R
ST

RE
ET

SA
NT

A 
CR

UZ
,C

AL
IF

OR
NI

A
08

/1
6/

20
22

Exhibit A

4.102



SANTA CRUZ DOWNTOWN LIBRARY 

MIXED USE PROJECT
+ ++PROGRAM SUMMARY

COMMERCIAL 
& DAY CARE

COMMERCIAL:

7,000 - 9,000 SF

DAYCARE:

1,800 - 2,500 SF

(INCLUDES OUTDOOR PLAY AREA)

LIBRARY
LIBRARY INTERIOR: 

30,000 - 35,000 SF

ROOF DECK: 3,000 - 5,000 SF

HOUSING
100 - 125 UNITS TOTAL

STUDIO/1 BED: 50 - 65 UNITS

2 BEDROOM: 25 - 30 UNITS

3 BEDROOM: 25 - 30 UNITS

COMMUNITY SPACE:

2,500 - 3,500 SF

RESIDENTIAL ROOF DECK:

14,000 - 16,000 SF

PARKING
TOTAL PARKING COUNT:

300 - 315 SPACES

(REDUCED FROM 400)

A

B C

JAYSON
ARCHITECTURE

50 29th Street
San Francisco CA 94110

jaysonarch.com

Exhibit B

4.103



          Arborist Report Canopy Size

Tree Number N E S W Average Radius Approx. Area of Canopy Impact to Site Area 1st floor 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th

1 17 18 19 14 17 908 924 924 924 924 924 924 924 924 924

2 20 22 16 16 19 1075 867 867 867 867

3 13 14 23 18 17 908 1063 1063 1063 1063

4 27 23 22 29 25 2003 1214 1214 1214 1214

5 19 18 15 16 17 908 Non Heritage

6 13 5 9 14 10 330 1097 1097 1097

7 11 13 13 11 12 452 Non Heritage

8 9 11 10 14 11 380 Non Heritage

9 13 16 17 17 16 779 961 961 961 961 961 961 961 961 961

10 20 20 17 16 18 1046 724 724 724

11 19 17 16 18 18 962 763 763 763

12 3 0 8 8 5 71 163 163 163 163 163 163 163 163 163

Totals 7774 7774 5191 7774 2047 2047 2047 2047 2047

Site Area Total 7774

Building Total 30974

119 Lincoln St Library Downtown & Afforrdable Housing Project  - Tree Area Estimates

Exhibit C

4.104



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Heritage Tree Memo 
Santa Cruz Downtown Library 

Date: December 1, 2022 

 

Taken together, if all Heritage Trees on the site were to remain, the impact to the library would be 

significant.  Programmatic adjacencies would need to be reconsidered, and additional square footage 

around trees would potentially be lost due to the remaining boundaries of buildable square footage 

resulting in infeasible proportions and configurations.  Egress paths and fire life safety would need to be 

reevaluated, and significant changes made to maintain safety and code compliance.  The civic street 

presence, as developed and presented over a series of community workshops, would no longer be 

viable.  Community input that was provided over 6 stakeholder meetings and 2 community workshops 

was instrumental in shaping the design of the project, and would largely be invalidated if the Heritage 

Trees were to be accommodated. The library as currently designed, which is in the Construction 

Documents stage of the documentation process, would no longer be feasible, even with significant 

modifications.  The project would need to completely restart the design process at the conceptual 

design phase, with reduced programmatic and square footage goals.  It is our determination that the 

construction project design cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage trees and still meet the 

requirements established for the project by the City Council. 

 

Based on the square footage and layout of the tree canopies, the programmatic impact of 

accommodating the existing Heritage Trees on the site of the Downtown Library would be as follows: 

 

Tree #1:   

 Tree #1 if taken in isolation would impact the main electrical and IT rooms for the library, 

including considerations of underground routing of conduit and utility services.  The electrical 

and IT rooms would potentially need to be relocated.   

 When taken into consideration with Trees #2 & #3, the library would no longer have access to 

the delivery area and loading dock, which is critical for the proper operation of the main branch 

in the County library system. 

 At the 2nd floor the mechanical room would need to be reconfigured, and it is possible the units 

as currently designed and specified would no longer fit.  

Tree #2:   

 The combined impact of Trees #2,3, & 4 would eliminate nearly half the space dedicated to staff 

at the library, including two private offices, the IT room, the staff bathroom, half the staff 

breakroom, the staff entry, and three quarters of the staff workstations. The remaining square 

footage would be too small to support a staff area as required for a public library of this size.   

4.105



Page 2 of 3 
 

 At the 2nd floor these trees would also reduce the Special Collections/Local History Room by 

over half and reduce the Adult Non‐Fiction Collection by nearly a third.   

 At the mezzanine level, these trees would reduce the conditioned space by nearly a third, and 

completely cut off access to the library roof deck, eliminating the viability of this programmatic 

amenity. 

Tree #3:   

 The combined impact of Trees #2,3, & 4 would eliminate nearly half the space dedicated to staff 

at the library, including two private offices, the IT room, the staff bathroom, half the staff 

breakroom, the staff entry, and three quarters of the staff workstations. The remaining square 

footage would be too small to support a staff area as required for a public library of this size.   

 At the 2nd floor these trees would also reduce the Special Collections/Local History Room by 

nearly half and reduce the Adult Non‐Fiction Collection by nearly a third.   

 At the mezzanine level, these trees would reduce the conditioned space by nearly a third, and 

completely cut off access to the library roof deck, eliminating the viability of this programmatic 

amenity. 

Tree #4:   

 In addition to the impacts outlined with Trees #2 & #3, Tree #4 would eliminate the code 

required means of egress at the southwest corner of the library.   

 The location at the façade would also require a significant re‐design of the civic street presence 

of the library. 

Tree #5:   

 If this tree was to remain the Community Room would be reduced in size by approximately a 

third, and the maximum capacity would drop from roughly 150 to 100 occupants, significantly 

impacting the types of programs and events the library could support.   

 The location at the façade would also require a significant re‐design of the civic street presence 

of the library. 

Tree #6:   

 If this tree was to remain the public lobby and multi‐purpose room would both need to be 

reconfigured, and the circulation through the lobby and to the main stair redesigned.   

 The location at the façade would also require a significant re‐design of the civic street presence 

of the library.  

Tree #7:   

 Not Applicable, not listed as a Heritage tree. 

Tree #8:   

 Not Applicable, not listed as a Heritage tree. 

Tree #9:   

4.106



Page 3 of 3 
 

 No impact on library unless changes to the parking garage to accommodate this tree impacted 

the separation of occupancies along Grid Line F between the library and parking garage. 

Tree #10:   

 The combined impact of Trees #10 & 11 would require a reduction the Children’s Area by 

approximately 10%, and the entry to the Children’s area would need to be completely 

redesigned.   

 It would also result in a reduction in the Adult Fiction collection by approximately 50%.   

 The location at the façade would also require a significant re‐design of the civic street presence 

of the library. 

Tree #11: 

 The combined impact of Trees #10 & 11 would require a reduction the Children’s Area by 

approximately 10%, and the entry to the Children’s area would need to be completely 

redesigned.   

 It would also result in a reduction in the Adult Fiction collection by approximately 50%.   

 The location at the façade would also require a significant re‐design of the civic street presence 

of the library. 

Tree #12:   

 No Impact on Library. 

 

If all Heritage Trees were to remain, the library would be reduced in size by approximately 10,000 

square feet, dropping from 38,000 square feet to approximately 28,000 square feet.  At this scale, the 

library would no longer be adequate in size to function as the central branch of the Santa Cruz Public 

Libraries system. In summary, preservation of the Heritage Trees would require a complete redesign of 

the library, set the project timeline back over a year, increase costs because of escalation, and result in 

an inferior and smaller public facility that does not meet the programmatic requirements for the project 

stipulated by the City Council on December 14th, 2021. 

Please refer to exhibit A1.2 and the arborist report for more information regarding locations and sizes of 

each tree identified in this memo. 

4.107



4.108



4.109



4.110



4.111



1\ 0, 
ns-26i 

RESOLUTION NO. NS-23,710 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA CRUZ 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. NS-21,433 REGARDING THE ADOPTION 
OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS FOR THE ALTERATION OR REMOVAL 

OF HERITAGE TREES AND SHRUBS 

WHEREAS, Chapter 9.56 of the Santa Cruz Municipal Code titled "Preservation of Heritage Trees and Heritage Shrubs" authorizes the alteration or removal of any heritage tree or heritage shrub only under circumstances to be set forth by City of Santa Cruz City Council resolution; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City Council of the City of Santa Cruz that this resolution, and the criteria and standards hereby adopted, shall be used to determine the only circumstances under which any heritage tree or heritage shrub may be altered or removed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Santa Cruz that it hereby adopts the criteria and standards set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein for the determination of the circumstances under which any heritage tree or heritage shrub may be altered or removed, and that Resolution No. NS-21,433 is hereby rescinded. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of April, 1998, by the following vote: 

AYES: 	Councilmembers: 	Beiers, Rotkin, Hernandez, Mathews, Kennedy; 
Mayor Scott. 

NOES: 	Councilmembers: 	None. 

ABSENT: 	Councilmembers: 	Campbell. 

DISQUALIFIED: 	Councilmembers: 	None. 

APPROVED:  	 f)   
Mayor 

ATTEST: 	 
City Clerk 

RESCINDED BY 
RESOLUTION NO. NS-   22. ,  -rob 

4.112



RESOLUTION NO. NS-23,710 

EXHIBIT A 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

	

1. 	A heritage tree or heritage shrub, as defined in Chapter 9.56 of the City of 
Santa Cruz Municipal Code shall only be altered or removed in the following circumstances: 

(a) Alteration of a heritage tree or heritage shrub would only affect less than 
twenty-five percent (25%) of the crown of said heritage tree or heritage shrub; 

(b) Findings by the Director of Parks & Recreation can be established in 
conformity with the City's Urban Forest and Wildland Interface Policy Statement; or 

(c) One or more of the following findings are established by the applicant 
and confirmed by the Director of Parks and Recreation: 

(1) The heritage tree or heritage tree shrub has, or is likely to have, 
an adverse effect upon the structural integrity of a building, utility, or public or private right 
of way; 

(2) The physical condition or health of the tree or shrub, such as 
disease or infestation, warrants alteration or removal; or 

(3) A construction project design cannot be altered to accommodate 
existing heritage trees or heritage shrubs. 

	

2. 	For every heritage tree or heritage shrub altered, damaged or removed, 
mitigation shall occur in accordance with the City Council resolution establishing mitigation 
requirements for alterations, damage and removals of heritage trees and shrubs. 

	

3. 	During the pendency of any appeal arising out of the approval or disapproval of 
a heritage tree removal/alteration permit application processed pursuant to S.C.M.C. 9.56, 
the tree, grove of trees or shrub which is the subject of that appeal shall be maintained in the 
same condition as on the permit application date and shall not be pruned or altered in any 
fashion whatsoever whether or not the pruning or alteration would otherwise require a permit. 

4.113



4.114



4.115



-..............0.---
__..--:;-� 

,n:;f\ 
,, . ,

C I T Y  O F

SANTACRUZ 

Notice of Public Hearing 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Parks and Recreation Commission of the City of Santa 
Cruz will open the public hearing to consider the matter(s) listed below on Monday, December 
12, 2022 beginning after the hour of 4:00PM via ZOOM Teleconference: 
HTTPS://ZOOM.US/J/93143409514. It will be recommended that the matter be continued 
until the Monday, February 13, 2023 Parks and Recreation Commission meeting. 

All persons who may be interested are hereby invited to present oral or written statements at or 
before said hearing. 

Tree Permit Appeal for TR22-0201 (119 Lincoln St.) 

Agendas are posted no later than 72 hours prior to the meeting; after which written material for 
every item listed on the agenda is available for review at the Parks & Recreation Administrative 
Office, 323 Church Street, and online at www.cityofsantacruz.com. The City of Santa Cruz does 
not discriminate against persons with disabilities. Upon request, the agenda can be provided in a 
format to accommodate special needs. Additionally, if you wish to attend this public meeting and 
will require . assistance such as an interpreter for American Sign Language, Spanish, or other 
special equipment, please call the Parks and Recreation Department at 420-5270 at least five 
days in advance so that we can arrange for such special assistance, or email 
parksandrec@cityofsantacruz.com. 

COVID-19 ANNOUNCEMENT: This meeting will be held via teleconference ONLY. 

To minimize exposure to COVID-19 and to comply with the social distancing suggestion, the 
Council Chambers will not be open to the public. The meeting may be viewed remotely, using 
any of the following sources: 

Online at https://www.facebook.com/CityofSa ntaCruzParksandRecreation 

PUBLIC COMMENT and ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
If you wish to comment, please see information below. 

• Call at the start of the item.
• Call (669) 900-9128 and enter the meeting ID number when prompted: 931 4340 9514
• When prompted for a Participant ID, press #.
• Press *9 on your phone to "raise your hand" when the Chair calls for public comment.
• It will be your turn to speak when the Secretary announces you. You will then be unmuted

and the timer will be set. You may hang up once you have commented on your item of
interest.

Any person may appeal any final action. Appeals must be made in writing, state the reason for 
the appeal and filed with the City Planning Department within ten (10) calendar days of the 
hearing. It must be accompanied by a six-hundred ·and forty-five dollars ($665) filing fee, unless 
the item involves a Coastal Permit that is appealable to the California Coastal Commission, 725 
Front St., Suite 300, Santa Cruz, CA 95060, in which case there is no fee. 

4.116



4.117



4.118



4.119



4.120



4.121



4.122



��������������	
� ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<<=>?�@A�@B=�CADDEFFEAG�AG�HIJHIJIIKLMNO�PNQNRSTUS�VMLMNOWXNQNRSTUSYZ[NSR\X][^_̀L�abcbdcdadd�befbg_]fhNUiM�j�kTXUTNlS]O�P][[SMMS]O�VmUX][[SMMS]OYXSln]oMNOlNXULp\X][^4��������)�������������������������'����9���.�����8�����������������������)q�����"�����  ��������������������q�����������8�����������3���
!�3�8��������������������"��������������"�������'����q��������!�*����)��8��������)%�"����3q��-��q�����%����+��'������)����8���������q�������.��)�'�������������8��������'�������������������!�9��))�������������������q����8����� ����.����� ���"%��������� ��q�)����)���)�����������������)��8������� �������������'����q�����������)�����������������������������!�r��� �	�����%�������!����q���������8������ �����8�������������s4�� ����������������8�����������������
����������� ��6�������)�����'����)���8��)����������)��������������!�4���������t����)�'%����%��.!�7q��8����������8��������.�������� ��q�)����������q��8��������
�""��)'���������8�.�������� ��q�)�t����%��"���"��.�������8��8����������� ��q�)�!�4�������������"�������������6������������!9��� �������������������� ������� ������  ������� �%��8�.�������%��.������q�����������8���������)�����7������&���������q'�����t���'�����)�'����"������%!������������������ ������)�.���q����������� ��"������q'���"�������"�.��)������ ����������������8�������!4����%���7�����q�����

4.123



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<;=>;?�@AB�CDEF=G�H?;;�IFF;JK�D�LJM;�N;?OPJQ;�H?;;R�OS�LJSPJ�T?UV�WJ?=;?RXJ?Y;P�Z[P�C\]̂_̀�\]ab]̀�cd]ab]̀defghij]kblmhjnoh̀�pqrstrtptt�psusvwhuŵ_j]k̀�x_yy_̀z{h̀_e�ci|h̀_efmki}h~e]̀i]m̂��lmhjn��ki}��h�̀mkbcmki}mh�̀mkbfmki}h~e]̀i]m̂��lmhjn���������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������¡����������������������¢�����£���¡�¤  ��¥������� ���¦�£�§��������̈�������©��ª������«������̈��¬���������������������¥��©������������®����°̄±�����������������������������¤�±²°�°³́µ¶·�̧�¹º»�¼½¾¾¿··¿½À�ÁººÂÀÃ�Ä¿́�Å½½¾��¥��������� ���©���  ��¥���¡���Æ��©�����£������������©��ª�������«������̈�����������Ç���Ç������������¬�¤¥�©��£©����������������������������Æ���¡�È�������Ç�¥��������¡� �����£�����������������¡�¡�������¥�����©��� ����������¡��©����©�¡�©�����£��������Ç��¥¡�����©�  �¡�¡�Ç����¡�¥����È���Æ����Ç©���©��Æ���¡É§��������¥¡������Æ�¡���È����¥¡��£��Ç����¡���£��¡������¡��©��¬�Ê�§��������������È�¥���¡� ��Æ�¡��£�����Æ�¥������������������¬�Ê�¢�����£���������������Ë�����¡����������������Ì������¬Ê�«���� �� ¥��È��¥�£��¡�Ç©����©������������¡�����©�����������������¡���������Ç��©������¬Ê�§©������������Æ����������������¡�Ç���Ç�������������¬Ê�§©�������������¥����������Í���È���������Î��©����������Ï����¡�Í¥���� �¥¥����¬Ê�§����� ��Æ�¡���©�¡����¡�©�������È������¡����¡����¥¥������¥������©�����Ë�����¥�¬Ê�§©������������������¥������¤������¥�����¥¥��È�������������Î�����¥���¬Ê�§�����Ç�¥¥������������ ��Æ�¡������Í�������¥��£�����©����������¥�Æ�¬Ê�§©�������������������������©����������Ç�����©����©���¥����¬�Ê���¦�£��©����������Ç��¥¡�Æ��¥�����©��©�����£���������¡������¬��Ê�§©�� �� ���¡�¥��������¡� �����£��������������¥¡��£�������� ����Ì�¡��������������©��¥¡�����������������¡Æ����¬Ê�Ð��������©��¥¡��������Æ�¡����¥��¥¥�Í��¥� ¥���������  ��Æ�¡��Í������£������� ¥������¡��©�� ��Ñ�������Ò�©�Æ�¥����¡Ó�Ç©��©���������������©��������¬�Ê�¢�����£�����������¡������� �����Æ�¡¬�§©��¡����Æ�������� ����¥�Æ��£É�§©�������È�����������¡�������¡���£���������¡������¬��������¥�Ô�����Ô� ¥������¡�����È�������������������������±Õ�
4.124



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>?�@A?�B<C=�D=E�?FGGHIJKLM�NKOP�QRKLMSTKUVWXYZ[R\KLMYOV\]^VW�_Z̀ab̀b_bb�_cdXefVdfUg\KLW�hgiigWjNVWgS�QklVWgS[OLkmVnSKWkKOUopYOV\]q�K\�K�rKWkK�sUop�sLkm�UgSLigWk�KWi�KiK\KWkMm�VttVSgi�kV�OokkLWR�iVuW�KWm�kUggS�LW�kTg�OLkmvgStgOLKMMm�TgULkKRg�kUggSY�wVoMiWxk�OokkLWR�kTgSg�kUggS�yg�K�zLVMKkLVW�Vn�kTg�TgULkKRg�kUggVUiLWKWOg{�|oU�OLkmxS�sML\Kkg�}OkLVW�~MKW�OKMMS�nVU�\VUg�kUggS��|f�MgSSY�wg�iV�WVk�gzgW�PWVu�mgkuTgkTgU�kTg�tUVtVSgi�yoLMiLWR�uLMM�yg�tgU\Lkkgiv�KS�q�K\�KMSV�KRKLWSk�\VzLWR�kTg�iVuWkVuWMLyUKUm�kV�kTg��KU\gUxS�̂KUPgk�SLkgY�ggt�kTgSg�L\tVUkKWk�KWi�ygKokLnoM�kUggS�nVU�kTg�OV\\oWLkmxS�SKPg�fTKWP�mVovJKLM�NKOP

4.125



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>?=@�ABC�D?=EC<F?�C=??@GHIJ�KILKIH�MGHIJNKILKIHOPQRSSTUSVWXYZ�[\]̂_]_[__�__̀\_aS̀aHIVQLZ�bIJJIZcdSZIe�MfNSZIeOULfPSGeQZfQUHYgTUSVWh�ij�klmnlopqrs�ptip�ptlol�pkllo�rup�vl�kljuwlxy��ztlkl�qo�ru�{klooqrs�rllx�|uk�ptl�{nk{uolo�u|�ptl�}qvkik~�sikisl�{ku�l�p�io�qp�qo�rup��ujjlr�qrs�|u�oujl�pqjl��q|�lwlk�y��nkptlkjukl��ztl��qp~�o��}qjipl�i�pqur�{}ir�irx�tlkqpisl�pkll�ukxqrir�l��un}x�i}ou�nrrl�looikq}~�vl�wqu}iplx�q|ptlol�pkllo�ikl��ljuwlxyy�h|����tlr��uropkn�pqur�qo�xurl�ur�ptqo�oqpl�ptl�{}iro�otun}x�vl�juxq|qlx�pu�{klolkwl�ptlol�pkllo��klx��y��lqslk��irpi��kn���i�

4.126



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<=>?@;�><;;ABCDE�BEFGHEIJKEFGL�MHCDEHEFGHEINOPECHQFRPSTRI�UVWXYWYUYY�UZ[Y\]R[]̂LPECI�KL__LIJ̀RILD�MabRILDNFCacRdDEIaEF̂efQFRPSgLÊ�hRPPCDDCRIL̂Dij�EP�k̂CaCIO�aR_Ec�aR�̂LleLDa�aGEa�cRe�̂LFRIDC_L̂�FeaaCIO�_RkI�aGL�GL̂CaEOL�âLLD�CI�aGL�mÊPL̂DTÊnLa�oÊnCIO�HRaQ�]̂LLD�ÊL�DR�CPoR̂aEIa�aR�aGL�HRRn�EI_�dLLH�Rd�EIc�DoEFLi�pea�aGCD�oHEFL�CIoÊaCFeHÊ�J�Rê�_RkIaRkI�J�CD�DR�CI�ILL_�Rd�aGL�qEHeL�EI_�pLEeac�aGEa�GL̂CaEOL�âLLD�ôRqC_LQ�]GLpLILdCaD�ÊL�PĉCE_J�aGL�DGE_L�aGLc�ôRqC_Li�aGL�DLIDL�Rd�GCDaR̂ci�aGL�d̂LDG�EĈi�aGL�FGEIOCIO�pLEeacRd�aGL�DLEDRIDi�aGL�̂LPCI_L̂�Rd�Rê�FRIILFaCRI�aR�IEaêL�aR�IEPL�pea�E�dLkQ�]GL�rEIaE�ĥef�hCachHCPEaL�sFaCRI�tHEI�FEHHD�dR̂�PR̂L�âLLD�dR̂�aGLDL�qL̂c�̂LEDRIDQ�]GL�KL̂CaEOL�]̂LL�R̂_CIEIFL�kEDoEDDL_�dR̂�FĈFePDaEIFLD�HCnL�aGCDQtHLEDL�dRHHRk�aGLDL�oHEID�EI_�FRIDC_L̂�kEcD�aR�ôRaLFa�aGLDL�âLLD�EI_�PCaCOEaL�aGLĈ�HRDDQ�]GLDLâLLD�ÊL�CPoR̂aEIa�aR�Rê�FRPPeICac�IRk�EI_�kCHH�pL�CPoR̂aEIa�aR�deaêL�OLIL̂EaCRID�ED�kLHHQtHLEDL�OR�aGL�LuâE�PCHL�aR�PEnL�DêL�aGLDL�âLLD�ÊL�IRa�̂LPRqL_QrCIFL̂LHciBCDE�BEFGHEIrLEp̂COGa�sqLIeLi�rEIaE�ĥef

4.127



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% ����&������'������(�)��(�����)�������*��+ �,�(�-)���� ���

./01234/�50//6�78�912:�;72�<=>?@A�BCDECFAGHCD�I=>?@AJKHCLAFJBCDECFAGHCDMNBC@?JEOBPQ>A�RSTUVTVRVV�RWXYZQOX[CF\D�]�̂AEFACK@OG�_OBB@DD@OG�Ì FEOBB@DD@OGME@KLOaDCGKCEF>bJEOBPcACF�_OBB@DD@OGd�e�CB�C̀ C̀??Af�KHCK�KHA�_@KL�Oa�gCGKC�_F>b�hO>?f�EOGD@fAF�C??Oh@GN�KHA�iAF@KCNA�QFAAD�OG�jOK�k�KO�lAE>KJ��mA�CFA�@G�KHA�B@ff?A�Oa�E?@BCKA�EHCGNAn��eK�hO>?f�lA�AoKFABA?L�DHOFKpD@NHKAf�CD�C�FAD̀OGD@l?AfAE@D@OGpBC\@GN�lOfL�KO�\AÀ�C??Oh@GN�KFAA�E>KK@GNd�̀CFK@E>?CF?L�KFAAD�Oa�KH@D�CNAd�DKCK>FAd�CGfECFlOGpDAq>ADKAF@GN�EC̀CE@KLJ�rff@K@OGC??Ld�KFAAD�CFA�hHCK�\AÀ�O>F�E@KL�lAC>K@a>?�CGf�?@sACl?AJ��iCsA�LO>�DAAG�KHA�aC??�EO?OFD�OGKHA�KhO�KOhAF@GN�HAF@KCNA�BC̀?AD�OG�jOK�kt��eFFÀ?CEACl?AJ�QHA�̀FÒODAf�EOGDKF>EK@OG�̀FO=AEK�aOF�jOK�k�@D�Ò ÒDAf�lL�C?BODK�HC?a�Oa�E@KL�FAD@fAGKDJ�uGaOFK>GCKA?L�GOK�AGO>NH�KO�DKÒ�KHA�̀FO=AEKd�l>K�CK�KHA�sAFL�?ACDK�KHADA�EOGDKF>EK@OG�̀?CGD�DHO>?flA�C?KAFAf�KO�FAKC@G�KHA�HAF@KCNA�KFAADJ��QHA�EOGDKF>EK@OG�fOAD�GOK�GAAf�KO�AGEFOCEH�C??�KHA�hCL�KOKHA�D@fAhC?\n��j@sACl@?@KL�@G�O>F�E@KL�@D�\ALd�CGf�BOGDKFO>D�l>@?f@GND�CK�KHA�AòAGDA�Oa�O>F�iAF@KCNAQFAAD�CFA�FAC??L�>GCEEÀKCl?AJ��eK�fOAD�GOK�C̀ ÀCF�KHCK�KHAFA�hCD�CGL�AaaOFK�lL�KHA�fAsA?ÒAFD�KO�FAKC@G�KHA�KFAADJ��QHA�E@KL�EOfADHO>?f�lA�AGaOFEAf�CGf�FAq>@FA�EOGDKF>EK@OG�̀?CGD�KO�lA�C?KAFAf�KO�FAKC@G�KHA�KFAADJ���rff@K@OGC??Ld�D@GEA�KHADA�KFAAD�CFA�@FFÀ?CEACl?Ad�GO�KFAAD�DHO>?f�AsAG�lA�EOGD@fAFAf�aOF�FABOsC?>GK@?�C??�a@GC?�EOGDKF>EK@OG�̀?CGD�CFA�C̀ F̀OsAfd�a@GCGE@GN�@D�EOB ?̀AKAd�CGf�KHA�̀FO=AEK�@D�FACfL�KOlFAC\�NFO>GfJ��QHA�E>FFAGK�E>K�̀AFB@K�vaOF�hH@EH�CG�C̀ ÀC?�hCD�a@?Afw�hCD�ANFAN@O>D?L�̀FABCK>FAJ�g@GEAFA?Ld�x>?@A�yCDECFAGHCDgCGKC�_F>bWYRSR�

4.128



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>?@A<�B=<<CDEEFEGE�HDEEFEGEIJKDLMKNOPKQ�RSTUVTVRVV�UUWXUYKWZJ[\F�]�̂EM[EJ_̀KQ�aKNNF̀F̀KQ�Hb[MKNNF̀F̀KQIM̀_cKdFJQ_JM[efLMKNOZJ[\F�JQg�̂EM[EJ_̀KQ�aKNNF̀F̀KQWh�JF\�cKe[�MKNNF̀F̀KQ�_K�[EMKNNEQg�_iJ_�_iE�_[EEF�J_�_iE�dJ[NE[Fj�NJ[\E_�F̀_E�kE�FJGEgL�ZDEJFE�[ENENkE[�_iE�M̀_cjF�lE[̀_JmE�Y[EE�̂EFKDe_̀KQ�JQg�_iE�GJDeE�Kd�_[EEF�dK[�_iE�MKNNeQ̀_c�n�dK[EoJNbDEp�b[KG̀g̀Qm�FiJgE�̀Q�iK_�qEJ_iE[p�K[�F̀Q\̀Qm�MJ[kKQ�JQg�b[KgeM̀Qm�KocmEQ�̀Q�J�qK[Dg�kEFE_kc�_iE�MD̀NJ_E�M[̀F̀FLh�JF\�JDFK�_iJ_�cKe�̀QMDegE�_iE�dKDDKq̀Qm�FbEM̀d̀M�[EMKNNEQgJ_̀KQWrK�_[EEF�kE�_J\EQ�Ke_�eQ_̀D�JDD�d̀QJD�bDJQF�J[E�Jbb[KGEgp�d̀QJQM̀Qm�̀F�MKNbDE_Ep�JQg�_iE�b[KsEM_�̀FtFiKGED�[EJgcLuYiJQ\�cKe�dK[�cKe[�MKQF̀gE[J_̀KQLvD̀FFJ�wJmQE[xb_KF�ySRRX

4.129



4.130



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% ����&������'������(�)��(�����)�������*��+ �,�(�-)���� ���

./0�12342�562�57228�9:�19;�<�=>9:2?@ABC@�D@@EF�GBH@@EFIJCKFLMANOKNJPQRSJLTUVLO�WXYZ[Y[W[[�W\]̂[_L]_P@TNCO�̀@EE@OabLO@A�GKcLO@AIJCKFLMANOKNJPQRSJLTUdefghf�gii�jk�lmneop�pkqqfrjstuvw�xigyoihkrzp{m|ok}pkq�~xigyoihkrzp{m|ok}pkq�������w���m{hig����fpfqnf{���������������d���uw��fheof��ffi��~e�ffi�zpoj�k�hgrjgp{m|}pkq���������w��fgyf���f��{ffh�kr��kj����ekrf���� �¡�¢�£¤¥¦�¦§�̈§ ©��ª«��¦¬§¥�§®®§� ¦ §¥�¦§�¦̄��®�¬ª ¦��¤°¦̄§¬ ± ¥��¬¤² ©¤¦ §¥�§³�¦̄��̄�¬ ¦¤��¦¬����°¬¬§°¥² ¥�¦̄��́¤¬ª�¬��µ¤¬¶�¦·�¢¦� ��ª«�°¥²�¬�¦¤¥² ¥�¦̄¤¦�¦̄��© ¦«�²§���¥§¦�«�¦�̄¤̈��¦̄��³°¥²��¦§�̧� ¥�¦̄� ¬�ª �̧�§¦¦�¥¤¬¤�¹� ̧¬¤¬«¹̄§°� ¥�®¬§º�©¦»�¤¥²�ª¤«�¥§¦�³§¬�«�¤¬��¦§�©§ª�·��¼§�¥§¦�¤��§£�¦̄��¦¬����¦§�̧��¦§°©̄�²�°¥¦ ��³ ¥¤��®�¤¥��³§¬�¦̄��®¬§º�©¦�̄¤̈��̧��¥�¤®®¬§̈�²½�¾°¬© ¦ ±�¥��̄¤̈��¦̄��¬ ̄¦�¦§��¥º§«�¦̄��¦¬����°¥¦ ���°©̄�¦ ª��¤��¦̄��®¬§º�©¦�̄¤��³°¥² ¥�¤¥²�®�¬ª ¦�½¿¥²�§¥�ÀÁ¿À�¥§¦�»�¦̄�«��̄§°�²� ¥©§¬®§¬¤¦��¦̄��¦¬����¤��̄¤��̧��¥��°��¦�²·�Â·�¼¤̈ ²�§¥�Ã¤¥¦¤�Ä¬°±�¬�� ²�¥¦

4.131



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=�>�?@AB=CD@�=A@@EFGH�IGJKLM�NJGHOJPQGJKLMRHLSQGGMTUGQVWJX�YZ[\Z[ZYZZ�Y]̂__G̀̂aLJbc�d�eOUJOLPXGM�fGQQXccXGM�NgJUGQQXccXGMRUXPSGhcLMPLUJijTUGQVkOLJ�fGQQXccXGMOJcl�m̀Xc�nOPPOJ�UGMhXJQc�QS�ciggGJP�Gh�PmO�fXPSoc�pOJXPLKO�̀JOO�qJrXMLMUO��LMr�rXJOUPnS�XMsGnsOc�PmO�]�mOJXPLKO�PJOOc�GM�nGP�tT�fXPXMK�PmO�GJrXMLMUÔ�\T�uv�mOJXPLKO�PJOO�cmLnn�GMnS�HO�JOQGsOr�XM�PmO��hGnnGwXMK�UXJUiQcPLMUOĉ�v�UGMcPJiUPXGM�gJGxOUP�rOcXKM�ULMMGP�HO�LnPOJOr��PG�LUUGQQGrLPO�OyXcPXMK�mOJXPLKO�PJOOc�GJ�cmJiHcuT�̀mO�GJrXMLMUO�Xc��HOXMK�rXcJOKLJrOr�XM�JOcgOUP�PG�PmO�MGPXUO�Gh�JOQGsLn�PmO�UXPS�gGcPOr�XM��nLPO�qUPGHOJ�GM�zGP�tT��{�Lcb�PmLP�PmO�UXPS�LHXrO�HS�GJrXMLMUO�LMr��rOcXKM�LMS�HiXnrXMKc�GM�zGP�t�PG�LUUGQQGrLPO�PmO�mOJXPLKO�PJOOcT�|GQO�Gh�PmO�mOJXPLKO�PJOOc�GM�PmO�cXPOl�XMUnirXMK�PmO�hXsO�QLKMGnXLc�LMr��PwG�nX}iOrLQHLJ�PJOOcl�wOJO�gnLMPOr�GsOJ��~Y�SOLJc�LKGT�̀mOS�LJO�L��UGQQiMXPS�nLMrQLJb�LMr�LM�XUGMXUl�XQgGJPLMP�LrrXPXGM�PG�GiJ�rGwMPGwM��iJHLM�PJOO�cULgOT�{M�LrrXPXGMl�PmOcO�PJOOc�mLsO�gJGsXrOr�cmLrO�LMr��cGnLUO�PG�PmO�JOcXrOMPc�LMr�sXcXPGJc�LP�PmO�WLJQOJc�ILJbOP�hGJ�GsOJ��PwOMPS�SOLJcT�m̀OcO�QLPiJO�PJOOc�LJO�L�UJXPXULn�UGiMPOJHLnLMUO�PG�PmO�mOLP�XcnLMr��OhhOUP�gJGriUOr�HS�PmO�HiXnP�OMsXJGMQOMP�XM�|LMPL�fJij�kGwMPGwMT�m̀OS�gJGsXrO�MOUOccLJS�cmLrO�LMr�KXsO�JOcXrOMPc�LMr�sXcXPGJc�OMGJQGic��sXciLn�gnOLciJO��XM�PmO�cgJXMK�wmOM�MOw�KJOOM�KJGwPm�HOKXMc��XM�ciQQOJ��wmOM�PmOcO�HJGLr�nOLh�PJOOc�LJO�hinn�LMr�PmO�QLKMGnXL�mLsO��HOLiPXhin��wmXPO�HnGGQc��XM�PmO�hLnn�wmOM�PmO�nX}iOrLQHLJ�KnGw�XM�GJLMKO�LMr�JOrT�m̀OS�gnLS�LM�XQgGJPLMP�JGnO�XM�gJGsXrXMK�mLHXPLP�hGJ�Lnn�bXMrc�Gh�nGULn��HXJrc�LMr�hLiMLT�{�Lcb�SGi�MGP�PG�LnnGw�L�UGMPXMiLMUO�Gh�PmXc�PJOO�JOQGsLn�gGcPOr�HS�PmO��UXPST��O�MOOr�PG�gJOcOJsO�PmOcO�QLPiJO�mOJXPLKO�PJOOc�XM�GiJ�rGwMPGwM�LMrl��mGgOhinnSl�MiJPiJO�LMr�ULJO�hGJ�PmOQ�PG�HOUGQO�OsOM�QGJO�mOLnPmST�m̀LMb�SGi�hGJ�SGiJ�wGJb�PG�mOng�gJOcOJsO�LMr�gJGQGPO�GiJ�MLPiJLn��OMsXJGMQOMPT��XPm�HOcP�JOKLJrcl�FGH�IGJKLM�eOcXrOMP�Z��SOLJc�XM�|LMPL�fJij�
4.132



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>?@?>ABCD�

4.133



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=�>?@AA@ABCDEFGH@ID@J�K?@AA@ABCDEFGH@ID@JLM@N�OPQRSQSOSS�RSTSRU@TVWEXA�Y�Z[DE[WBH@N�\@JJHAAH@N�K]ED@JJHAAH@NCDHB̂@_AWNBWDEFGID@JLàbc�deffghhgeiachj�ka�hlmmecn�noa�lmpefgiq�mcerapn�hsbnat�uec�ven�wx�ka�bca�ahmapgbssyhlmmecngza�eu�noa�buuectb{sa�oelhgiq�nobn�|gss�{a�{lgsn�noacax�}e~�|ogsa�|a�zbsla�ncaah~�|a�nclhnnoa�msbiiach�eu�nogh�mcerapn�caqbctgiq�mcambcbngei�uec�peihnclpngei~�gipsltgiq�ncaa�cafezbsx��ahncaqbcth~��gqe�ta}gszbh�bit��e{acn�ta�cagnbh~�w��yabc�cahgtainh�eu�te|ine|i�}binb�dcl�

4.134



��������������	
� ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>?@ABC�DEAFGHEI�JKABCECLIMNOHPICQRSOPTUVB�WXYZZY[X[[�Z\]̂X_O]̀IEaG�b�cVSEVIHCOF�dOPPCGGCOF�JeESOPPCGGCOFMSCHfOgGIFHISEAhRSOPTij�klm�nopqr�ost�umv�wjxxyrryjsmprz{m�pmrytmskr�|jjq�kj�}j~�kj��pjkmvk�ost�ot�jvokm��jp�j~p�vyk}�r�pmrj~pvmr�ost�j�ms�r�ovm���ilyrysv|~tmr�vyk}�kpmmr��ost�mr�mvyo||}�j~p�pmxoysys��lmpyko�m�kpmmr���ilmrm�rmmx�kj��m��m�s��v~k�tj�s�ykl��pmokmp��pm�~msv}��ost�klyr�pmo||}�x~rk�rkj����ilm��mpyko�m�ipmm��ptysosvm�rmmxr�kj��m�y�sjpmtj�mp�ost�j�mp�o�oys����sm�mr�mvyo||}�~�rm�s��m�ox�|m�yr�klm�|jjxys���pjr�mvk�j��|jrr�j��o||�klm�kpmmr�js��jk�����ilm�vjsjxyv��m�m|j�xmsk��ypmvkjp�ost��orkmp��pvlykmvk��mpm��m||�o�opm�klok�klm�jptysosvm�pm�~ypmrklm�tmry�s�j��sm���~y|tys�r�kj�ovvjxxjtokm�m�yr�s��lmpyko�m�kpmmr���ilyr��or�sjk�tjsm��}��o}rjs�pvlykmvkr����srkmot��m�lmop�klok�klm�sm���pj�mvk��y||�ysv|~tm�ro�|ys�r�js�o�pjj��tmvq��jp�ryxy|op�|ovmxmsk���ilmpm�yr�sj��o}�klok�}j~s��kpmmr�vos�pm�|ovm�klm�ms�ypjsxmsko|��msm�kr�j��xok~pmkpmmr������ms�y��klm�op�jpyrk�r�pm�jpk�ytms��mt�rjxm�yrr~mr��ykl�klm�xo�sj|yor�ost�jklmp�kpmmr��klm}opm��}�sj�xmosr�ok�klm�mst�j��klmyp�|y�mr��ost��pj�o�|}�vj~|t��msm�k��pjx��okmpys��ost�jklmp�vopmklm}�lo�m�sjk�pmvmy�mt�ys�klm�or�lo|k��opqys��|jk����mk�klm}��|mrr�~r�o||��ykl�klmyp��pmrmsvm���lmklmprlj��ys��ok�klm��opxmp�r�xopqmk�jp��~rk��o|qys���ork�klmx�ilm�xy�mt�~rm��pj�mvk�lor�sjk�rmv~pmt��~stys��ost�yk�vj~|t��m�}mopr��m�jpm�yk�tjmr����s�|�o||��~stys��jp�o||�or�mvkr�j��klok��pj�mvk�opm�rmv~pmt��klm�kpmmr�rlj~|t�sjk��m�pmxj�mt�jp�jklmp�yrm�klpmokmsmt�}�m�vo�o�jsr�js��jk������n|morm�xoqm�klok�v|mop�kj�jklmp�vyk}�tm�opkxmskr�ost�klm�wyk}�wj~svy|�ilosq�}j~��~ty��p~srkpo

4.135



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<=><�?@@<AB�BC<�?AA<=;�DE�F<GHB=I<�JG<<�K<LDM=;�DN�ODB�PQRSTURVWSRTU�XYRSTURVWSRTUZ[\WS]̂_̀\ab R̀�cdefgegcgg�chifgj̀ijkl\WSR�mlnnlRop̀RlU�XTq̀RlUZ_STr̀sUWRTW_ktû_̀\avwxy�zx{|x�}y~���xy������w�ywx|��{�}��������{wy�����������������ww|�{����xy���x{���w�ywx|��{�}��������{��wxy�{��x{�����wx��|��z|���}~||�{���yww���{���|����|�w��xy�wy���xy�w|���|���������wx�w�x��w�|�|�w�x��wx��x{���x�w�|�w��wy�|x�w�|yww���{�|�w��xy�wy���xy�w|���|�����{�v��{|��{��zx{|x�}y~���|�|����|��w�|�wyw����{��ywx��{�|��y~����~||�{�����{�|�w�w��wx~|��~��|yww������w��y����w�����yxy ��xyx�w���x{����|�����{�|�w���x{{�{���|x�w��¡|��x ��y��x �{�|��x��w{���y��w�wyx�� wxy���y�x|�x�����¢� ��w{~�w�|�w��x{���x�w�x{���ywx|w�x{�w w��yw���y�{��x��xyw{|�ywx��{£���w�w�|yww��xyw���{|�{~x�� �w¤~w�|wy�{���xy��{���y��~y��w{w��|�x����{��x��|�w ��|x{�����wx�w��w�������|w�xy�������~y�����~{�| ����x|¥� �~y�x����{|w��¦����z~�x{��xy|�{w���zx{|x�}y~���w���w{|���{�w��§̈��§©ª«ª�

4.136



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����
!�������� �����������#���$�"������%!������&�'��(�))*�)+,-./0�1+,�23��45��4+0��6�
4+7$2/�$1�8
45)
9 ���

:;<=><�?@�A@B�;<B�BC<�?<D<;@E<F>�=A?�GHBI�G@JAGH;�KJF?<F�BC@><�L<=JBHMJ;�N<FHB=O<BF<<>PQRST�UVWXY�ZRQRST[VWXYVT\] _̂S̀abcV_deVT�fghijhjfjj�iklijmVlmW\_S̀T�n\oo\TpqVT\R�ZXrVT\R]c̀XsVtRSTXScWQubcV_d

4.137



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>?=�?>@=�AB=�AC==?�DE�<DA�F�G�H=EI�AC==�JKAALEM�N=COLAPQRST�UVTWXYZ[RS�\ZQRST]V̂ _̀ TRabSX̀ cUdW�efghigieii�hijiklXjmTQn]�o�pZSQZTVRXW�qX̀ `R]]RXW�\rQSX̀ `R]]RXŴ SRVsXt]TWVTSQdubSX̀ cvZaaXwmaZT]Z�]T[Z�VxZ�VQZZ]�XW�aXV�fb�lxX]Z�TQZ�yZTdVRtda�yZRW_]w�Xaz�TWz�{RVx�̀TWs�VRZ]�VX�XdQSX̀ `dWRVsb�|�xT[Z�T�sXdW_�]XW�TWz�zdQRW_�VxZ�tTQ̀ZQ}]�̀TQnZV�xZ�R]�TyaZ�VX�raTs�RW�VxZ�VQZZ]�{RVxtQRZWz]�{xRaZ�|�T̀ �]xXrrRW_~�RV�xT]�yZZW�YXsXd]�tXQ�xR̀b�lxZ�VQZZ]�Xt�SXdQ]Z�]xZaVZQ�d]�TWz�SaZTWXdQ�TRQ~�TWz�rQX[RzZ�̀dSx�WZZzZz�yZTdVs�VX�XdQ�rT[Zz�zX{WVX{WbmaZT]Z�zZWs�VxZ�rZQ̀RV�VX�SdV�zX{W�VxZ�yZTdVRtda�VQZZ]�XW�aXV�tXdQb�aZ]]RW_]w�PQRST�UVTWXYZ[RS

4.138



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>=<?=�@A=�A=<B@CD=�@<==>�E=C<�@A=�FG<<=E@�HC<I=<J>�KC<L=@�M�NO<�@A=�PB<Q>R�BE>=F@>R>ACQ=R�P=CG@STUVWVXYYX�Z[WVW[\] [̂_̀ aaYbcà defY�ghij\i\g\\�\\kglmakmnX̀ [VY�oXppXYqraYXs�ZtuaYXs]cVt_avs[Yt[cnfwbcà dxyz{zy|z�}~z�~zy�}��z�}yzz{��z�y�}~z���yyz�}���y�zy�{���y�z}�����y�}~z���y�{����{z�}{��{~��z���z��}�����|�z��z��y�z��������������������������������y�{}��������������|�|���������������

4.139



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% ����&������'������(�)��(�����)�������*��+ �,�(�-)���� ���

./0�12345234�625�7�89::�;<<:=>?@A�BCDECFG�HIAEJKLMNCD@KODJEPBCD�QRSTUSUQUU�TVWXVYCWYZJAG@D�[J\\JD]?CDJN�HEICDJNMK@EFĈNGDEGKZ_̀OKCAPabcd�edbfcgh�ibjjbhklmhbno�pn�c�nqrrmdsbd�mt�udbbh�nrcvbn�gh�mqd�jmwhsmwho�x�cf�ybdz�fqv{�cucghns��s{b�dbfmyc|�mt�s{b�sdbbn�mh�}ms�~���e{bdb�gn�hm�vmfrb||ghu�dbcnmh�sm��crrdmyb�dbfmyc|�mt�s{bnb�sdbbn�cs�s{gn�sgfb��e{ch��zmqo�lgf��mhsmzc��chsc��dq��amwhsmwh��bngjbhs�

4.140



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>�?@ABC@AB�DE>>FGHIJK�LMNOPQ�RNHHMNOPQSTUNHOKVWQNXGQY�Z[\]S\SZSS�]ŜZ[_Q̂_MJNHOY�̀JaaJYbcQYJd�RePQYJdTWOefQgdHYeHWMhiVWQNXjkllmn�olkpqk�rmsqtukvwvkrmsqtukv�xyk�tszpl{p|lk�skku�}mv�xvkkq�ts�xyk�um~sxm~s�pvkp����{qx�p�}k~n�m}��ps�n���mtsxq�pvk�����yk��psxp��v{��rtx���lt�pxk��rxtms�olps�rpllq�}mv��mvk�xvkkq�smx�lkqq�����vkkq�~tll�rmsxts{k�xm��vmztuk�|ksk}txq�pq�lms��pq�xyk��vk�pts�pltzk�����ykvk�tq�sm�rm��kllts��vkpqms�xm�r{x�xyk�xvkkq�sm~�vpxykv�xyps�lpxkv�����ykqk�pvk�ykvtxp�k�xvkkq�psu�skku�xm�|k�qpzku���k�~tll�|k�~pxryts��}mv��m{v���vt�yxn��mvpl�prxtms�����yps���m{������v�t�m�

4.141



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<=�>?=�?=@A>;B=�>@==CDEFGHI�JHFKLM�NOPHFKLMQKRHLPSTURVWUF�XYZ[\Z\X\\�X]̂_̀aÛabIRHLF�cIddIFefUFIM�NghUFIMQTLgiUjMHFgHTbOkSTURVlIHb�abIRHLF�cIddIFefUFIM̂mnIbi�GIbLgHKI�gbII�opGLTG�UjgIF�gUUq�GOFdbId�rPOM�iIHbM�gU�KbUps�dUIM�MU�ROTG�jUb�THbtUFTHrgObIS�cIbIuM�H�bUOKG�IMgLRHgIv�tHMId�UF�FLFIv�[XXw�iIHb�UPd�gbIIM�Uj�PIMM�gGHF�̀u�_ZxyTLbTORjIbIFTÎ���(�����"�������!�'$7�� � )���-��"�������������&������!������������(�$ �6��������������!����&�� � 
z�����������������{����(������������������� ����||��7��������!�-�����{�������� � /�����������������������7��!!�����!�"������(�������-����7�!���}"��(�$�~lU�FUg�I�gIbFHPLkI�LgM�THbtUFebIRUnHP�HMMIg�dObLFK�gGLM�gLRI�Uj�THbtUF�TbLMLMS�abIIM�HbI�gGIMOMgHLFIbM�Uj�IHbgG�pGLPI�KHMerbUrIPPId�THbM�HFd�TIRIFg�rHbqLFK�PUgM�bIrPHTLFK�gGIR�HbI�gGIdIMgbUiIbM�Uj�MOMgHLFHtLPLgiSaGI�dIHgG�Uj�InIbi�gbII�LM�HFUgGIb�MGUnIP�dLKKLFK�GORHFLgiuM�KbHnIS���pHFgUF�pHMgIS���MHTbLPIKIS��rbIrUMgIbUOM�HTgLUFv�RIHFLFKv�PLgIbHPPiv�PId�ti�gGI�HMM�bHgGIb�gGHF�gGI�GIHd̂�RUnLFK�tHTqpHbdMvrbUrIPPId�ti�IKUePUKLT�bHgGIb�gGHF�ITUePUKLT����U�gbII�MGUOPd�tI�gHqIF�UOg�OFgLP�HPP�jLFHP�rPHFM�HbI�HrrbUnIdv�jLFHFTLFK�LM�TURrPIgIv�HFd�gGIrbUhITg�LM��MGUnIP�bIHdiv��pGLTG�RHi�gHqI�H�iIHb�Ub�RUbIS��LFTIbIPivEFGHI�JHFKLM
4.142



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<=>�?@>�A>BC?<D>�?B>>EFGHIJKHLM�NOMMPMO�QLROMMPMOSTPKUVWLGPXYGH�Z[\]̂\̂Ẑ �̂]]_̂̀aG_aOMPKUH�bMccMHdeGHMI�QJfGHMISLUJgGhIKHJKLOijWLGPXbMVVGklVMKIM�KLLMmJ�JnM�KmmMKV�JG�IKoM�JnM�bMOUJKTM�JOMMI�cGpHJGpH�KHc�RMMm�JnM�mKORUHT�VGJ�KI�UIW�anMOMKOM�nKOcVg�KHg�JOMMI�cGpHJGpHW�qM�KOM�mKoUHT�mKOKcUIM�hGO�rmOGTOMIIkr�KHc�UJ�pUVV�sM�OMTOMJJKsVMWqM�HMMc�PGOM�JOMMI�KHc�TOMMH�ImKLM�d�UJ�pUVV�sMKiJUhg�cGpHJGpH�OKJnMO�JnKH�PKRM�KHGJnMO�MgMIGOMWlVMKIM�cG�JnM�OUTnJ�JnUHT�d�IKoM�JnM�JOMMI�KHc�KLLMmJ�JnM�KmmMKVWtUHLMOMVgkFGHIJKHLM�NOMMPMO

4.143



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<<�=>><=?@AB�CDEFGDF�HBABIEFGFJKLBMNOPDLQRDF�STUVWUWSWW�VXYSSZDYZA[LBMF�\[]][F̂CDF[G�H_IDF[GJPM_̀DaGBF_BPAbcOPDLQd�BL�e[À�aAbG_AB_[]�_EB_�_E[G[�E[AM_BK[�_A[[G�BA[�GPE[]bN[]�_D�f[�A[LDe[]g�f[aDA[�h[ALM_G�BA[[e[F�MF�hNBP[�_D�fbMN]O�ZE[G[�_A[[G�fAMFK�eBNb[�_D�DbA�PDLLbFM_̀i�_E[A[�BA[Fj_�LBF̀�E[AM_BK[�_A[[GN[a_�MF�_E[�]DkF_DkF�BA[Bl�mN[BG[�GBe[�DbA�_A[[Glln@AB�CDEFGDF�

4.144



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<<�=>><?@ABCDE�FBGG�HIIJBCDEKBGGLMNODGPQRNSTRE�UVWIXWXUXX�IXYZ[\RY\]BNODE�̂B__BÈaREBb�HcdREBbLQDceRfbOEcOQ]ghPQRNSTe�EONB�Db�ABCDE�FBGG�OE_�i�ON�jbJDEM�ckB�lRNNDbbDREB]b�cR�OQQBmc�ckB�OmmBOG�OE_�bOCB�ckBkB]DcOMB�c]BBbPn�\kB]B�O]B�NOEe�QGDNOcB�KBEBfDcb�f]RN�c]BBb�OE_�ckB�bkO_B�ckBe�m]RCD_BPn�\kB�m]RmRbB_�KgDG_DEM�Db�ERc�BCBE�mB]NDccB_�eBcP�̂Ro�QOE�ckB�c]BBb�KB�Qgc�DE�O_COEQBpn�qR�c]BB�bkRgG_�KB�cOJBE�Rgc�gEcDG�OGG�fDEOG�mGOEb�O]B�Omm]RCB_r�fDEOEQDEM�Db�QRNmGBcBr�OE_�ckBm]RdBQc�Db�sbkRCBG�]BO_ert�okDQk�NOe�cOJB�O�eBO]�R]�NR]BP\kOEJ�eRg�\]BNODEPuDEQB]BGerABCDE�FBGG

4.145



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<<�=>><?@ABCDE�FGHEIEH�JKBCDELMGHEIEHNIGOMEDCPQGMRFGH�STUVWUWSWW�SXYTZ[GY[\]MEDH�̂]__]H̀AGH]a�JOKGH]aNQDObGcaEHOEQ\BdPQGMRefgh�ijklmlnohgpqf�rstfhqlnuh�vfjjfmwxumfnyz�gk�{hlpm|�ou�}us�oujg}�gn�g�~um|pkf�hfnljfmo�u��o�f�rgmog��hs���ukksmlo}�{�u�ln�jfft~}�um�fhmfj�g�uso�o�f�ohffn�lm�ju{mou{m�r���uo��y��umj~}��mu{m��}�~u�g~n�gn�o�f�thfnfmo���ghkfhn�gh�fo�~uo���z�{us~j�~l�f�ou�nff�o�fnf�ohffn�ngqfjy�gmj�ou��fgh�g�uso�o�f��lo}�n�t~gmn�ou�thuof�o�o�fnfqg~sg�~fy��lnouhl�g~�tghon�u��ush�ju{mou{m�~gmjn�gtf�gmj��fhlog|f���f�ju�muo��gqf�kgm}�ohffn�lmush�ju{mou{my�gmj��fftlm|�o�f�umfn�{f�ju��gqf�nffkn�lo�n�us~j��f�g�thluhlo}�|lqfm�o�flh��fgso}y�uu~lm|��fgoshfny�gmj�lktg�o�ou��~lkgof���gm|f��sho�fhy�{�l~f�z�smjfhnogmj�o�go�o�f��lo}�ln�kuqlm|�ou�hftshtunf�o�f�~uoy�ln�lo�muo�tunnl�~f�ou�~uu��goklp|gpum�t~gmn��uh�o�f�ohffn��vu{�jufn�o�flh�nogosn�gn��fhlog|f�ohffn��ukf�lmou�t~g}��fhf����}ksno�o�f�ohffn��f��so�ju{m�mu{y�{�fm��umnohs�pum�ln��fhoglm~}�muo�lkklmfmo���us�gmj�{f��gqf�o�fpkf�hl|�o�mu{�ou��|shf�o�ln�usoy��f�uhf�tfhklon�ghf�lnnsfj�gmj��umnohs�pum��f|lmn�z�g|hff�{lo��uo�fh�~u�g~�hfnljfmon�o�go�mu�ohff�n�us~j��f�og�fm�uso�smp~�g~~��mg~�t~gmn�ghf�gtthuqfjy�mgm�lm|�ln��ukt~fofy�gmj�o�f�thu�f�o�ln��n�uqf~�hfgj}y��{�l���kg}�og�f�g�}fgh�uh�kuhf���gm��}us�lm�gjqgm�f��uh�}ush��umnljfhgpum�u��o�ln�lktuhogmo�lnnsf����f�u�fgm�kg}��fgh�ju{m�um�fno��~l��ehlqf�gmj�{f��gqf�ou��g�~f�o�go�{lo��hltwhgt�hft~g�fkfmo���so�o�f�ohffn�ghf�nukfo�lm|{lo�lm�o�f�tshqlf{�u��}ush�u��f�gmj�ush�{uh��ou|fo�fh�ou�ngqf�o�fnf��fgsp�s~�tlf�fn�u��mgoshf�lng~nu�tunnl�~f���~lkgof���gm|f�ou�o�f�tulmo�u��mu�hfoshm�ln�muo�g��uhf|umf��um�~snlumy�gmj�z��utf�o�f�lo}��gm��fft�{uh�lm|�ou�klp|gof�lo�lm�{g}n��l|�gmj�nkg~~�rlm�fhf~}yxs~lg��umg�gm

4.146



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����
!�������� �����������#���$�"������%!������&�'��(�))*�)+,-./0�1+,�23��45��4+0��6�
4+7$2/�$1�8
45)
9 ���

:;<<�=>><?@�ABCD�EFGHIJK�LMNOPQRJO�SKHIRTMNOUVWHJXYZMW[\MO�]̂_̀a_a]aa�]bcdefMcfNRWHJO�gRKKROhiMORP�SQjMORPUZJQkMlPHOQHZNmnYZMW[GRHN�fNRWHJOopP�kMm�qOMro�QsR�tHOQH�uNmn�uJQk�HNTMNJPQ�sHP�NRZMWWROKRK�vNRPRNIJOV�w�Ml�QsR�x�sRNJQHVR�QNRRPMO�yMQ�wYz�QsJOq�QsR�uJQk�PsMmXK�HTJKR�Tk�JQP�MrO�sRNJQHVR�QNRR�MNKJOHOZR�HOK�vNRPRNIR�HQ�XRHPQ�QsRPR�w�QNRRPY{NRPRNIJOV�sRNJQHVR�QNRRP�vNMIJKRP�WHOk�TRORlJQP�QM�QsR�ZMWWmOJQkY�tMWR�Ml�QsRPR�HNR�PsHKRosHTJQHQ�lMN�TJNKPo�HOK�TRHmQkYfsR�KRPJVO�vXHO�lMN�QsR�mvZMWJOV�XJTNHNk�ZMWvXR|�ZHO�HZZMWWMKHQR�QsR�vNRPRNIHQJMO�Ml�QsRsRNJQHVR�QNRRPYfsHOq�kMm�lMN�kMmN�RllMNQPYGHIJK�LMNOPQRJOaà�gmTTHNK�tQNRRQtHOQH�uNmno�up�x̂]b]

4.147



4.148



4.149



4.150



4.151



4.152



From: Celine Grenier
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Tree Appeal
Date: Tuesday, December 06, 2022 3:53:45 PM

Dear M. Hedden-Jones,

We would ask that the trees that are to be cut down in the parking lot
downtown be spared as long as possible, ideally until they die of natural
causes. One reason we go "all the way" to Santa Cruz from Capitola is
because of the trees that we don't have many of here. Why make downtown
Santa Cruz less attractive -- especially sooner than what may be seen as
necessary.

Thanks for you time,

Celine Grenier and Jon Fatula

4.153

mailto:celine.grenier@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<==�>??=@ABCDE�FDGHIFJ�KBLMFDGHIFJNOBCGPQRSBTUSJ�VWXYMXMVMM�YYZY[\SZ\DFBCGJ�]F̂ F̂J_̀SJFI�KabSJFINRGaEScICJaCRDdeQRSBTfFCD�\DFBCGJg�CB�hDGaGJO�aS�CIH�aiCa�aiF�jCDHI�CĴ�kFR�RSBBGIIGSJFDI�lPFCIF�IlCDF�aiF�iFDGaCOF�aDFFI�GJ�aiFmCDBFDI�UCDHFa�nSa�L�GJ�̂ShJaShJo�pF�RCJJSa�CccSD̂�aS�PSIF�hiCa�cFh�lDFRGSdI�PCDOF�aDFFI�hFiCqF�̂ShJaShJ�FIlFRGCPPE�GJ�ĈqCJRF�Sc�aiF�lDSlSIF̂�rdGP̂GJO�FqFJ�rFGJO�lFDBGaaF̂s�tĴ�g�iĈaiSdOia�aiFDF�hCI�C�iFDGaCOF�aDFF�SD̂GJCJRFsss�\iGJOI�BCE�IaGPP�RiCJOF�IS�aiFDF�GI�JS�DFCISJ�aSF̂lDGqF�dI�Sc�aiSIF�PSqFPE�aDFFI�dJaGP�CrISPdaFPE�JFRFIICDEQ\iCJH�ESd�cSD�dĴFDIaCĴGJO�CĴ�RCDGJO�cSD�aiF�lFSlPF�hiS�PGqF�GJ�ICJaC�RDde�CĴ�aiF�aDFFIaiFBIFPqFIoUCDE�uDGHIFJ

4.154



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����
!�������� �����������#���$�"������%!������&�'��(�))*�)+,-./0�1+,�23��45��4+0��6�
4+7$2/�$1�8
45)
9 ���

:;<<�=>><?@ABCD�EFGHIJ�KLJFGHIJHMNMILMBHOPJFOQAIJ�RSTUVTVRVV�UWXSRYIXYCFLBZJ�[F\\FJ]̂IJFH�KO_IJFHNMZODÌHBJOBMCabPMILQcdefge�hiegeije�kle�leimkfne�kieeg�op�qok�rs���tui�vfpkf�wiux�wdmyfke�z{kmop�cdfp�{fddg�|oi�yoie�kieeg}�pokdeggs���~leie�mg�po�{oyheddmpn�iefgop�ko�{uk�kle�kieeg�po�s���o�kieeg�gloud���e�{uk�upkmd�fdd�|mpfd�hdfpg�fiefhhioje��fp��|mpfp{mpn�mg�{oyhdeke�|oi�kle�pe��dm�ifi�s�~lfp���ou�|oi�kf�mpn�{fie�o|�oui�kieeg�fp��oui�nieep�|ukuies��fi���edgop������wf�unf�vks�vepk�|ioy�y��mcf��

4.155



From: Nita nita
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Tree Appesl
Date: Tuesday, December 06, 2022 1:52:28 PM

Dear commissioner,

I’m writing on behalf of quality of life in downtown Santa Cruz in the life of the heritage trees
on lot four. With a little greenery there is in the downtown, and the lack of an actual solid plan
I think removal of the trees is premature.

No tree should be taken out until all final plans are approved, financing is complete, and the
project is “shovel ready,” which may take a year or more.

It is a delight to have greenery and living things surrounding us in the very concreteness of
the downtown. I urge you to forestall any removal until it’s absolutely necessary if that time
ever comes.

Thank you,

Nita Hertel

4.156

mailto:nitahertel@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<==�>;�?><@=<A�B><C=;DEFFGH�IJKLJF�MNOJKLJFPHQHRSFELTUVF�WXYZ[Y[W[[�[\]Ẑ_J]_KEOQGF�̀ENNEFabJFEH�MLcJFEHPdGLeJfHQFLQdKVgSdJOThijjkl�m�nopq�ristu�qrsq�qri�vwqx�wp�yjszzwz{�qk�voq�uk|z�qrsq{kt{ikop�qtii�wz�qri�jkq�qrsq�rkopip�}ri�~st�itp��st�iq�������������}����}h�}���m���poti�m���nopq�kzi�k���szx��szx�yikyji�|rk�jk�i�qrsqqtii������}���}�m}����������}��}�m}l���������izzwp��ktqkz�1�����"���!...!���!���

4.157



From: Pauline Seales
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones; Leslie Keedy; Parks and Rec; John Hall; Lynda Marin; Magi Amma; Susan Cavalieri
Subject: Tree Cut Permit Appeal
Date: Tuesday, December 06, 2022 3:45:54 PM

Dear Parks & Rec,
My co-appellants insist that we restate our position about any "continuance" or other potential
delay.
We strongly request that the appeal be not just agendized but actually heard on 12/12/22.
To fail to do this would violate the specific regulation 9.56.070 (a) (3).

"The commission shall complete its action within thirty days from the date the matter is
first scheduled for public hearing, unless appellant and appellee mutually agree to
extend said thirty-day period.”

Here is the link to the regulation.

I previously stated clearly that I did not agree to extend the period.
Thanks for all your work on behalf of the people of the city.
Sincerely Pauline Seales

4.158

mailto:paulineseales120@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:parksandrec@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jrhall103@mac.com
mailto:lmarin@cruzio.com
mailto:magi@hippocampus.com
mailto:susanwcavalieri@gmail.com
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaCruz/html/SantaCruz09/SantaCruz0956.html


��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% ����&������'������(�)��(�����)�������*��+ �,�(�-)���� ���

./00�1233456�75�873�9�:;;0<=>??@�ABC?>�D>??@ABC?>EFGAHBIJKGLMKN�OPQRSQSOSS�SRTOUVKTWA>XY�Z�[?J>?A\HKN�]KGGHYYHKN�DC>JKGGHYYHKNEJH\̂K_YAN\AJ>̀aIJKGLb�AG�c>H\HNF�\K�?dC>?YY�G �̂ỲCCK>\�_K>�\e?�ACC?AB�ceHJe�eAY�f??N�_HB?@�K_�\e?�g?>H\AF?�\>??hJ̀\\HNFC?>GH\i�CKY\?@�KN�\e?�jA>G?>Yk�MA>X?\�lmK\�no�\>??YI�b�\eHNX�\eHY�C?>GH\�YeK̀B@�f?�>?JKNYH@?>?@IYHNJ?�\e?>?�HY�NK�?pH@?NJ?�\eA\�C>?Y?>pA\HKN�K_�\e?Y?�e?>H\AF?�\>??Y�eAY�f??N�HNJB̀@?@�HN�\e?�@?YHFNC>KJ?YYI�VeHY�JKNYH@?>A\HKN�ACC?A>Y�\K�f?�>?q̀H>?@�f̂�K̀\�M ǸHJHCAB�]K@?I�Ve?Y?�\>??Y�A>?�pAB̀AfB?\K�K̀>�JKGG ǸH\̂�_K>�\e?H>�f?À\̂�AN@�_K>�\e?�Kd̂F?N�\eA\�\e?̂�C>KpH@?I�r\e?>�C>Ks?J\Y�eAp?�_K̀N@cÂY�\K�ApKH@�J̀\\HNF�@KcN�e?>H\AF?�\>??YI�VeHY�YeK̀B@�f?�JKNYH@?>?@�Y?>HK̀YB̂�C>HK>�\K�J̀\\HNF@KcN�\eHY�HGCK>\AN\�>?YK̀>J?Ib�eKC?�\eA\�\e?�]KGGHYYHKN�cHBB�>?JKGG?N@�\eA\�NK�\>??Y�f?�\AX?N�K̀\�̀N\HB�ABB�_HNAB�CBANY�A>?ACC>Kp?@i�_HNANJHNF�HY�JKGCB?\?i�AN@�\e?�C>Ks?J\�HY�tYeKp?B�>?A@̂�AN@�\eA\�\e?�C>?Y?>pA\HKN�K_\e?Y?�\>??Y�YeK̀B@�f?�Y\>KNFB̂�?NJK̀>AF?@IVeANX�̂K̀�_K>�̂K̀>�JKNYH@?>A\HKNIuNN�[??@�MANF?BY�uBC?vKcN\KcN�wAN\A�]>̀a�>?YH@?N\�AN@�C>KC?>\̂�KcN?>�

4.159



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<<�;<=>?@ABCDEFG�HIJKDHDDE�LMNOPQCDEFGRSTIUGVQWTXYWJ�Z[\]̂\̂Ẑ �̂Z_̀]ZaẀaEDTIUJ�bDccDJdeWJDN�LPfWJDNRQUPFWgNIJPIQEhiVQWTXjklmnl�op�qpr�sltpul�mqv�rslln�wqrxk�ryl�ulsv�kmnr�txqwrl�zylq�{pqnrsw{rxpq�|l}xqn~��ylsvk�umq�l�lls�����mumkpq��r��mqrm��sw��������

4.160



��������������	�� 
������������������������������������������

�����	��������� �!!����" ������������������#��$�!��������% �����&�'�(�))*�)+,-./01+,�23��45��4+0��6�"4+7$2/
$1�8"45)"9 ���

:;<�=>??@ABCDEB�FBBGH�IDJBBGHKLEMHNOCPQMPLRSTULNVWXNQ�YZ[\][]Y]]�Ŷ_]̂Ǹ_̀RBVPEQ�aBGGBQbcNQBC�IMdNQBCKLEMHNOCPQMPLRSTULNVWefghig�hjj�kl�mnofpq�qlrrgimlsjgsqgtuvwx�yffgs�zhr{gr�|gffgs}~hr{gr��h�ll}ql{�������x��lsjh����gqg{ogr�������������������vx��rg{hps��gjjgs��lsgi�|k�lsgi�qpk�l~ihskhqrn�}ql{����x�zrgj��ggfg��|~rgjgrpq��ggfg�������{hpf}ql{��� gifpg��ggj��|f�ggj��qpk�l~ihskhqrn�}ql{���¡¢£���x��rggi¤¥¦§̈¦�©ª�«ª¬�®¬�©ª̄ «�¬°¦�¬±¦¦̈�ª«�²ª¬�³�®«¬́¥�¬°¦±¦�́̈�«ª�ª¬°¦±�ªµ¬́ª«¶·°¦�µ±ªµª̈¦©�̧®́¥©́«¹�́̈�«ª¬�¦º¦«�µ¦±»¬́¬¦©�¼¦¬¶�½ª̄ �§«�¬°¦�¬±¦¦̈�̧¦�®¬�́«§©º§«¦¾¿ª�¬±¦¦�̈°ª®¥©�̧¦�¬§À¦«�ª®¬�®«¬́¥�§¥¥�Á́«§¥�µ¥§«̈�§±¦�§µµ±ªº¦©Â�Á́«§«́«¹�́̈�ª»µ¥¦¬¦Â§«©�¬°¦�µ±ªÃ¦¬�́̈�Ä̈°ªº¦¥�±¦§©¼ÂÅ�̄°́°�»§¼�¬§À¦�§�¥ª«¹�¬́»¦¶Ǽ¥¥́«¹�§�¬±¦¦�¬ª�̈§¬́̈Á¼�§�µª¥́¬́§¥�µª̈ ¬́́ª«�»§À¦̈�¬°¦�́¬¼�̈¬§ÁÁ�§«©�¦¥¦¬¦©�ªÁÁ́́§¥̈¥ªªÀ�±¦§¥¥¼�±®¦¥¶·°¦±¦�́̈�«ª�̄§¼�Ç�§«�Á¦¦¥�¹ªª©�§̧ª®¬�®¬¬́«¹�¬±¦¦̈�«ª̄ �̄°¦«�́¬�́̈�®««¦¦̈ §̈±¼Â�§«©�Ç¯́¥¥�±¦»¦» ¦̧±�¬°́ �̈«¦È¬�¬́»¦�Ç�ºª¬¦¶·°§«À�¼ª®�Áª±�¬§À́«¹�»¼�ªµ́«́ª«�́«¬ª�ª«̈ ©́¦±§¬́ª«¶É§±»¥¼ÂÊ¥¥¦«Ê¥¥¦«�Ë§±»¦±ÌÍÎ�Ë§́±»ª®«¬�Ïº¦Ð§«¬§�Ñ±®ÒÂ�ÑÏ�ÓÔÕÌÍÖ×ÎØÙÔÕØÓÙÓÓ
�����Ú�����������&����Û��0��������Ü���Ý"��ÞÝÞÞ������ !�����#$���� ���

4.161



��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����
!�������� �����������#���$�"������%!������&�'��(�))*�)+,-./0�1+,�23��45��4+0��6�
4+7$2/�$1�8
45)
9 ���

:;<<=>?@A?�BCDEFG�HIJCDEFGKLM?EDNFCMOPC@�QRSTUSUQUU�QVWUXYCWYIZM?E@�[ZAAZ@\]C@ZJ�Ĥ_C@ZJKFỀCaJ?@̂?FIbcNFCMOdefghf�ijklm�nom�ijpk�mqjhf�rfgomstoe�muffh�sk�ejm�tjou�vfmw�xqf�yujzfnm�sh�kjm�f{fk�hmgumfi|�sm�psee�rf�}jkmqh�gki}jkmqh�st�kjm�vfguh�rftjuf�mqgm�yegnf�kffih�mj�rf�nefgufiw�~f�kffi�gee�mqf�muffh�pf�ngk��fm|�gh�vjo�gee��kjpw�ki�}gvrf�hj}fmqsk��ngk�rf�ijkf�mj�pju��gujoki�mqf}w��k�gkv�nghf|�yefghf�ijklm�nom�mqf}�ijpk�kjpw�

4.162



From: Susie
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Trees on Lot 4
Date: Wednesday, December 07, 2022 8:16:39 AM

Good morning,

Please consider leaving these trees intact for as long as possible.  They add so much beauty to Cedar Street.

Thank you.

Melinda Ellestad
124 Averitt Street

...

4.163

mailto:sellestad@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


From: sheila carrillo
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Trees on lot 4
Date: Tuesday, December 06, 2022 2:46:59 PM

Hello Tremain,

I hope that you will let the trees stay standing as long as is viable. To me, it makes sense that no tree should be taken
out until all final plans are approved, financing is complete, and the project is “shovel ready,” which may take a year
or more. There are many things that can delay or postpone this project and I don’t see any reason to remove the trees
prematurely.

Thank you for taking community input into account!!

Sheila

4.164

mailto:escuelita@baymoon.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Roland Saher
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: trees on lot 4
Date: Wednesday, December 07, 2022 10:46:34 AM

The trees do not need to be taken out at this point at all! All city rules need to be
followed to begin with, and then we can wait until any buildings - if there will be
any! - are shovel ready.
Respectfully, Roland Saher

4.165

mailto:rolandsaher@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


��������������	�
 ��������������������������������������������

��� �	���������!�""�����#!�������� �����������$���%�"������&!������'�(��)�**+�*,-./01�2,-�34��56��5,1��7�#5,8%30�%2�9#56*#: ���

;<==>�?@�A?;�BCDEFGH�IFJKL�MLDEFGHNFJKLOPQFRESTDQUVDG�WXYZ[Y[W[[�ZW\X]D̂\̂LKQFRG�_KHHKG̀aDGKN�MbcDGKNOTRbdDeNFGbFTLfgSTDQUh�NbLDGPEd�DicKTb�bD�bJK�TfbbRGP�De�bJK�bLKKN�DG�EDb�jk�KNlKTRFEEd�iKeDLK�bJK�efbfLKlEFGN�eDL�bJK�EDb�JFmK�iKKG�NKbbEKHSĴK�TRbd�GKKHN�bD�eDEEDn�RbN�DnG�LfEKN�LKPFLHRGP�bJK�eKEERGP�De�bLKKNoCDEFGH�IFJKL

4.166



4.167



4.168



From: Leslie Keedy
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: FW: Our Heritage Tree Ordinance Speaks for Lot 4 Trees
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 10:23:20 AM
Attachments: Lot 4 Maples.heif

Lot 4 Magnolias .heif

From: Keresha Durham <the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, December 09, 2022 7:45 AM
To: Leslie Keedy <lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com>; Parks & Recreation Commission
<prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com>
Cc: Sandy Brown <sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com>; Justin Cummings
<jcummings@cityofsantacruz.com>; City Council <citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com>; Martine
Watkins <mwatkins@cityofsantacruz.com>; Donna Meyers <dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com>; Renee
Golder <rgolder@cityofsantacruz.com>; sjohnson-kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com; Sonja Brunner
<sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com>
Subject: Our Heritage Tree Ordinance Speaks for Lot 4 Trees
 

Esteemed Tree Decision-makers- City Council, Leslie and
Tremain,
 
“It's not about what it is, it's about what it can become.
I am the Lorax. I speak for the trees. I speak for the trees, for the
trees have no tongues.” 
― Dr. Seuss, The Lorax
 
 
OUR AWESOME TREE ORDINANCE
Please refer to and follow our beautifully-written The
Heritage Tree Ordinance (read it below) which calls to
protect, design around and preserve our urban trees, which
include the Lot 4, three magnificent, 50 and 100 year old
Magnolias and two elder 40 foot, towering, colorful, lovely,
Liquid Amber trees! (PHOTOS ATTACHED) This ordinance
advises against destruction since "the removal of mature, heritage trees can take
generations to restore."
 

4.169

mailto:lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com
mailto:lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jcummings@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:mwatkins@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:rgolder@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sjohnson-kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com
https://www.goodreads.com/work/quotes/886002




TREE CANOPY BENEFITS
Santa Cruz City is unique in that we have fought to preserve
our large tree canopy, which is so beneficial in this era of
human-caused climate crisis. Large, mature trees sequester the
most carbon, clean air pollutants and prevent pavement heat.
They provide needed habitat, spiritual renewal and joy! Were you
lucky enough to have a large tree friend to climb as a kid? I was!
 
TREES NEED CAREGIVERS
These trees are not getting the care they deserve. Being
surrounded by cement and soaking up oil from this parking lot
weakens our beloved trees. If recycled water is used to water
trees, this can cause large trees to die from too much salt
content. They need fertilizer, amended soil and clean water.
 
MOVE THE TREES AS A LAST RESORT
If the project designers uncreatively refuse to build around these
trees, moving large trees is possible, rather than destroying them.
 
REPLANT LARGER NATIVE TREES
If you must create a replacement canopy for lost or moved trees,
re-plant with large, native-to-this-region trees, not the
diminutive, decorative trees on Pacific Avenue. Think of the
trees that are planted around city hall and on the former Pacific
Garden Mall, they were gorgeous, artful, tall trees providing so
much joy!
 
SANTA CRUZ'S TREE ORDINANCE STATES:
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18
SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO THE PRESERVATION
OF HERITAGE TREES

4.170



WHEREAS, the City of Santa Cruz has actively encouraged the
development of a safe,
healthy and attractive environment in which its residents can live and work;
and

WHEREAS, in pursuit of these goals the City recognizes the substantial
environmental,
aesthetic and economic importance of its diverse urban forest consisting of
indigenous as well as
non-native trees; and

WHEREAS, this invaluable urban forest has been, and continues to be, an
asset to the
community inasmuch as it contributes to the environmental, aesthetic and
economic stability of
the community; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz recognize that the preservation of
this invaluable
resource is a heritage to the community at large; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz therefore understand that the
preservation of their
urban forest existing on both public and private property is important to
them and their
community in order to:

(a) Protect, conserve and enhance the City’s attractiveness and its aesthetic
and scenic
environment;

(b) Develop and promote an awareness and understanding of the
importance of urban
forests to the citizens of Santa Cruz;

4.171



(c) Encourage and assure the continuation of quality community
development where
existing trees are incorporated into any development and accorded proper
maintenance and protection as a part of the City’s urban forest;

(d) Act as a buffer against urban traffic noise and wind damage, provide
protection from
wind erosion, and provide a privacy screen;

(e) Aid in the reduction of air pollution given the known capacity of trees to
ingest
carbon dioxide and produce oxygen thereby enhancing air quality;

(f) Assist in the absorption of rain waters thereby protecting against soil
erosion by
flooding; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz recognize the right of individuals to
develop,
maintain and enjoy private property to the fullest possible extent consistent
with the public
interest in preserving and maintaining the City’s urban forest in general.
 
PURPOSE
This Chapter is enacted to recognize, protect, optimize and responsibly
manage the community
urban forest by establishing standards and policy consistent with private
rights to develop and
use property in a manner not prejudicial to the public interest while
maintaining the health and
safety of both the urban forest and citizenry.
 
It is the purpose of this Chapter to promote and protect a thriving urban
forest and to facilitate proper management practices that include the City’s
ability to protect and preserve tree resources through regulating their
removal, and

4.172



to effectively enforce tree preservation and zoning regulations, and to
promote an appreciation and understanding of trees and their intrinsic
value.
 
(a) Among the environmental assets that contribute to the livability and
attractiveness of the City
of Santa Cruz are its trees, both indigenous and introduced. Growing in
urban settings,
neighborhoods, business and commercial districts, in parks and in open
spaces, as single
specimens or in groves, trees contribute significant tangible benefits, both
psychological and
environmental, for the residents and visitors to our community alike.
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18
3
(b) Trees contribute beneficially to the urban environment and contribute to
our community’s
and the state’s climate action goals.
 
Tree canopy coverage reduces heat buildup, noise and air pollutants;
improves air quality, reduces particulates, and provides oxygen.
 
Trees also enhance the aesthetic environment and contribute visually to the
City by providing scenic views, scale,
color, silhouette and mass.
 
Trees contribute to the protection of other natural resources by providing
erosion control, management of storm water and urban runoff, increased
infiltration and groundwater recharge, and improved water retention
capacity of soils.
 
Trees provide screens and buffers to separate land uses and are often
landmarks or contribute to the significance of the
City’s history.
 

4.173



Trees contribute to the economy of the City by increasing and sustaining
property
values, creating employment and training opportunities, and reducing
energy costs.

(c) The urban forest requires stewardship from both community members
and the City to
maximize its benefits, such as tree canopy coverage, shaded areas, and
enhanced habitat for
wildlife on private and public lands.

(d) The City’s trees collectively constitute an urban forest and an
ecosystem. Removal and
planting of trees can create both negative impact, affecting the urban forest
and the
City as a whole. The removal of mature trees may in some cases take
generations to fully restore.

(e) Appropriate management of non-native invasive species is encouraged
by the City of Santa
Cruz. Tree replacement requirements are designed to bolster native plant
and animal communities and habitats.
 
 
Clearly this ordinance would have you care for
and save these precious trees in lot 4 and
include them in the design of any project.
 
Sincerely,
K. Durham
Environmental Activist
Resident of Santa Cruz since 1981
Educator since 1987
Proud Tree Hugger, Happy Tree Caregiver

4.174



--
Keresha Durham~ educator, environmentalist
"care-sha"
 
_≈o
_-\<,_
(_)/ (_)
For a quality future for all living things, the earth needs small families

Balance population with finite natural resources
Reduce human-caused carbon
 

4.175



From: Robin
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: 4th Generation Santa Cruzan
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 10:55:15 PM

Thank you for taking my email.
I have grown up with the trees in this town.
I’ve lived on
Ocean St. Extension
California St.
Washington St.
Soquel Ave.
Seabright Ave.
King St.
Kenneth St.
Sycamore St.
Clares St.
Portola Ave.
Alice St.
and
Westmoor Ct.

In the constantly changing landscape as a child and now, on my street as an adult, few things have remained a
constant. I could always count on the beach and the trees to remind me as to where I was.
Please repeal the permit to remove the heritage trees in lot 4.
They are part of the fabric that is Santa Cruz.
They are our history.
I feel confident that the construction design can accommodate such beauties.

Thank you
Robin Burns Lerios
Owner of York Framing Gallery

Sent from my iPhone

4.176

mailto:robin_lerios@comcast.net
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Lira Filippini
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Agenda Item 4; 12/12/22; Support the Appeal
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 3:59:49 PM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commissioners,

I write in support of the appeal and urge you to revoke the tentative tree removal permits on
the grounds that it violates the Heritage Tree Ordinance.

As you know, "A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design
cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage trees."

The applicants contend that the design cannot be modified to accommodate the heritage trees
without nullifying the project's operations or uses, as directed by City Council.  There is a
glaring omission in this argument.

The City Council voted to continue the conceptual design for a project to include 100-125
affordable housing units, 310 parking stalls, and a new library at the subject site.  However,
the design currently also includes roughly 9,000 square feet of new commercial space.

The stated main project components are the library, parking, and housing.  We have an
abundance of empty commercial space downtown and commercial space is not a stated project
goal voted on by City Council.

A reduction or deletion of the 9,000 square feet of commercial space and subsequent redesign
to accommodate the perimeter heritage trees would honor the Heritage Tree Ordinance and in
no way impact the ability for the project's stated goals to be fulfilled.  If the design cannot
accommodate the perimeter heritage trees, how would the applicant's "replacement trees" be
given enough room to be adequate replacements that could someday become "healthy" large
heritage trees along the perimeter?

The ordinance makes clear that an attempt be made by construction project applicants to
design in a way that preserves heritage trees on a construction site.  Currently, the applicants
have designed first and then attempted to justify why the trees cannot be preserved due to their
design.  As stated above, a redesign is absolutely possible that can preserve perimeter trees
while still fulfilling the project goals.  Additionally, the arborist report does not support the
applicant's argument.  As noted by the arborist reports, the trees have not been adequately
cared for (lack of mulching, too much topsoil, inadequate root space, poor pruning), and can
be preserved with proper care.

We can have the full scope of library, housing, and parking in the project, eliminate the
commercial and redesign to accommodate some of the trees.

Urban forests are crucial to our long term survival and mature old trees are central to
that.  The order and manner in which this design has been pursued not only violates our
Heritage Tree Ordinance but it does a disservice to our HiAP, our Climate Action Plan, and
both our current and future community.  

Please uphold the appeal and ask that the applicant redesign to accommodate some of the

4.177

mailto:lirafilippini@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


heritage trees.
Thank you for your thoughtful consideration,
Lira Filippini
130 Belvedere Terrace
Santa Cruz, CA 95062

4.178



From: Margaret Lamanuzzi
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Appeal of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 8:41:09 PM

I am writing to voice my support for the Appeal of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit. I feel
that the heritage tree ordinance should be honored, and the design for the mixed use library
should have to at least attempt to preserve some of the heritage trees in Lot 4. 
Sincerely, 
Margaret Lamanuzzi

4.179

mailto:margaret.lamanuzzi@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Nettie Calvin
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Appeal of the Heritage Tree Removal Permits
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 9:12:10 PM

Dear Santa Cruz Parks and Recreation Commission,

I am writing to voice my support for the appeal of the decision to approve a Heritage Tree
Removal Permit for removal of nine Heritage Trees on Lot 4.  The grounds for appeal 
are based on the Heritage Tree Ordinance which states:

"A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design 
cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage trees."

Any worthwhile plan can and should accommodate trees as they are irreplaceable.  Please do
not let these trees be removed for any reason.  People who came before us were generous
enough to leave them so that we could enjoy them today. If we respect their protection now,
they will be available to grace the space and air for future generations.

The trees provide a meditative, peaceful space downtown, where the air is cleaned and we can
marvel at the unique formation of each tree and how it has stood so long as to be contorted by
its environment. The trees, on public land, provide much craved and beloved green space for
those of us who walk downtown, especially people like me who do not have the privilege of
having any yard space. The trees provide shade and a place to reflect in the bustle of the city. 
The trees provide visual respite from the concrete and make the city feel like it is a place
where citizens care about the quality of life.  The trees are a delight, the most
precious resource of Santa Cruz's downtown, giving it a "what a nice city" feel. 

 Please do not let us be the era of citizens who take this away from ourselves and future
generations who could marvel at our precious heritage trees.  This is what the Heritage Tree
Ordinance is meant to protect.  Of course we need housing, but housing can be built around
trees or elsewhere.  Established trees are priceless, truly, in that they cannot be brought back at
that age at any cost within our lifetimes. Trees in downtowns are so rare and therefore so
classy and exquisite, like works of art, to me far more visually stunning than a famous
painting. Please respect theHeritage Tree Ordinance and prevent the removal of these valuable
and treasured resources.

Respectfully,
Nettie Calvin

Graduate Student Researcher
jicalvin@ucsc.edu
828.424.0407
215 Raymond St. Apt. F
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

4.180

mailto:jicalvin@ucsc.edu
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jicalvin@ucsc.edu


From: Aharona Shackman
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Appeal of the Heritage Tree Removal Permits
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 11:43:55 PM

I am writing in support of the appeal of the heritage tree removal permits.
Please save Lot 4’s heritage trees! They provide our city and citizens with many benefits, and especially in this time
of climate crisis, we need to protect these trees!
Thank you,
Susan Shackman

Sent from my iPhone

4.181

mailto:aharonashackman@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: patricia@coastroad.us
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: appeal to save trees on Lot 4
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 9:18:06 PM

TO whom it may concern:

Please support the appeal of the heritage tree Removal Permits. Santa
Cruz is about to lose 100 or so trees in the rail trail construction
that was recently approved and funded. Downtown needs the trees and the
citizens deserve to enjoy the beauty of these trees. If the City of
Santa Cruz is truly committed to climate action, the trees should stay.
Thank you -

Patricia Damron
Santa Cruz

4.182

mailto:patricia@coastroad.us
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Kristen Sandel
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: City Lot 4 Tree Removal Permit--Please Deny Permit
Date: Wednesday, December 07, 2022 8:05:11 PM

City of Santa Cruz Parks & Recreation Commission
809 Center St.
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com

December 7, 2022

Dear Commissioners,

I am writing in support of the appeal filed by multiple appellants, including SCCAN and the 
Sierra Club, against issuance of a permit allowing removal of the 10 heritage trees on City 
Lot 4. Please deny the tree-cutting permit for development on Lot 4. The tree removal 
permit issued by the city is premature, as there is currently no final and approved design or 
building permit for the mixed-use project, and it appears no effort has been made to 
preserve or accommodate any of the lot’s trees, even those which border the Cedar Street 
sidewalk and might be kept. Following the city’s own Heritage Tree Ordinance, the project 
design should be altered to accommodate as many of the heritage trees as feasible. To do 
otherwise violates the ordinance’s plain intention.

The City of Santa Cruz has recently created an ambitious Climate Action Plan (CAP), 
calling for an increase in the city’s urban canopy and acknowledging the numerous benefits 
of both tree preservation and new forestation. The destruction of Lot 4’s fully mature, 
carbon-sequestering trees is a notable loss to the city landscape, particularly given the 
relatively low number of extant mature trees in the downtown area, and the probable 
removal of up to 404 trees during scheduled construction of the Monterey Bay Scenic 
Coastal Rail Trail Segments 8 & 9. Although it is a valuable mitigation to plant new saplings 
in other sites, those small trees can in no way replace the environmental benefits of mature 
existing trees, which provide shade and urban habitat, preserve moisture and cool 
temperatures in what is a heavily paved zone of downtown.

This issue deserves the Parks and Recreation Commission’s close attention and 
consideration. Please deny the permit. Thank you for considering my views.

4.183

mailto:krsandel@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


Respectfully,

Kristen Sandel

4.184



From: joanne katzen
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Sonja Brunner
Subject: City Tree Removal
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 11:37:43 AM

Dear commissioner Tremain Hedder-Jones,

I am writing in regards to the proposal to remove the 12 Heritage trees on lot 4 in the city of
Santa Cruz. I do not believe that it is in anyone's best interest to remove these trees. When
faced with a future of climate catastrophe and disruption, it would appear that trees,
especially this large, should be valued for their ability to sequester carbon. Why do developers
have the right to destroy these trees, when individuals must abide by the Heritage Tree
Ordinance within the city limits? 
I would hope that we all can work together to find a better solution than to take down such
beautiful, valuable trees.

Respectfully,

Joanne Katzen

4.185

mailto:jokat9@hotmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Iwalani Faulkner
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Considerations regarding proposed tree cutting on Lot4 downtown for Dec 12, 2022 meeting
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 1:56:52 PM

Hi Tremain,

I am writing a letter regarding the City's proposal to cut down the large heritage trees on Lot4.
These beautiful magnolia trees have taken decades to grow and sequester carbon and are
critical to providing shade, helping to lower temperatures downtown, and are appreciated by
thousands of community members throughout the county. I hope that none of the trees will be
removed until all of the final plans for the development on Lot4 are fully approved, financing
is complete, and the project is shovel ready.

There are relatively few large carbon sequestering trees downtown. The Cities proposal to
place a number of trees in planters on the outside upstairs deck of the new structure cannot
compare to the positive environmental benefits that trees provide when they are grown in the
ground soil and have grown for decades. We hope everything can be done to spare these large
shade trees enjoyed by our community and should they be removed, far more trees be planted
throughout downtown to remediate the significant heat island that the proposed giant asphalt
garage structure will produce. The shade these large magnolias create is necessary to reduce
the heat island produced by the asphalt and buildings of downtown. As our temperatures
increase, we need more large trees, not fewer. We need to prioritize the creation of urban
forests and welcoming gathering centers along side the proposed growing development
projects.

Let's do whatever we can to ensure we do not cut down our large heritage trees until we have
solid urban reforesting remediation in place in tandem with the shovel ready project which
proposes to destroy them.

Thank you.

Best regards,
Lani Faulkner
831-278-1007

4.186

mailto:aidaings@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Matt Farrell
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Continue Appeal of Heritage Tree Removal Appeal
Date: Thursday, December 08, 2022 3:04:38 PM

Parks and Recreation Commissioners,

I understand that the Parks and Recreation Commission will be considering a Heritage Tree
Removal Permit Appeal at your December 12 meeting.  I wanted to write in support of the
staff recommendation to continue this item to your February 13, 2023 meeting to allow for the
completion of a more detailed environmental analysis.  That way the commission and the
public will have access to all appropriate information as part of this decision.

If you do decide to hear the appeal on December 12,  I urge you to deny it.  The city arborist
has approved the appeal after reviewing both the original arborist report and a supplemental
evaluation.  The architect has stated that re-designing the project to accommodate heritage
trees on the perimeter of the property would fundamentally compromise the project.  The city
arborist did not recommend relocating any of the heritage trees, given their condition, the lack
of suitable sites, and the risks of transplanting.  

Finally, the results of the Measure O election have shown that almost 60% of our city's voters
supported the benefits of this project, understanding that removing these trees would be a
consequence of moving forward.  

The heritage tree permit applicant has agreed to meet the requirements of tree replacement
established under the ordinance; and the project architect is proposing additional trees as part
of the streetscape improvements. This property will have more green space and landscaping
than it currently does.  

Thanks for your consideration,

Matt Farrell
922 Windsor Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95062

4.187

mailto:mattfarrell922@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Carol @ Cruzio
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: cutting of trees on new library site
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 11:52:13 AM

I urge the members of the Parks and Recreation commission to deny the
appeal of the tree removal permit on the site of the new Library and
Affordable housing site/lot 4. The voters have spoken and they are
strongly in favor of the new project. The city arborist has said the
trees are neither native or healthy. Enough obstructionism. Time to move on.

Carol Fuller

513 Olive Street

Santa Cruz

4.188

mailto:fulkins@cruzio.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: A Webb
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Dec 12, 2022, Agenda Item #4 - Heritage Tree Removal Permit
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 11:39:53 AM

To all P&R Commissions and decision makers,

The whole point of a Heritage Tree ordinance is to Protect and Preserve
them, their enormous value to our environment, history, wildlife and
community. As part of our urban canopies, these icons help reduce climate
impacts of glare and heat generated by concrete, blacktop, and building
walls with each added massive structure - clearly needed in our downtown
areas!  They are worth their weight in gold. Our Heritage tree policy must
be evenly and consistently applied whether it's a city project, state project,
private property, developer project, or PG&E utility. 

Projects should be required to demonstrate that they cannot design
around Heritage trees vs. the bad habit of simply claiming it's "not
feasible" (UCSC manages to build among our forests with very little to no
impacts). Incorporating Heritage trees can actually raise the prestige and
value of property development.

There were public comments during community meetings for THIS project
in which community repeatedly asked for the Liquidambar trees and
at least some, if not all, of the rest of these heritage trees be incorporated
into the project. No plans were ever presented or discussed that included
any of them.
For example, the corner where the 2 Liquidambar trees are will have a
concrete sidewalk/plaza area in front of library doors, with a couple tiny
trees. These heritage trees CAN be incorporated into this wide corner
sidewalk/plaza area, with seating placed around the base of their trunks
for reading/relaxing with those Library books. 

If saved, the community can continue to enjoy these grand trees that have
been a dominant part of our history, community events, gatherings, and
healing following the destructive 1989 earthquake. They matter. Just as
people lean up against them today to enjoy snacking on farmers market
fruits in their shade and dappled sunlight, while hawks and other birds
perch above, they could have seating installed to continue these benefits. I
can't imagine a better reflection on all that floor to ceiling glass building,
or a better natural view from all windows and rooftops (including for the
buildings across the street), whether lush green or gold, enormous
blossoms, or fiery waterfall of color with the seasons. They can help
efficiency in keeping inside the buildings cool on hot afternoons.  They can
help reduce bird strikes (which I hope is being considered in glass
selection) and reduce hot afternoon sun glare, sidewalk reflective
glare, temper radiated heat from the bordering blacktop roads, and
act as a natural noise buffer from the road traffic. And next to a parking

4.189

mailto:aw.info.sub@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


garage is a no-brainer for reducing air pollution - they are workhorses on
scrubbing the air.

These trees did not appear to have been directed or attempted to be
incorporated into the project. This is unacceptable.  

I'm calling on all decision makers to UPHOLD THE APPEAL for the reasons
stated.  Take a careful 2nd look as stewards of our valuable natural and
social heritage, and require another tweek of the plans to incorporate
these distinct ancient trees. And to the extent some cannot ultimately be
saved, under no circumstances should any of them be removed prior to
the actual start of the project unless a danger eventually presents itself.

Thank you in advance for your careful evaluation and upholding this
Appeal.
Anita Webb
Santa Cruz

4.190



From: Cynthia Mathews
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: DENY the appeal of heritage tree removal permit for Lot 4
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 1:25:38 AM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commissioners

I am writing to urge you to DENY THE APPEAL of the Heritage Tree Removal Permit for 
Lot 4 in downtown Santa Cruz, which has been scheduled for consideration at your December 
12 meeting.  

Approval of the permit and denial of the appeal  is clearly supported by the extensive agenda 
report and attachments that have been provided for you. Your decision should reflect the 
process outlined by City's the Heritage Tree Ordinance, the findings of qualified professionals 
regarding the status of the trees, and — equally importantly — the detailed explanations 
offered by both the project architect and affordable housing developer that the project cannot 
be redesigned to incorporate the trees and still meet the objectives of the project.   

The multiple objectives of this mixed-use project have been repeatedly endorsed by the City 
Council over a period of several years, and decisively supported by Santa Cruz voters in the 
recent election. The Library/Affordable Housing Project has been designed to fulfill strongly 
held community priorities including a new modern downtown library, 124 units of 
permanently affordable housing, a child care center, and shared parking that can serve the full 
range of downtown users: residents, workers, customers, and visitors. 

Repeating: the project cannot be redesigned to incorporate the trees — non-native, with 
multiple problematic conditions, in a setting that further compromises their health — and still 
deliver on the full package of features that has already been endorsed by the council and is on 
the path to planning review and construction. The overall project will not only help meet 
community goals for affordable housing and downtown infrastructure; it will reflect a very 
high level of environmental features for both construction and operation. The new library, 
affordable housing and childcare center all embody the city and community commitment to 
social equity; and the project overall represents a major investment in the future of the City’s 
downtown. 

Bear in mind: the city’s Heritage Tree ordinance does not prohibit the removal of heritage 
trees. It simply requires a process when a request for removal is made. The process requires 
consideration of the trees’ condition and prospects, and appropriate mitigations if the permit is 
approved. In this case, the requested tree removal clearly meets the standards and conditions 
set out in the city’s ordinance, and approval of the request is justified. This is one part of the 
overall planning and approval process for the project; the city’s standard process is being 
observed, and denial of the appeal is the appropriate action.

Given the nature, condition and prospects of the trees in questions, and the fact that the project 
cannot be redesigned and still achieve its clearly stated objectives, I urge you to DENY the 
appeal before you.

Sincerely,
Cynthia Mathews

4.191

mailto:mathews@cruzio.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


4.192



From: Shannon Greene
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: deny the tree removal appeal
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 1:15:26 PM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commission,

I am a homeowner in Santa Cruz, and a resident since 1985. I love big trees but I am writing to
urge you to deny the tree removal appeal filed by project opponents and allow the Library &
Affordable Housing Project to move forward without additional delays to build 124 units of
desperately needed affordable housing, a brand new library and a childcare center. I believe
these points provided to be accurate and compelling:

A professional arborist says the trees are non-native, in poor condition and are poor
candidates for preservation.
The architect and affordable housing developer say: the project cannot be redesigned
and still achieve the goals of this important project, which has been overwhelmingly
supported by the community and council action.
The Library & Affordable Housing Project will mitigate the removal of the trees by
planting more trees than removed and delivering environmentally beneficial features of
the project (green roof, native plant landscaping, habitat for pollinators and more). 

Thank you for your consideration,
Shannon Greene
831-419-4656

4.193

mailto:sktg67@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Laura Lee
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: [CAUTION: Verify Sender Before Opening!] For Monday"s Meeting on the Tree Removal
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 11:56:42 AM
Attachments: THE QUESTION OF OUR STORY.docx

Please read and include the attached document.  The community is asking for a Tree Retrieval.
Thank you all for your consideration,
Laura Lee
Resident 24 years in Santa Cruz
 
Sent from Mail for Windows
 

4.194

mailto:lcl9@hotmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986

THE QUESTION OF OUR STORY

The time to push back is way past due.  How do I know?  Because this is an old tattered, wore-out tale. Old by decades of repetition, and destructive consequences.  But certainly not as old and deep-rooted as ‘my family’s story’’.  Sadly, this tale is a result of State decrees.  Which is another old account of ‘follow the money’. As city officials grapple with attaining the unsubstantiated housing density demands, other cities band together to build a legal case to defend their environment and sanctity of place.  

You ask, “Who am I to tell this story?”  I am on Death Row appealing for my LIFE.  I hold the TRUTH, the REAL, and am WITNESS, as well as home to many creatures sustained by my leaves, branches, and bark. I’ve thrived through winds, rains, drought, and earthquakes only to reach higher and broader for  shelter and shade. My roots breed life and grow deep into Mother Earth, entwined with others of my stature, sending healing elements when needed, and rich sap and acorns for many a meal.  

Lately, the chatter beneath my branches foretells that the empowered will tear at our roots and grind our spirits never again to clean the air, provide shade, while forcing families of creatures to impose their needs on others’ territories.   

The story is clear: many choose to follow the hungry, confident, unified team, enticing residents with digital pictures of bigger hard shiny landscapes, while touting promises of better days ahead. This team fights against the citizen voices and ignores opportunities, history, and value of life already here.

Repeatedly, the self-assured claws of this machinery have ripped away places of beauty and appeal.  That’s what makes this a very old and tired story. These forces have arrived in Santa Cruz salivating at chances to fatten their wallets as they mine our land and water.  Couched in the guise of ‘affordable homes’, we pay the price for playhouses for those who can afford what most others cannot. 

Our town, nestled in the wonderous Monterey Bay, is no different than other California coastal cities with water ways and  mountainous skylines.  They too have suffered under cement polluting garages and huge plate glass structures that rise to block the scenic views and create congestion on streets and highways. More wheeling and dealing developers have made their way to our special place convincing officials with righteous ‘Stories’ of better days to come.

Is this then ‘Our Story’?  Do you want aunt hills of people crowed together choking on dirty air?  Plus, more boutique hotels for hard-working citizens to sit in traffic jams, but no longer able to  enjoy open spaces and the beautiful canopies of our life-giving forms. 

While many of you weep for our lives, who among you will speak TRUTH TO POWER?  By saving ‘US’ you can offer better solutions which reflect sanctity of our history and beauty of place.  Plus, with less effort and cost, replenish and renovate all the empty and worn buildings. You will write OUR  story.  A better century is yours with the WILL and WISDOM.  ‘WE’ are living with tremendous climatic forces. ‘WE’ cannot escape this authority. There is a greater need for improving not over-extending emergency services. Nature is shouting!  Ignoring this message is irresponsible.  Better to understand our Interconnection and Oneness:  PLESASE, SAY YES TO US! 

 “Don’t it always seem to go, that you don’t know what you’ve got til its gone. They paved paradise and put up a parking lot. 





From: Parks and Rec
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: FW: Hearing on Lot 4 trees
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 8:12:15 AM

From: Debbie Bulger <dfbulger@cruzio.com> 
Sent: Sunday, December 11, 2022 4:33 PM
To: Parks and Rec <parksandrec@cityofsantacruz.com>
Cc: City Council <citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com>
Subject: Re: Hearing on Lot 4 trees
 

Dear Parks and Rec Commissioners,

I would like to see the City of Santa Cruz follow its Heritage Tree ordinance and investigate
altering the design of the new library to save some of the trees in Lot 4.

Some of the trees are right next to the sidewalk.

If the city decides the trees cannot be saved, I urge you to recommend that they be allowed
to live until the City is ready to build. That recommendation if adopted, would give us more
time to enjoy their shade, beauty and carbon capture function.

Debbie Bulger

4.195

mailto:parksandrec@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:dfbulger@cruzio.com
mailto:parksandrec@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com


From: joanne katzen
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Sandy Brown; Justin Cummings; Martine Watkins; Donna Meyers
Subject: Heritage Tree Ordinance
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 11:19:58 AM

Dear Ms Keedy,

I am writing to you in reference to the proposed destruction of the Heritage trees in what is
currently a downtown parking lot where new buildings will eventually be constructed. It is
disappointing to learn that the Heritage Tree Ordinance will not protect these trees, since it
appears that the developers are much more powerful than the individuals who would choose
to uphold the intent of this ordinance. I do believe that in an era of consciousness around
Climate Catastrophe we must do everything possible to maintain our largest, and oldest trees
—especially those located within the city limits. The loss of these trees will in no way be
mitigated by the planting of a few young saplings, which will take years to replace the kind of
oxygen-producing, carbon sequestering effects of these "oldsters."

Respectfully,

Joanne Katzen

4.196

mailto:jokat9@hotmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jcummings@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:mwatkins@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Jeanie Elliott
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage tree removal
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 2:53:28 PM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commission,
Please heed the appeal submitted by Our Future Our Downtown regarding the removal of heritage trees on Lot 4.
These trees offer us beauty and shade, adding so much to the welcoming feel of that part of downtown.
Thank you for all your work on our behalf.
Jeanie Elliott
728 Darwin St
Santa Cruz

Sent from my iPhone

4.197

mailto:jelliott@cruzio.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Mitchell Goldstein
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: heritage tree removal - NO
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 1:57:42 PM

I strongly urge the commission to repeal the decision to remove the 10 wonderful
heritage trees on city lot 4. These trees are an important part of the diminishing
green aspect of our urban center. Their importance cannot be quantified. 

Thank you for caring,

Mitchell Goldstein

250 Dufour St.

Santa Cruz, CA 95060

4.198

mailto:findmitchellbruce@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Sandra Ward
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage Tree Removal from Lot 4
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 1:36:39 PM

Dear Tremain Hedden-Jones and Commissioners,

The Santa Cruz Community Farmers Market (SCCFM) respectively requests that the removal of the Heritage trees
on Lot 4 not be done while the 

Farmers Market is still operating there. The removal should occur, ideally, when the market is no longer on Lot 4.
This delay will minimize possible upset 

and turmoil to the community and to the operation of the market in the remaining time the market is on Lot 4. 
Removing the trees earlier than necessary

 will negatively impact the community’s ability to have a peaceful environment and interfere with the market’s
ability to conduct business.  

We ask that you delay the removal of the trees until the last possible time.

Thank you 
Sandra Ward President, SCCFM Board of Directors
Nesh Dhillon, SCCFM Executive Director

4.199

mailto:sandraward@newnatives.biz
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: eric grodberg
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage Tree Removal permit appeal
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 10:11:16 AM

Dear Commissioners,

Please reject the appeal of the removal permit issued by the City Arborist.  

This is not a permit to decimate an urban forest as the appellants would have it. Rather as
noted by a second, independent arborist, the trees are 

“non-native … exhibiting myriad detrimental conditions including structural weaknesses, evidence of past
failures, limb and stem decay, and buried root collars which may disguise root disease and resulting
decay.”

More importantly, the voters overwhelmingly rejected Measure O.  The community has
spoken on the future library project.  The removal of these diseased, non-native trees is a
requirement for the project to go forward.  Upholding the appeal would thwart the voters will
and subvert the democratic process.

Furthermore, the extremely small amount of carbon that nine diseased, non-native trees
remove from the atmosphere is negligible in comparison to the GHG reductions in the library
project which will be built to the highest Leeds standards. This, in addition to specific
mitigations for the tree removal.  Accepting the appeal and preventing the library project
would result in a net increase in GHG emissions. 

Regards,

-Eric Grodberg

4.200

mailto:ericgrodberg@yahoo.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Peggy Curran
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage tree
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 6:54:21 AM

I am writing to support the appeal of the heritage tree removal permit.  Please do not remove the heritage trees from
downtown Santa Cruz.   We need our trees and our future generations need these living things to survive, so we all
can survive.   Figure out a way to work around them.  You are smart people.  

Peggy Curran
217 Stockton Avenue
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
209/985-4070 

4.201

mailto:peggyrcurran@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Deborah Hayes
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage Trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 1:52:07 PM

I do not understand how we can be concerned about global climate change and yet willfully cut down our heritage
trees if they seem in the way of development. We are supposed to be saving the trees, who can’t speak up for
themselves!

Please, do the right thing and save the trees.

Deborah Hayes

4.202

mailto:ivywell@me.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Timmi Pereira
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage Trees
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 9:24:55 AM

I ask that the design of the parking garage/library/housing be revised to allow for the Heritage
trees to remain.

Timmi Pereira 
Cell: 831-239-6564
Home: 831-426-1150

4.203

mailto:timmipereira@hotmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Lynn Dunn
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage Trees Lot 4
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 12:06:55 PM
Attachments: lynnemailsignature2.png

Thank you for seriously reconsidering removal of the Heritage Trees. Moving forward your
compromising, is an olive branch in the nurturing of the broken trust.     Thank you.    

4.204

mailto:dunnreimers@mac.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com



From: Cassandra Brown
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage Trees on Lot 4
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 7:01:38 PM

I would like to support the Appeal of the city permits to remove and destroy the Heritage trees
from Lot 4. 

Why can't the construction design include keeping the large trees as a part of that design? In
keeping with the city ordinance, there needs to be a way to allow for both the project and the
continued growth of these trees. 
the Heritage Tree Ordinance which states:

"A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design
cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage trees."

It will benefit the building project to have those big Magnolia trees incorporated into their
plan. It will also  benefit our city, the residents who live at the new housing site, and the
people visiting the library will enjoy those trees. It takes a long time to grow such big trees
and it will be ever unlikely to have trees that big as our climate gets drier. Also those trees
have a habitat of their own that supports many non human residents. For the sake of those
species homelessness, maybe consider working around those trees.

Thank you,
Cassandra Brown
25 year Santa Cruz County resident

Again the Heritage Tree Ordinance which states:
"A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design
cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage trees."

4.205

mailto:cassandragardens@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Kathleen Tyger Wright
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage Trees on Lot 4
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 3:38:37 PM

A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design 

cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage trees.

 
There was no attempt to design the Downtown Library Mixed-Use project in 
a way that would preserve or accommodate any of the 9 heritage trees on 
Lot 4. Therefore, a permit allowing their removal violates the ordinance on 
tree removal. 
It is unlawful to grant such a permit. 
Repeat: It is unlawful to grant such a permit. 
Citizens of Santa Cruz are aware and watching.
Kathleen Wright

4.206

mailto:tygerwright@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Brigitte Desouches
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Heritage trees on Lot 4 in Santa Cruz
Date: Wednesday, December 07, 2022 8:12:50 PM

Dear Supervisor Hedden-Jones,

I am writing to you to ask you to protect the heritage trees on Lot 4 in downtown Santa Cruz. I
know a large project is to be built at this place and I know that at least 4 of the 12 trees (9 of
them heritage trees), have been recommended by the arborist contracted by the city council, to
be preserved.

I am asking you to please preserve these trees. Wouldn’t cutting these trees be a violation of
the heritage tree ordinance?

Respectfully,
Brigitte Desouches

4.207

mailto:brigitte@cruzio.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Nina Rose Odegaard
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Heritage Trees on Lot 4
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 4:35:28 PM

Hi there!
I am writing to you to urge you not to remove the heritage trees on lot 4 in downtown Santa
Cruz unless it is absolutely necessary and only once you have complied with the following
Heritage Tree Ordinance:  

"A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design
cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage trees."

I am stunned that the mixed use building plan has been designed and pushed forward with so
little regard to respecting and acknowledging the universal benefits of open spaces in urban
areas and with complete disregard to the majesty and beauty of the trees on this lot. To regard
them as just something that needs to be removed for “progress” is sadly misguided. Once it is
done, you will not be able to bring them back. I urge you to reconsider your plan.

Thank you for your time and attention,

NinaRose Ødegaard 

4.208

mailto:nrodegaard@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Russell Brutsche
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: heritage trees
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 4:51:22 PM

Please don’t cut the heritage trees on Lot 4.

Russell Brutsché
133 glenwood av
santa cruz

4.209

mailto:russellb@baymoon.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Nadia Peralta
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: in support of protecting the heritage trees on lot 4
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 9:45:47 PM

To Whom It May Concern: 

Please protect the heritage trees located at lot 4. These trees are old Magnolia trees that
provide much needed shade, beauty, and habitat for the downtown birds and squirrels. I also
think they play a large role in helping to protect against flooding by drinking a lot of water in a
river-bed zone. They are magnificent trees, and they deserve to be allowed to live and
continue their journey as old heritage trees despite the city's library plans. I am deeply
concerned about their removal, and concerned about what precedent it sets for other heritage
trees downtown, of which I'm sure you know there are many. I know the old trees grow large
roots and are cumbersome to maintain because of the damage they cause to roads, but their
value is so much more important. With impending climate catastrophe it is important we treat
old trees with respect. Planting new ones does not guarantee shade for a long time, and
pretends to solve the problem of ending the life of trees that are perfectly healthy and have
been a cornerstone of our communities for many years. Please hear us and protect these trees. 

Sincerely, 
Nadia 

-- 
Clinical Herbalist 
Pre-Medicine Student
Early Childhood Educator 
949-939-2216

4.210

mailto:nadialuciaperalta@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Lynne Nicol
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: It is important to protect our Lot 4 trees!
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 10:34:29 PM

The City of Santa Cruz environs are becoming more and more urbanized.  For all of our health and wellbeing, we humans and
creatures in the environment sorely need a natural landscape.  We need the beauty of the trees, and we need the history, and we
need the shade of the trees.  We value the Lot 4 trees and we look forward to them getting a good healthy trim, so that they can
continue to grow and grace our environment.  Hardscape is necessary in our downtown, and we need to preserve our mature trees
surrounding our buildings.  

These trees have a life and a history of their own and we need to protect them.  Hardscape can be built around these trees,
which will have the added benefit of making the buildings more interesting, and not just cold monoliths.  We love the personality
of our downtown, and we want to pay respect to our Lot 4 trees.  Please preserve our Lot 4 trees. 

Respectfully, 

Lynne Nicol  (Santa Cruz resident since 1967.)
216 Naglee Ave.
Santa Cruz, CA 95060

4.211

mailto:georgie00892@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Nina Donna
To: Keresha Durham
Cc: Leslie Keedy; Parks & Recreation Commission; Sandy Brown; Justin Cummings; City Council; Martine Watkins; Donna Meyers;

Renee Golder; sjohnson-kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com; Sonja Brunner
Subject: keeper of our elders
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 9:21:20 AM

What a rich story U tell Keresha. Most of us are aware of these trees, but need reminding of their
importance to our daily life. 
There is a sizable amount of new construction in my area, Live Oak. Tho’ I know housing is needed,
when I ALSO hear the wood chopper whirring… 
trees  humans
Nina

Sent from my iPhone

On Dec 10, 2022, at 09:01, Keresha Durham <the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com>
wrote:


If you could not open the photos, I attached the 60 foot lovely Liquid Ambers and 3
elder Magnolias again. 
Preserve these trees
They have been here for several generations
Before most of us arrived.

On Fri, Dec 9, 2022 at 7:45 AM Keresha Durham
<the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com> wrote:

Esteemed Tree Decision-makers- City Council, Leslie and Tremain,

“It's not about what it is, it's about what it can become. 
I am the Lorax. I speak for the trees. I speak for the trees, for the trees have no
tongues.” 
― Dr. Seuss, The Lorax

 OUR AWESOME TREE ORDINANCE  
Please refer to and follow our beautifully-written The Heritage Tree
Ordinance (read it below) which calls to protect, design around and preserve our
urban trees, which include the Lot 4, three magnificent, 50 and 100 year old
Magnolias and two elder 60 foot, towering, colorful, lovely, Liquid Amber trees! 

(PHOTOS ATTACHED)  This ordinance advises against destruction since
"the removal of mature, heritage trees can take generations to restore." 

TREE CANOPY BENEFITS   
Santa Cruz City is unique in that we have fought to preserve our large tree

4.212

mailto:onedona@gmail.com
mailto:the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com
mailto:lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jcummings@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:mwatkins@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:rgolder@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sjohnson-kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com
https://www.goodreads.com/work/quotes/886002


canopy, which is so beneficial in this era of human-caused climate crisis. 
Large, mature trees sequester the most carbon, clean air pollutants and prevent
pavement heat.  They provide needed habitat, spiritual renewal and joy!   Were you
lucky enough to have a large tree friend to climb as a kid?  I was!  

TREES NEED CAREGIVERS   
These trees are not getting the care they deserve. Being surrounded by cement and
soaking up oil from this parking lot weakens our beloved trees.  If recycled water is
used to water trees, this can cause large trees to die from too much salt content.
They need fertilizer, amended soil and clean water.  

MOVE THE TREES AS A LAST RESORT 
If the project designers uncreatively refuse to build around these trees, moving
large trees is possible, rather than destroying them.

REPLANT LARGER NATIVE TREES 
If you must create a replacement canopy for lost or moved trees, re-plant with
large, native-to-this-region trees, not the diminutive, decorative trees on Pacific
Avenue.  Think of the trees that are planted around city hall and on the former
Pacific Garden Mall, they were gorgeous, artful, tall trees providing so much joy!   

SANTA CRUZ'S  TREE ORDINANCE STATES: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18
 SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO THE
PRESERVATION OF HERITAGE TREES

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Cruz has actively encouraged the
development of a safe,
healthy and attractive environment in which its residents can live and
work; and

WHEREAS, in pursuit of these goals the City recognizes the substantial
environmental,
aesthetic and economic importance of its diverse urban forest consisting
of indigenous as well as
non-native trees; and

WHEREAS, this invaluable urban forest has been, and continues to be,
an asset to the
community inasmuch as it contributes to the environmental, aesthetic
and economic stability of
the community; and

4.213



WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz recognize that the preservation
of this invaluable
resource is a heritage to the community at large; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz therefore understand that the
preservation of their
urban forest existing on both public and private property is important to
them and their
community in order to:

(a) Protect, conserve and enhance the City’s attractiveness and its
aesthetic and scenic
environment;

(b) Develop and promote an awareness and understanding of the
importance of urban
forests to the citizens of Santa Cruz;

(c) Encourage and assure the continuation of quality community
development where
existing trees are incorporated into any development and accorded
proper
maintenance and protection as a part of the City’s urban forest;

(d) Act as a buffer against urban traffic noise and wind damage, provide
protection from
wind erosion, and provide a privacy screen;

(e) Aid in the reduction of air pollution given the known capacity of
trees to ingest
carbon dioxide and produce oxygen thereby enhancing air quality;

(f) Assist in the absorption of rain waters thereby protecting against soil
erosion by
flooding; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz recognize the right of
individuals to develop,
maintain and enjoy private property to the fullest possible extent
consistent with the public
interest in preserving and maintaining the City’s urban forest in general.

4.214



 PURPOSE
This Chapter is enacted to recognize, protect, optimize and responsibly
manage the community
urban forest by establishing standards and policy consistent with private
rights to develop and
use property in a manner not prejudicial to the public interest while
maintaining the health and
safety of both the urban forest and citizenry. 

It is the purpose of this Chapter to promote and protect a thriving urban
forest and to facilitate proper management practices that include the
City’s ability to protect and preserve tree resources through regulating
their removal, and
 to effectively enforce tree preservation and zoning regulations, and to
promote an appreciation and understanding of trees and their intrinsic
value.

(a) Among the environmental assets that contribute to the livability and
attractiveness of the City
of Santa Cruz are its trees, both indigenous and introduced. Growing in
urban settings,
neighborhoods, business and commercial districts, in parks and in open
spaces, as single
specimens or in groves, trees contribute significant tangible benefits,
both psychological and
environmental, for the residents and visitors to our community alike.

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18
3
(b) Trees contribute beneficially to the urban environment and
contribute to our community’s
and the state’s climate action goals. 

Tree canopy coverage reduces heat buildup, noise and air pollutants;
improves air quality, reduces particulates, and provides oxygen. 

Trees also enhance the aesthetic environment and contribute visually to
the City by providing scenic views, scale,
color, silhouette and mass. 

Trees contribute to the protection of other natural resources by

4.215



providing erosion control, management of storm water and urban
runoff, increased infiltration and groundwater recharge, and improved
water retention capacity of soils. 

Trees provide screens and buffers to separate land uses and are often
landmarks or contribute to the significance of the
City’s history. 

Trees contribute to the economy of the City by increasing and
sustaining property
values, creating employment and training opportunities, and reducing
energy costs.

(c) The urban forest requires stewardship from both community
members and the City to
maximize its benefits, such as tree canopy coverage, shaded areas, and
enhanced habitat for
wildlife on private and public lands.  

(d) The City’s trees collectively constitute an urban forest and an
ecosystem. Removal and
planting of trees can create both negative impact, affecting the urban
forest and the
City as a whole.  The removal of mature trees may in some cases take
generations to fully restore.

(e) Appropriate management of non-native invasive species is
encouraged by the City of Santa
Cruz. Tree replacement requirements are designed to bolster native
plant and animal communities and habitats.

Clearly this ordinance would have you care
for and save these precious trees in lot 4 and
include them in the design of any project.
Sincerely,
K. Durham 
Environmental Activist
Resident of Santa Cruz since 1981

4.216



Educator since 1987
Proud Tree Hugger, Happy Tree Caregiver

-- 
Keresha  Durham~ educator, environmentalist
"care-sha"

     _≈o
 _-\<,_         
(_)/  (_) 
For a quality future for all living things, the earth needs small families

Balance population with finite natural resources
Reduce human-caused carbon

4.217



4.218



From: Erin Lee
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Let the Library and Affordable Housing project move forward
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 1:22:13 PM

Hi, 
I'm urging the Parks and Recreation Commission to deny the tree removal appeal filed by
opponents of the Library & Affordable Housing Project. As Santa Cruz city voters
demonstrated overwhelmingly with the defeat of Measure O, this project is needed and wanted
by the community, but a few actors are doing anything they can to stop it. The trees that will
be removed from the site of the new library are non-native, in poor condition, and are poor
candidates for preservation, according to a professional arborist. They do not need to be
"saved," and there's no way the city should halt the construction or alter the design of the
Library & Affordable Project for the sake of some sick trees. This is simply an attempt from
the same group who put forth Measure O to get around the fact that the people have voted, and
Measure O lost. 
Regards, 
Erin Lee
Santa Cruz, CA

4.219

mailto:ehleeone@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Nadene Thorne
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Lot 4 Heritage Trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 3:18:31 PM

This is to register my concern for and opposition to the posting of the Lot 4 trees for removal.

With insufficient funding to even move ahead on this project, there is no reason to remove these trees so far in
advance of what is clearly a wildly indeterminate time frame.

More importantly, however, is the fact that removal of such trees goes against the language and the intent of the
city's Heritage Tree Ordinance and our climate action plan, Resilient Santa Cruz.

The Heritage Tree Ordinance states:

"A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design cannot be altered to accommodate
existing heritage trees."

It appears that there was no attempt to design the Downtown Library Mixed-Use project in a way that would
preserve or accommodate any of the 9 heritage trees on the project site. Our heritage trees are crucial for the urban
forest and provide innumerable social and environmental benefits, especially amid a period of threatening and
intense climate change.

Does Santa Cruz just pretend to care about environmental values, or do we actually do what we say we're going to
do about protecting the environment?

Nadene Thorne
140 Averitt St.
Santa Cruz 95060
831-266-5552

4.220

mailto:nadenetd@yahoo.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Maggie Duncan-Merrell
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Lot 4 Tree Removal
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 9:07:57 AM

To Whom it May Concern on the SC City Parks and Recreation Commission,

I am writing today in support of Leslie Keedy’s recommendation for the removal of 12 trees from Parking Lot 4 in
preparation for the Mixed Use Affordable Housing/Library project.

The trees Ms Keedy recommends removing are not native, many are in their end stages of life and the Gingko tree in
particular has been mauled by poor pruning. Many of the trees tagged for removal are not appropriate for urban
planting and are inappropriately positioned next to paths where they heave pavement, causing dangerous trip
hazards and destruction to infrastructure. The future project also calls for nearly 50 new, well suited trees to be
planted in place of the 12 failing trees, creating a lovely new space that will be an asset to our community, unlike the
tired, cracked up, surface parking lot currently in place.

The voters of Santa Cruz have weighed in and demonstrated clear support of this project. The group that put
Measure O on the ballot was roundly defeated at the polls where they claimed they would respect the will of the
voters. However, they have chosen to ignore the 60% of voters supporting the project and are now reneging on their
word, attempting yet another ill fated blockade of 124 affordable housing units and a beautiful library. 

Please do not allow this defeated minority to continue to hold needed progress of this mixed use project hostage due
to their attachment to sick trees and an old asphalt parking lot. Vote in support of our City Arborist’s
recommendation for removal of 12 trees and support smart urban planning for the City of Santa Cruz.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Maggie Duncan-Merrell, 3rd District Santa Cruz County Parks Commisioner 

4.221

mailto:maggiemerrell@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: (null) (null)
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Lot 4"s Heritage Trees
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 9:33:20 AM

Dear To Whom is concerned,

  My name is Werner Leung. I am a citizen of Santa Cruz. I am writing to ask your consideration of preserving the
heritage trees at Lot 4 at downtown.

  I hav been raising my kid here in Santa Cruz. My kid has always been enjoying the big trees at Lot 4 when we
went to the farmer’s market. We would love to save the trees at Lot 4, which took many many years to grow big like
that. We have a beautiful downtown. We need to preserve the beauty of it. Without the big trees, it would be
different.

  What is heritage? It means it is supposed to leave something for our future generations. Please save our big trees at
Lot 4!

  Sincerely
Werner

Sent from my iPad

4.222

mailto:werner_5@yahoo.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Karen Kaplan
To: Parks & Recreation Commission; City Council
Subject: Mon. Dec. 12, 4 pm: Hearing & Tree Removal Appeal
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 7:38:38 AM

Dear Tremain Hedden-Jones, Secretary to the Commission, Mayor & Santa Cruz City Council:
RE: Heritage Tree Removal Appeal
       December 12, 4-6pm Meeting
Parks and Recreation Commission Hearing and Appeal to Stop Cutting Trees in Lot 4, the
Farmers Market Lot.
       Santa Cruz City Council Chambers & on Zoom
       809 Center Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Appeal:
Please accept the appeal and save heritage trees in the Farmers Market Lot 4, in Downtown,
Santa Cruz.

Architectural Design:
There is no evidence of including existing trees in the Santa Cruz Public Library and Parking Lot
design. Trees could be saved, if buildings were designed around them.

Disease:
There is no evidence of diseased trees, so they should not be removed.

Emergency:
Cutting heritage trees is not an emergency, so the trees should be saved.

Historical Importance:
For many years, the "Food Not Bombs" distribution site was at the base of the heritage trees,
giving these trees historical significance, as the first free vegan food distribution site, in Santa
Cruz. These trees deserve a plaque to commemorate the historical events, that took place
there. All who were hungry, were fed. Serving free, organic, vegan food helped to mitigate the
climate crisis and homeless issues. People gathered in peace and harmony. Everyone was
welcome, treated with respect and dignity, while enjoying a healthy, hot meal. There was
music and celebration with noteworthy musicians such as Russell Brutsche, Peter Weiss,
Michael Levy and dignitaries spoke, such as current and past Mayors, City Councilmembers,
members of the Senate, Congress and more.

More Reasons to Save Trees:
• Heritage trees have historical significance.
• Trees are beautiful and provide great value to our community.
• Heritage trees are unique and are a tourist attraction.
• Most people feel good when they can see and touch ancient trees and connect

4.223

mailto:kaplanks@hotmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com


with nature.
• There are not very many trees in downtown, Santa Cruz.
• There are many climate benefits from trees; they absorb CO2 and filter
pollution.
• Trees provide shade and habitat for birds and small animals, such as squirrels.
• The Santa Cruz City Climate Action Plan calls for more trees; not less.
• Trees will continue to provide benefits, as long as they remain alive.
• There is no reason to cut the trees now, rather than later.
• Cutting these trees would violate the heritage tree ordinance.  
• The proposed library and parking structure building is not permitted yet, so
trees should not be cut, in advance.
• No tree should be removed until all final plans are approved, financing is
complete, and the project has a groundbreaking date, which may take more than
a year.
• Heritage trees deserve to live and be preserved.
• Since trees can't speak, we need to speak up for them.

RESOLUTION NO. NS-23,710,EXHIBIT A, CRITERIA AND STANDARDS:

1. A heritage tree or heritage shrub, as defined in Chapter 9.56 of the City
of Santa Cruz Municipal Code shall only be altered or removed in the following
circumstances:
(a) Alteration of a heritage tree or heritage shrub would only affect less
than twenty-five percent (25%) of the crown of said heritage tree or heritage
shrub;
(b) Findings by the Director of Parks & Recreation can be established in
conformity with the City's Urban Forest and Wildland Interface Policy Statement;
or
(c) One or more of the following findings are established by the applicant and
confirmed by the Director of Parks and Recreation:
(1) The heritage tree or heritage tree shrub has, or is likely to have, an adverse
effect upon the structural integrity of a building, utility, or public or private right
of way;
(2) The physical condition or health of the tree or shrub, such as disease or
infestation, warrants alteration or removal; or
(3) A construction project design cannot be altered to accommodate existing
heritage trees or heritage shrubs.
2. For every heritage tree or heritage shrub altered, damaged or
removed, mitigation shall occur in accordance with the City Council resolution
establishing mitigation requirements for alterations, damage and removals of
heritage trees and shrubs.

4.224



3. During the pendency of any appeal arising out of the approval or disapproval
of a heritage tree removal/alteration permit application processed pursuant to
S.C.M.C. 9.56, the tree, grove of trees or shrub which is the subject of that appeal
shall be maintained in the same condition as on the permit application date and
shall not be pruned or altered in any fashion whatsoever whether or not the
pruning or alteration would otherwise require a permit.

SANTA CRUZ CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTER 9.56

1. A heritage tree or heritage shrub, as defined in Chapter 9.56 of the City
of Santa Cruz Municipal Code shall only be altered or removed in the following
circumstances:
(c) One or more of the following findings are established by the applicant and
confirmed by the Director of Parks and Recreation:
(3) A construction project design cannot be altered to accommodate existing
heritage trees or heritage shrubs.

9.56.040 HERITAGE TREE AND HERITAGE SHRUB DESIGNATION

Any tree, grove of trees, shrub or group of shrubs, growing on public or private
property within the city limits of the city of Santa Cruz which meet(s) the
following criteria shall have the “heritage” designation:

(a)    Any tree which has a trunk with a circumference of forty-four inches
(approximately fourteen inches in diameter or more), measured at fifty-four
inches above existing grade;
(b)    Any tree, grove of trees, shrub or group of shrubs which have historical
significance, including but not limited to those which were/are:
(1)    Planted as a commemorative;
(2)    Planted during a particularly significant historical era; or
(3)    Marking the spot of an historical event.
(c)    Any tree, grove of trees, shrub or group of shrubs which have horticultural
significance, including but not limited to those which are:
(1)    Unusually beautiful or distinctive;
(2)    Old (determined by comparing the age of the tree or shrub in question with
other trees or shrubs of its species within the city);
(3)    Distinctive specimen in size or structure for its species (determined by
comparing the tree or shrub to average trees and shrubs of its species within the
city);
(4)    A rare or unusual species for the Santa Cruz area (to be determined by the
number of similar trees of the same species within the city);
(5)    Providing a valuable habitat; or

4.225



(6)    Identified by the city council as having significant arboricultural value to the
citizens of the city.
(Ord. 2016-05 § 1 (part), 2016: Ord. 94-01 § 2, 1994).

9.56.050 PROTECTION OF HERITAGE TREES AND HERITAGE SHRUBS

No person shall allow to exist any condition, including but not limited to any one
of the following conditions, which may be harmful to any heritage tree or heritage
shrub:
(a)    Existence of any tree or shrub, heritage or otherwise, within the city limits
that is irretrievably infested or infected with insects, scale or disease detrimental
to the health of any heritage tree or heritage shrub;
(b)    Filling up the ground area around any heritage tree or heritage shrub so as
to shut off air, light or water from its roots;
(c)    Piling building materials, parking equipment and/or pouring any substance
which may be detrimental to the health of any heritage tree or heritage shrub;
(d)    Posting any sign, poster, notice or similar device on any heritage tree or
heritage shrub;
(e)    Driving metal stakes into the heritage tree, heritage shrub, or their root area
for any purpose other than supporting the heritage tree or heritage shrub;
(f)    Causing a fire to burn near any heritage tree or heritage shrub.
(Ord. 2016-05 § 1 (part), 2016: Ord. 94-01 § 2, 1994).

9.56.060 PERMITS REQUIRED FOR WORK SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECTING HERITAGE TREES
AND/OR HERITAGE SHRUBS

(a)    No person shall prune, trim, cut off, or perform any work, on a single
occasion or cumulatively, over a three-year period, affecting twenty-five percent
or more of the crown of any heritage tree or heritage shrub without first
obtaining a permit pursuant to this section. No person shall root prune, relocate
or remove any heritage tree or heritage shrub without first obtaining a permit
pursuant to this section.
(b)    All persons, utilities and any department or agency located in the city of
Santa Cruz shall submit a permit application, together with the appropriate fee as
set forth by city council resolution, to the department prior to performing any
work requiring a permit as set forth in subsection (a) of this section. The permit
application shall include the number, species, size, and location of each subject
heritage tree or heritage shrub, and shall clearly describe the scope of work being
proposed and the reason for the requested action. Any supplemental reports
which may be submitted by the applicant and staff are advisory only and shall not
be deemed conclusive or binding on the director’s findings.

4.226



(c)    An authorized representative of the department shall inspect the tree or
shrub which is the subject of the application. Pursuant to that inspection, the
authorized representative shall file with the director written findings.
(d)    If, upon said inspection, it is determined that the tree or shrub which is the
subject of the permit application meets none of the criteria set forth in Section
9.56.040, no further action on the part of the director or the permit applicant is
necessary.
(e)    If the tree or shrub which is the subject of the permit application meets any
of the criteria set forth in Section 9.56.040 based upon a review of the permit
application and the inspection report, then the director shall make findings of fact
upon which he/she shall grant the permit, conditionally grant the permit
specifying mitigation requirements, deny the permit or allow a portion of the
proposed work outlined in the permit application to be done.
(f)    Where three or more heritage trees or three or more heritage shrubs are the
subject of any proposed work to be performed, the director shall require that the
applicant sign an agreement for preparation and submission of a consulting
arborist report. As part of said agreement, the applicant shall be required to
deposit with the department an amount of money equal to the estimated cost of
preparing the report, as contained in said agreement.
(g)    The decision of the director shall be final unless appealed to the commission
by the permit applicant or any other aggrieved person pursuant to Section
9.56.070.
(h)    The director shall issue any permit granted pursuant to this section, which
permit shall be conspicuously posted near the subject(s) of the permit.
(i)    Unless appealed, the permit shall take effect ten calendar days after it is
issued, except where the tenth day occurs on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, in
which case the effective date shall be extended to the next following business
day.
(j)    All work performed on any designated heritage tree or heritage shrub
pursuant to a permit as provided in this section shall be completed within forty-
five days from the effective date of the permit, or within such longer period as the
director may specify.
(k)    There shall be no fees or costs charged for permits which are limited in scope
to the maintenance and repair work specified by Sections 13.30.060(b) and
15.20.210(c).
(Ord. 2016-05 § 1 (part), 2016: Ord. 94-60 § 1, 1995: Ord. 94-01 § 2, 1994).

9.56.070 RIGHT OF APPEAL

(a)    Decision or Action of Director. Any person, public agency or utility aggrieved
or affected by any decision or action taken pursuant to the authority of this

4.227



chapter by the director may appeal that decision or action to the commission
according to the following rules and regulations:
(1)    A written notice of appeal, together with the appropriate fee as set forth by
city council resolution, must be received by the secretary of the commission not
later than ten calendar days following the date of the decision or action from
which such appeal is being taken. If the final day for filing an appeal occurs on a
weekend day or holiday, the final filing date shall be extended to the next
following business day.
(2)    The appellant shall state the basis for the appeal and shall specifically cite
which provision of this chapter is relied upon to support the appellant’s
contention that the director of parks and recreation acted in error. Any reports
which may be submitted by the applicant, appellant or staff are advisory only and
shall not be deemed conclusive or binding on the commission’s findings. The
appeal must be signed by the appellant or appellant’s representative, and must
set forth the mailing address to which the secretary of the commission may direct
notice of a hearing.
(3)    Upon receipt of the appeal the secretary of the commission shall schedule
the matter for a public hearing at the next regularly scheduled business meeting,
but not sooner than ten business days after receipt. The commission shall
complete its action within thirty days from the date the matter is first scheduled
for public hearing, unless appellant and appellee mutually agree to extend said
thirty-day period.
(4)    Notice of the public hearing shall be sent by first class mail to the permit
applicant and appellant at least five calendar days prior to the meeting.
(5)    Notice of the public hearing shall be conspicuously posted by the director
near the heritage tree(s) or heritage shrub(s) in question, at least ten calendar
days prior to the meeting.
(6)    All notices shall include:
(A)    The time, place and date of the public hearing;
(B)    A brief description of the matter to be considered including a concise
description of the heritage tree or heritage shrub in question, its location and
scope of work being proposed;
(C)    A brief description of the general procedure for submission of comments;
(D)    The date of the filing of the permit application and the name of the
applicant.
(7)    The commission shall make findings of fact on which it bases its action. The
commission may conditionally grant the permit specifying mitigations, deny the
permit or allow a portion of the proposed work outlined in the permit application
to be done.
(8)    The commission shall direct the director to issue any permit granted by the
commission pursuant to this section, which permit shall be conspicuously posted

4.228



near the subject(s) of the permit, and maintained at the reference desk of the
central branch of the Santa Cruz City/County Library.
(9)    The decision of the commission shall be final unless appealed to the city
council by the permit applicant or any other aggrieved person.
(10)    Unless appealed, the permit shall take effect ten calendar days after it is
issued, except if the tenth day occurs on a weekend day or holiday, in which case
the effective date shall be extended to the next following business day.
(11)    All work performed on any designated heritage shrub pursuant to a permit
as provided in this section shall be completed within forty-five days from the
effective date of the permit, or within such longer period as the commission may
specify.
(b)    Decision or Action of Commission. Any person, public agency or utility
aggrieved or affected by any decision or action taken pursuant to the authority of
this chapter by the commission may appeal that decision or action to the city
council. All such appeals shall be made pursuant to Chapter 1.16.
(1)    Members of the city council shall be exempt from the appeal fee specified in
Chapter 1.16 when acting in their official capacity.
(2)    The city council shall determine all questions raised on appeal pursuant to
Chapter 1.16, and the decision of the city council shall be final.
(3)    Permit applications denied by the city council on appeal shall not be
considered for reapplication for a period of one year from the date of the city
council’s decision, unless:
(A)    There is a significant decline in the health of the subject heritage tree or
heritage shrub as certified by a licensed arborist; and
(B)    Said decline in health has not been caused by the applicant or any person
associated with the applicant.
(Ord. 2016-05 § 1 (part), 2016: Ord. 94-01 § 2, 1994).

9.56.080 EMERGENCIES

In the event of an emergency whereby immediate action is required because of
disease or because of danger to life or property, a heritage tree or heritage shrub
may be pruned, altered or removed by order of the director, or by order of a
responsible member of the police, fire or public works department. If not the
director, the person ordering the pruning, alteration or removal shall file a
comprehensive report immediately thereafter with the director. The director shall
prepare the report if he or she orders the pruning, alteration or removal. The
director shall forward copies of the report to the commission and council for their
information.
(Ord. 2016-05 § 1 (part), 2016: Ord. 94-01 § 2, 1994).

4.229



Thank you for your urgent consideration to save heritage trees!

Sincerely,
Karen Kaplan
Resident of Santa Cruz County Since 1974

4.230



From: Ann Simonton
To: Leslie Keedy; Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Sandy Brown; Justin Cummings; City Council; Martine Watkins; Donna Meyers; Renee Golder; sjohnson-

kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com; Sonja Brunner
Subject: Our Heritage Tree Ordinance Speaks for Lot 4 Trees
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 8:14:30 PM
Attachments: Lot 4 Maples.jpeg

Lot 4 Magnolias .jpeg

I wholeheartedly agree with Keresha Durham’s brilliant letter and am sending it again
for emphasis!!
Thank you, Ann Simonton, 46 year resident 

Esteemed Tree Decision-makers- City Council, Leslie and Tremain,

“It's not about what it is, it's about what it can become. 
I am the Lorax. I speak for the trees. I speak for the trees, for the trees have no
tongues.” 
― Dr. Seuss, The Lorax

 OUR AWESOME TREE ORDINANCE  
Please refer to and follow our beautifully-written The Heritage Tree Ordinance
(read it below) which calls to protect, design around and preserve our urban trees,
which include the Lot 4, three magnificent, 50 and 100 year old Magnolias and two
elder 40 foot, towering, colorful, lovely, Liquid Amber trees!  (PHOTOS

ATTACHED)  This ordinance advises against destruction since "the removal of
mature, heritage trees can take generations to restore." 

TREE CANOPY BENEFITS   
Santa Cruz City is unique in that we have fought to preserve our large tree canopy,
which is so beneficial in this era of human-caused climate crisis.  Large, mature
trees sequester the most carbon, clean air pollutants and prevent pavement heat.  They
provide needed habitat, spiritual renewal and joy!   Were you lucky enough to have a
large tree friend to climb as a kid?  I was!  

TREES NEED CAREGIVERS   
These trees are not getting the care they deserve. Being surrounded by cement and
soaking up oil from this parking lot weakens our beloved trees.  If recycled water is
used to water trees, this can cause large trees to die from too much salt content. They
need fertilizer, amended soil and clean water.  

4.231

mailto:mwatch@cruzio.com
mailto:lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jcummings@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:mwatkins@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:rgolder@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sjohnson-kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sjohnson-kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com
https://www.goodreads.com/work/quotes/886002




MOVE THE TREES AS A LAST RESORT 
If the project designers uncreatively refuse to build around these trees, moving large
trees is possible, rather than destroying them.

REPLANT LARGER NATIVE TREES 
If you must create a replacement canopy for lost or moved trees, re-plant with large,
native-to-this-region trees, not the diminutive, decorative trees on Pacific Avenue. 
Think of the trees that are planted around city hall and on the former Pacific Garden
Mall, they were gorgeous, artful, tall trees providing so much joy!   

SANTA CRUZ'S  TREE ORDINANCE STATES: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18
 SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO THE PRESERVATION
OF HERITAGE TREES

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Cruz has actively encouraged the
development of a safe,
healthy and attractive environment in which its residents can live and work;
and

WHEREAS, in pursuit of these goals the City recognizes the substantial
environmental,
aesthetic and economic importance of its diverse urban forest consisting of
indigenous as well as
non-native trees; and

WHEREAS, this invaluable urban forest has been, and continues to be, an
asset to the
community inasmuch as it contributes to the environmental, aesthetic and
economic stability of
the community; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz recognize that the preservation of
this invaluable
resource is a heritage to the community at large; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz therefore understand that the
preservation of their

4.232



urban forest existing on both public and private property is important to
them and their
community in order to:

(a) Protect, conserve and enhance the City’s attractiveness and its aesthetic
and scenic
environment;

(b) Develop and promote an awareness and understanding of the
importance of urban
forests to the citizens of Santa Cruz;

(c) Encourage and assure the continuation of quality community
development where
existing trees are incorporated into any development and accorded proper
maintenance and protection as a part of the City’s urban forest;

(d) Act as a buffer against urban traffic noise and wind damage, provide
protection from
wind erosion, and provide a privacy screen;

(e) Aid in the reduction of air pollution given the known capacity of trees to
ingest
carbon dioxide and produce oxygen thereby enhancing air quality;

(f) Assist in the absorption of rain waters thereby protecting against soil
erosion by
flooding; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz recognize the right of individuals to
develop,
maintain and enjoy private property to the fullest possible extent consistent
with the public
interest in preserving and maintaining the City’s urban forest in general.

 PURPOSE
This Chapter is enacted to recognize, protect, optimize and responsibly
manage the community

4.233



urban forest by establishing standards and policy consistent with private
rights to develop and
use property in a manner not prejudicial to the public interest while
maintaining the health and
safety of both the urban forest and citizenry. 

It is the purpose of this Chapter to promote and protect a thriving urban
forest and to facilitate proper management practices that include the City’s
ability to protect and preserve tree resources through regulating their
removal, and
 to effectively enforce tree preservation and zoning regulations, and to
promote an appreciation and understanding of trees and their intrinsic
value.

(a) Among the environmental assets that contribute to the livability and
attractiveness of the City
of Santa Cruz are its trees, both indigenous and introduced. Growing in
urban settings,
neighborhoods, business and commercial districts, in parks and in open
spaces, as single
specimens or in groves, trees contribute significant tangible benefits, both
psychological and
environmental, for the residents and visitors to our community alike.

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18
3
(b) Trees contribute beneficially to the urban environment and contribute to
our community’s
and the state’s climate action goals. 

Tree canopy coverage reduces heat buildup, noise and air pollutants;
improves air quality, reduces particulates, and provides oxygen. 

Trees also enhance the aesthetic environment and contribute visually to the
City by providing scenic views, scale,
color, silhouette and mass. 

Trees contribute to the protection of other natural resources by providing

4.234



erosion control, management of storm water and urban runoff, increased
infiltration and groundwater recharge, and improved water retention
capacity of soils. 

Trees provide screens and buffers to separate land uses and are often
landmarks or contribute to the significance of the
City’s history. 

Trees contribute to the economy of the City by increasing and sustaining
property
values, creating employment and training opportunities, and reducing
energy costs.

(c) The urban forest requires stewardship from both community members
and the City to
maximize its benefits, such as tree canopy coverage, shaded areas, and
enhanced habitat for
wildlife on private and public lands.  

(d) The City’s trees collectively constitute an urban forest and an
ecosystem. Removal and
planting of trees can create both negative impact, affecting the urban forest
and the
City as a whole.  The removal of mature trees may in some cases take
generations to fully restore.

(e) Appropriate management of non-native invasive species is encouraged
by the City of Santa
Cruz. Tree replacement requirements are designed to bolster native plant
and animal communities and habitats.

Clearly this ordinance would have you care for
and save these precious trees in lot 4 and
include them in the design of any project.

4.235



Sincerely,
K. Durham 
Environmental Activist
Resident of Santa Cruz since 1981
Educator since 1987
Proud Tree Hugger, Happy Tree Caregiver

-- 
Keresha  Durham~ educator, environmentalist
"care-sha"

     _≈o
 _-\<,_         
(_)/  (_) 
For a quality future for all living things, the earth needs small families

Balance population with finite natural resources
Reduce human-caused carbon

4.236



From: Cindy
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 12/12/2022
Date: Thursday, December 08, 2022 1:16:06 PM

I’m writing in regard to agenda item #4, the proposed removal of 9 heritage trees on City owned property.

I believe the removal of these trees is in direct contradiction to the City of Santa Cruz’s own Heritage Tree
Ordinance. The Purpose of the Heritage Tree Ordinance stated in section 9.56.001 is to effectively enforce tree
preservation and zoning regulations to promote the appreciation and understanding of trees and their intrinsic value.

Also for the record, the Ordinance states in section 9.56.001 paragraph
b) Trees contribute beneficially to the urban environment and contribute to our community’s and the state’s climate
action goals. Tree canopy coverage reduces heat buildup, noise and air pollutants; improves air quality, reduces
particulates, and provides oxygen. Trees also enhance the aesthetic environment and contribute visually to the City
by providing scenic views, scale, color, silhouette and mass. Trees contribute to the protection of other natural
resources by providing erosion control, management of storm water and urban runoff, increased infiltration and
groundwater recharge, and improved water retention capacity of soils. Trees provide screens and buffers to separate
land uses and are often landmarks or contribute to the significance of the City’s history. Trees contribute to the
economy of the City by increasing and sustaining property values, creating employment and training opportunities,
and reducing energy costs.

So the question is, how can the City justify the removal of 9 heritage trees and at the same time enforce it’s own
Heritage Tree Ordinance?

I strongly oppose the removal of any heritage trees and encourage the City of Santa Cruz to comply with the
provisions of the Heritage Tree Ordinance. I also encourage the City maintain the health of it’s existing heritage
trees.

Thank you for your thoughtful consideration,
Cindy Chace

425 Cleveland Avenue
Santa Cruz
Resident since 1989

4.237

mailto:cincin@elgatito.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Chris Chang
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 2:47:34 PM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commission,

Since there has been an appeal to deny tree removal for the new library project, I'd
like to ask if the design did try to save the trees, especially the heritage trees, and will
there be any sort of mitigation for heritage tree removal?

If so, I'm writing to urge you to deny the tree removal appeal filed by opponents of the
downtown project who are denying the citizens of Santa Cruz the benefits of building
124 units of affordable housing, a brand new library and a childcare center.  Please
allow the project to move forward without additional delay.

The democratic process rejecting Measure O should allow this project to move
forward.

Sincerely,

Chris Chang
240 Walk Cir
Santa Cruz, CA  95060

4.238

mailto:berrypi3@yahoo.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Carol Long
To: Sandy Brown; Martine Watkins; Sonja Brunner; Justin Cummings; Renee Golder; Donna Meyers; Shebreh

Kalantari-Johnson; Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: scpel; Santa Cruz Progressive Alliance; SCCAN
Subject: Parks Commission and Santa Cruz City council: Do not cut down the Farmers" Market Heritage Trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 1:06:49 PM

Dear Tremain Hedden-Jones, Secretary to the Commission, Mayor & Santa Cruz City Council:

RE: Heritage Tree Removal Appeal
       December 12, 4-6pm Meeting

Parks and Recreation Commission Hearing and Appeal to Stop Cutting Trees in Lot 4, the
Farmers Market Lot.
       Santa Cruz City Council Chambers & on Zoom 

    I echo the words and spirit of Karen Kaplan and many others who are appealing the hasty
destruction of our heritage trees at the site of Santa Cruz's Farmers' market, for the following
reasons   

Appeal:
Please accept the appeal and save our heritage trees in the Farmers Market Lot 4, in
Downtown, Santa Cruz.

Architectural Design:
There is no evidence in the  plan for the site that there was an effort to include existing trees
in the Santa Cruz Public Library and Parking Lot design. These priceless trees could be saved, if
buildings were designed around them.

Disease:
There is no evidence of diseased trees, so they should not be removed.

Emergency:
There is no emergency requiring the removal of the trees; the project itself has not been
approved; therefore there is no reason to cut them down now.

Historical Importance:
For many years, the "Food Not Bombs" distribution site was at the base of the heritage trees,
giving these trees historical significance, as the first free vegan food distribution site, in Santa
Cruz. These trees deserve a plaque to commemorate the historical events, that took place
there. All who were hungry, were fed. Serving free, organic, vegan food helped to mitigate the
climate crisis and homeless issues. People gathered in peace and harmony. Everyone was
welcome, treated with respect and dignity, while enjoying a healthy, hot meal. There was
music and celebration with noteworthy musicians such as Russell Brutsche, Peter Weiss,

4.239

mailto:cjlong3@sbcglobal.net
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:mwatkins@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jcummings@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:rgolder@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:SKalantari-Johnson@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:SKalantari-Johnson@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:santa-cruz-progressive-email-list@googlegroups.com
mailto:scruzpa@googlegroups.com
mailto:scruz-can@lists.riseup.net


Michael Levy and dignitaries spoke, such as current and past Mayors, City Councilmembers,
members of the Senate, Congress and more.

More Reasons to Save Trees:
• Heritage trees have historical significance.
• Trees are beautiful and provide great value to our community.
• Heritage trees are unique and are a tourist attraction.
• Most people feel good when they can see and touch ancient trees and connect with nature.
• There are not very many trees in downtown, Santa Cruz.
• There are many climate benefits from trees; they absorb CO2 and filter pollution.
• Trees provide shade and habitat for birds and small animals, such as squirrels.
• The Santa Cruz City Climate Action Plan calls for more trees; not less.
• Trees will continue to provide benefits, as long as they remain alive.
• There is no reason to cut the trees now, rather than later.
• Cutting these trees would violate the heritage tree ordinance.  
• The proposed library and parking structure building is not permitted yet, so trees should not
be cut, in advance.
• No tree should be removed until all final plans are approved, financing is complete, and the
project has a groundbreaking date, which may take more than a year.
• Heritage trees deserve to live and be preserved.
• Since trees can't speak, we need to speak up for them.
A substantial number of Santa Cruz people have spoken up for the trees and our voices should
be listened to.

Thank, you, Karen, for this research and for speaking up for the trees.

Thank you, council and commission, for listening to and heeding the trees' advocates.

 Carol Long
Santa Cruz resident for 34 years

4.240



From: Dan Chen
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please Approve Tree Removal Permit for the Downtown Library and Affordable Housing Project
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 2:05:06 PM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commission,

I'm writing to urge you to deny the tree removal appeal filed by opponents of the downtown
project who are desperate to deny the citizens of Santa Cruz the benefits of building 124
units of affordable housing, a brand new library and a childcare center.  Please allow the
project to move forward without additional delay.

The people have already spoken on this project by rejecting Measure O in the most recent
election.

Sincerely,

Dan Chen
240 Walk Cir
Santa Cruz, CA  95060

4.241

mailto:nine50six-citizen@yahoo.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Alan Schlenger
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please delay the Lot 4 tree removal
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 4:18:55 PM

Dear Commissioners

I am requesting that the removal of the trees on Lot 4 not be done while the Farmers Market is still operating there.
The removal should occur as close to when the market will have to move from Lot 4 as possible.

This delay would minimize possible upset and turmoil to the the community and to the operation of the market in
the remaining time the market is on Lot 4.

Removing the trees earlier than necessary will negatively impact the community’s ability to have a peaceful
environment and interfere with the market’s ability to conduct business. 

I ask that you delay the removal of the trees until the last possible moment.

Thank you,
Alan Schlenger
Longtime city resident, strong market supporter and concerned community member

4.242

mailto:alan@ucsc.edu
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Don Lane
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal and move forward with housing - library project
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 1:07:37 PM

Greetings Commissioners
Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permits.
It's clear the voters have indicated support for the library/affordable housing project on Lot 4
and the project cannot be redesigned to accommodate the trees without significant negative
changes to the project. These changes would either make the project infeasible or make it so
reduced in size that it would not accomplish the principal purposes of the project.
Please help our community achieve a substantial affordable housing gain and a great new
library.
Thank you for your consideration.
Don Lane

4.243

mailto:donlane132@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Carol Gmail
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 12:49:48 PM

The city of Santa Cruz voted. We want the new library and housing. The trees are not worth saving. They are
planting more trees with the new project. I can’t believe this is still a talking point. Let’s move forward already.

Carol Berberich
Resident of the City of Santa Cruz

4.244

mailto:carolellenberberich@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: cathy cavanaugh
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 1:37:59 PM

Dear Commissioner,   As a retired, 20 year, parks worker, please move forward and deny the tree removal appeal.

Thank you,
Cathy Cavanaugh

Sent from my iPad

4.245

mailto:cecav208@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Elan Emerson
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 12:50:39 PM

Hello Parks and Recs Commission,

I’m writing as a local business owner in Downtown Santa Cruz. I’ve been looking forward to
the new Downtown Library. I understand that there will be new trees planted by professional
landscapers which will last for generations to come. Please std deceitful me and deny the
appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal. 

Thank you,

Elan Emerson

Barceloneta
1541-B Pacific Avenue
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
www.eatbarceloneta.com
elan@eatbarceloneta.com
Instagram
Facebook

4.246

mailto:elan@eatbarceloneta.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
x-apple-data-detectors://7/0
x-apple-data-detectors://7/0
http://www.eatbarceloneta.com/
mailto:elan@eatbarceloneta.com
https://www.instagram.com/barceloneta_santa_cruz/
https://www.facebook.com/eatbarceloneta/


From: Joe
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 12:51:07 PM

Please, please, please deny the appeal before you to stop the tree
removal at LOT 4.

I understand the folks who don't want the mixed use project and yet 60%
of the voters have spoken.

The time has come to move FORWARD!!

Joe Ferrara

4.247

mailto:joe@atlantisfantasyworld.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Dennis
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 1:05:21 PM

Please support the Library and Affordable Housing Project!
The trees that will be removed will be replaced with more trees that better fit the urban environment.
Please, please deny this appeal!
Dennis Hagen
322 Pelton Ave
Santa Cruz CA

4.248

mailto:hagensipkin@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Robin Holland
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 2:46:42 PM

Robin Holland
Brand Strategy & Consulting
RobinHollandInternational
415-342-5546
robincreates@gmail.com

4.249

mailto:robincreates@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
https://robinhollandinternational.com/
mailto:robincreates@gmail.com


From: Roberta Hunter
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 9:21:08 AM

I would like to urge you to accept the will of the voters of Santa Cruz, and deny the appeal to the Lot 4 tree removal.
As Measure O demonstrated, the majority of city residents clearly want the new library comprehensive project to
move forward. Tactics to delay the project are disrespectful to the community and costly.

Please say no to political tactics that would delay such a clearly desired project by the majority of the community.

Thank you,
Roberta Hunter

4.250

mailto:birdiehunter80@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Cara
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 3:26:44 PM

I love trees. If the trees on Lot 4 were healthy, were native, I’d feel really bad about
sacrificing them. But even then, I would prioritize low-income housing. Please go
forward with the project, and please find good places in our town where new, healthy,
native trees can grow.

Thank you.

Caroline Lamb
130 Serra Court, Santa Cruz
8314590917

4.251

mailto:ratbert@cruzio.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Benjamin Levine
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 6:21:20 PM

Dearest planning commisioners,
        We need housing amd a library, not a couple of old, nonnative parking lot trees that are
nearing the end of their lifetime!!! The people and the city need to projext to go forward. 
With love From Your humble citizen
Benji levine

4.252

mailto:bealevin@ucsc.edu
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: geri lieby
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 8:58:13 PM

My goodness. The trees are near the end of their natural life. They are not native. The new development will plant
native trees. It’s an ugly parking lot with the aforementioned trees. Please don’t allow a few misguided people kill a
beautiful well planned project.
Geri Lieby
310 Everson Drive
Santa Cruz

Sent from my iPhone

4.253

mailto:glieby@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: annelipman@comcast.net
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 12:41:06 PM

Please allow the city to move forward with this project without further delay. Thank you for all your work on this
matter.

Best,

Anne Lipman

Sent from my iPhone

4.254

mailto:annelipman@comcast.net
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Gerry Mandel
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 12:13:09 PM

Dear Parks & Recreation Commissioners,

As a resident of downtown Santa Cruz, a past commissioner on the Parks & Rec Commission, and supporter of the
mixed-use library/affordable housing project on Lot 4, I urge you to deny the tree removal appeal and allow the
project to move forward. It’s always sad when large trees are cut down, but in time the greater number of
replacement trees will grow tall and bring even more shade and color to the street. Sometimes difficult decisions
must be made for the greater good, with an eye to the future.

Thanks for listening.

Gerry Mandel
512 Washington Street
Santa Cruz

4.255

mailto:gmandel24@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Rachel McKay
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 6:44:05 PM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commisioners,

I am writing to ask that you deny the appeal to save the trees in Lot 4. While I love trees, I also
love the library and look forward to a new library with a living roof.

The trees in lot 4 are not native. Native trees support local critters much better than non-
natives do. I have a magnolia in my back yard, not only is it messy, I don't see many birds
using it. Liquid Amber trees, while beautiful, are know to lose limbs easily, as many have
done in the downtown area. I also understand that an independent Arborist said that the
trees,are in poor health.

Thank you for doing the right thing by denying the appeal to save the trees.

Thank you,
Rachel McKay
Santa Cruz

4.256

mailto:rachelm17@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Valerie Mishkin
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 7:34:01 PM

A professional arborist says the trees are non-native, in poor condition and are poor
candidates for preservation.
The architect and affordable housing developer say: the project cannot be redesigned
and still achieve the goals of this important project, which has been overwhelmingly
supported by the community and council action.
The Library & Affordable Housing Project will mitigate the removal of the trees by
planting more trees than removed and delivering environmentally beneficial features of
the project (green roof, native plant landscaping, habitat for pollinators and more). 

Please move forward on this important project. without delays. This is one of the
few projects that is focused on Affordability. It is desperately needed. The Library,
the parking, and the daycare will all add great value to our city.

-- 

   
   Valerie Mishkin 
   Bailey Properties 
   DRE#  02092111
   VMishkin@BaileyProperties.com 
   Office  831 426 4100 
   Cell     831 238 0504
   1602 Ocean Street Santa Cruz CA. 95060
    Local Government Relations Committee
    Smart Coast California Board of Directors
    Santa Cruz City Master Recyclers 

.   

4.257

mailto:vmishkin@baileyproperties.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Brian_Creative_design Smith
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 1:01:17 PM

To the commissioners on the Parks & Recreation committee:

Please deny this appeal as it does not align with what was voted on for this property as well as the
well-documented facts that these trees are not native or healthy.  The new facility will have a positive
offset with the green roof with native plant landscaping that will be more beneficial to our community.

Please do not delay the library and affordable housing any further by submitting to this last-minute
tactic to block this project.

Thank you,
Brian Smith
703 Spring St, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

PS: Thank you for your service to the community for serving on the Parks & Recreation Commission

Creative design & manufacturing
P: +1 831.621.4996  F: +1 831.426.0530

4.258

mailto:brian@cre8ivsales.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: fred willoughby
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 10:57:59 AM

Dear Commissioners,
Please deny the tree removal appeal for the Library Mixed-Use project. More and better trees are proposed to
replace unhealthy non-native trees.It would be unconscionable to derail an important community improvement.
Tim Willoughby
Scotts Valley

4.259

mailto:redmtn2@comcast.net
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: David Lieby
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 8:24:48 AM

I am writing to ask that you deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit. Our city needs the Library
and housing that the appeal would stop.

Thanks,
David Lieby
310 Everson Dr, Santa Cruz, Ca 95060

4.260

mailto:dlieby@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Linda Snook
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please deny the appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 12:35:01 PM

I support the new affordable housing and library project, and ask you to deny the appeal of
tree removal. I would like to see the tree removal mitigated by planting of native trees in other
areas of town.
Sincerely,
Linda Snook 

4.261

mailto:lindafish123@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Matt Berger
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please don’t allow an appeal of the Lot 4 tree removal permit
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 12:44:02 PM

I am a Santa Cruz homeowner and resident with two kids in high school. my wife is a public
school teacher.

We and other citizens of the city are being held hostage by a bunch of obstructionists who are
doing everything they can to protect their monopoly of high-prices single family rental
properties that they acquired decades ago.

They are the worst special interest there is, protecting their own at the expense of everyone
else.

They don’t care about the future of our community. They care about keeping what they have
and not sharing with up and coming generations.

Those trees are non native invasive species planted in the 1960s by the owner of a downtown
business. They are not part of the dense natural green scape that surrounds our beautiful city.
No indigenous community ever sat under those magnolia trees.

We deserve a modern library. We deserve homes for young families and professionals. We
don’t need a rundown parking lot with a few sucky trees.

Please shut down this appeal quickly and let these obstructions know that they can’t hold us
residents hostage

Matt Berger
Cleveland Ave

Sent from my iPhone

4.262

mailto:mattberger10@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: JGrady
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please don’t remove the trees
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 3:44:46 PM

Please consider a way to leave the heritage trees on lot 4.
Obviously, they mean a lot to this community and cutting them down is short sighted.
Thank you,
Jennifer Grady
414 Avalon Street

4.263

mailto:ozmorhiza@hotmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Sean Murray
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Please Preserve Lot 4 Trees
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 3:02:56 PM

Dear Mr. Hedden-Jones;

My name is Sean Murray; I am a monthly-donor "Friend" of SCPL who voted NO on O; and I
am stoked for the new library and mixed-use facility.

I write to encourage you to preserve the 12 trees on Lot 4 while moving forward with the new
project. The trees are heritage trees, recommended for preservation by the city arborist. They
create shade and sequester carbon. They ar beautiful, and the lungs of our city.

Some of those trees will long outlive the main branch of SCPL; let's respect them and leave
them for future generations to enjoy.
Peace,
s

-- 
Be good.

4.264

mailto:seanpmurray@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Dave Evans
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please Proceed with Library & Downtown Housing (deny the "tree strategy" to block the community"s will)
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 12:42:36 PM

Dear Commission

I am writing in support of the continuation of the downtown library project and affordable
housing. Please reject the attempt to thwart the will of the people as demonstrated in the recent
election by the side technique of using tree preservation to block the project. The trees in
question are not native, inappropriate, and will be more than compensated for with new
plantings. The positive impact of the community particularly for affordable housing far at
ways this meager attempt and using trees to stop taking care of our people. We have already
voted on this and the community has spoken. Please proceed as the community has indicated.

Dave Evans
600  Pelton SC
18 year permanent resident

-- 
_______________________________
David J. Evans
djevans4@gmail.com | 408.857.1903
Co-Author: Designing Your Life and Designing Your Work Life
www.designingyour.life | www.designingyourwork.life
@DaveEvansDYL | facebook.com/DesigningYourLifeTheBook

Co-Founder: Stanford Life Design Lab
www.lifedesignlab.stanford.edu
_________________________________________________

4.265

mailto:djevans4@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:djevans4@gmail.com
http://www.designingyour.life/
http://www.designingyourwork.life/
http://www.lifedesignlab.stanford.edu/


From: Maya Elson
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please Save Lot 4"s Heritage Trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 2:57:10 PM

I support the appeal to protect these ancient Magnolia trees. 
Thanks

-- 
Maya Elson
Post Fire Biofiltration Program Manager at CoRenewal
MycoRenewal Specialist at Mycopsychology
Outreach Coordinator with Mazu Mushrooms

4.266

mailto:armillarianabs@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
http://www.corenewal.org/
http://www.mycopsychology.org/
https://mazumushrooms.com/


From: Anina Van Alstine
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Please spare the trees!
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 10:30:14 PM

Hello!
I implore you to save the Heritage Trees on the downtown lot!

-- 

831-818-0735

"Hope and fear cannot occupy the same space. Invite one to stay."Maya Angelou.
and fear cannot occupy the same space. Invite on— Maya
Angelou

please contact me for any of your real estate needs at
www.aninaandjulia.com
Please see my website for exciting news about my real estate practice and associate, Julia
Randall!

4.267

mailto:aninav51@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
http://aninasellssantacruz.com/
http://thehappyhousehunter.blogspot.com/


From: Casey Beyer
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Tony Elliot
Subject: Public Hearing -- Item 4 -- Dec. 12, 2022 meeting
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 4:03:43 PM

City of Santa Cruz
Parks & Recreation Commission
323 Church  Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Dear Chair Glavis, Vice Chair Greensite and Commissioners Angell, Cruz, Locatelli, Mio and
Pollock:

I am writing  on behalf of the Santa Cruz County Chamber regarding to the tree permit for 
Lot 4 in downtown Santa Cruz, the site of the Downtown Library and Affordable Housing
project. I urge the commission to deny the tree removal appeal filed by project opponents
and allow the project to move forward without additional delays to build 124 units of
desperately needed affordable housing, a brand new library and a childcare center.

Based on an independent professional arborist examination and documentation of the
condition of the trees. All of the trees were identified as “non-native … exhibiting myriad
detrimental conditions including structural weaknesses, evidence of past failures, limb
and stem decay, and buried root collars which may disguise root disease and resulting
decay.” The trees were found to be poor candidates for either relocation or preservation on
site, because of the significant expense required and the questionable likelihood of success.

An independent consultant is still completing a more extensive environmental review. It has
not been available in time for the upcoming commission meeting, so City staff recommends
that the Commission open the hearing on Monday, but continue discussion and action to its
next regular meeting, in February 2023.

Thank you for considering the views of the Santa Cruz County Chamber on this important
project in our downtown.

Respectfully submitted,

Casey

Casey Beyer
Chief Executive Officer
Santa Cruz County 
  Chamber of Commerce
(831) 457-3713

4.268

mailto:casey.beyer@santacruzchamber.org
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:telliot@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Jacquelyn Griffith
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Re Appeal: Please Respect Heritage Ordinance and Keep Our Heritage Trees As Long As Possible!
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 7:45:32 PM

Dear Parks and Rec Commissioners,

First, thank you for your time in volunteer service on our Parks & Rec Commission.

We need to honor our Heritage Tree ordinance.  If the Commission does not honor our heritage trees and our City
Heritage Tree Ordinance, then it becomes difficult to expect our citizens and visitors to respect and honor our
heritage trees.

Now, with advancing climate change, these trees are even more important to us than they were when the ordinance
was adopted.    We especially need these trees downtown to allay pollution in this ever more dense area and for their
ability to reduce the air temperature and provide shade from direct sunlight for residents and tourists alike  with our
decreased ozone layer.    This last reason is utmost in my mind right now since my sister is going through  skin
cancer surgeries again on her nose and recovery is slow and painful.

Please save these trees on lot 4 for now.  There is an unknown amount of time until this project is fully funded and
even the possibility of design changes that could protect these precious resources, our heritage trees.   A large
section of our residents And tourists have shown their appreciation for the trees and desire to save them.   I have had
several people tell me they did not understand their vote on Measure O would take out the trees, or that they were
confused and thought voting No on O meant it would save the trees and remodel the library where it now stands.  

There is simply no reason to allow these protected heritage trees to be cut down at this time and leaving them in
place allows our community to work for mutually acceptable solutions.   Cutting them now only leads to rancor and
pain and more division at a time even nationally when we truly need to find unity and work together.

Thank you for reading fully and considering my comments.  I have lived and worked here for 41 years, including 12
years of volunteer work on City and County committees and commissions and I care deeply for our Santa Cruz
community.

Jacquelyn Griffith
239 Calvin Pl.
Santa Cuz, CA 95060

4.269

mailto:jkgriffith2@icloud.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Judy Weaver
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Re the 10/28/22 Appeal of the Heritage Trees-Cutting Permit for Lot 4, Santa Cruz
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 11:53:27 PM

To the Commissioners of the Parks and Recreation Commission:

I respectfully request that the appeal by Pauline Seales against the Heritage Tree Cutting Permit for Lot 4 be
upheld.  That the staff recommendation, that the Commission defer hearing of the appeal until February 13, 2023, be
honored to allow the CEQA analysis to be completed, for a comprehensive analysis of the environmental impacts of
the proposed tree removal. 

In addition, I especially request that none of the heritage trees at the site be cut down/removed unless funding and
building permits for the garage/library/affordable housing project are on record and until the time of construction is
expected to take place.

Thank you for your consideration.

Judy Weaver
Taylor St
Santa Cruz, CA 95060

4.270

mailto:jbweaver@cruzio.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Lois Robin
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Shebreh Kalantari-Johnson; Sandy Brown; Martine Watkins; Sonja Brunner; Justin Cummings; Renee Golder;

Donna Meyers; scpel; Santa Cruz Progressive Alliance; cjlong3@sbcglobal.net
Subject: Re: [SCPEL] Do not cut down the Farmers" Market Heritage Trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 5:15:31 PM

Dear Tremain Hedden-Jones, Secretary to the Commission, Mayor & Santa Cruz City Council:

RE:  Parks and Recreation Commission Hearing; December 12, 4-6pm Meeting
Heritage Tree Removal Appeal to Stop Cutting Trees in Lot 4, the Farmers Market 
Lot

     
The imminent destruction of the heritage trees on Lot L is at least premature, 
and at base, a great mistake. 

Several others have written about the reasons to halt this action, I add my own 
points to theirs:

Architectural Design?
There is no evidence in the  plan for the site that there was an effort to include 
existing trees in the Santa Cruz Public Library and Parking Lot design.

No Disease: 
There is NO evidence of diseased trees, as was stated by the architects.  Have 
another look!

Contributions to Clean Air: 
They absorb CO2 and filter pollution, the larger the canopy, the more that works…
Shade and habitat for birds and small animals, dazzlers for human babies,

No Urgency: 
The project itself has not been approved; therefore there is no reason to cut 
them down now.

The Heart of Santa Cruz:
Beyond it’s use as the gathering site for the community as a Farmers Market, Lot 
L has been a center of community activity in MANY ways and for many years.
The site of the Antique Fair—and other such colorful events.
The staging ground for community celebrations, festivals, political, arts and music 
events and for demonstrations….all of which represent THE ESSENTIAL SANTA 
CRUZ SPIRIT!

4.271

mailto:robin@baymoon.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:SKalantari-Johnson@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:mwatkins@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jcummings@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:rgolder@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:santa-cruz-progressive-email-list@googlegroups.com
mailto:scruzpa@googlegroups.com
mailto:cjlong3@sbcglobal.net


The "Food Not Bombs" distribution site was at the base of the heritage trees--the 
first free vegan food distribution site in Santa Cruz. 
The back-of-a-truck performances for many audiences, for many reasons…
...The heart of our community.

The Santa Cruz City Climate Action Plan calls for more trees; not less.

Timing:
If indeed funding becomes available and the project groundbreaking date is 
established, it’s unlikely to be within a year
…AND OUR COMMUNITY CAN CONTINUE TO BENEFIT FROM THE TREES’ 
CONTRIBUTION TO AIR QUALITY AND CIVIC BEAUTY.

With respect, I join my fellow active citizens in requesting another look at this 
unnecessary action.

Lois Robin
Santa Cruz County resident 20+ years

-- 
-- 

Lois Robin
4701 Nova Dr.
Santa Cruz,CA
831 464-3939
www.LoisRobin.com
climatechangehitshome.com

4.272

http://www.loisrobin.com/
http://climatechangehitshome.com/


From: Wesley Somers
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Re: Appeal of the Heritage Tree Removal Permits
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 10:47:52 PM

To whom it may concern,
 
I am a PhD student at UCSC and an active community member of Santa Cruz since 2009. I am
writing to voice my support for the appeal of the Heritage Tree Removal Permits in the
downtown lot #4, where the new library construction is slated to begin. 
 
The appeal contests the tentative tree removal permits issued by the City in October. The
grounds for appeal are based on the Heritage Tree Ordinance which states:
 

"A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design cannot be
altered to accommodate existing heritage trees."
 

The city must, under this ordinance, make all attempts to alter the building plan to
accommodate the heritage trees in lot 4, which, as I understand, has not been attempted so far.
 
Ideally, accommodating these trees would mean 1) do not cut them down, 2) to ensure they
can still obtain the same amount of sunlight as they otherwise would, 3) to see that their roots
be undisturbed to prevent disease as a result of the building’s presence, and 4) that the trees
remain accessible to the public.

These trees are important to the people of Santa Cruz. Many of us have memories under these
trees. They provide a lovely shade, a home for birds, a place to rest or meet with friends, and
on top of that make our town beautiful. All of these things have a positive effect on our mental
and physical well-being, and to remove them would be, frankly, demoralizing and shocking. It
would send many of us into a long period of grief, and an even longer period of depression.  
 
I have confidence that the council will unanimously agree that our heritage trees are important
and will find a way to preserve them, even if not all of the ideal conditions can be met. 

Thank you for your time,
-- 
Wesley Somers
PhD Student 
Cross-Cultural Musicology a
University of California, Santa Cruz

4.273

mailto:wsomers@ucsc.edu
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Pam Brown
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: RE: Appeal of the Lot 4 Tree Removal
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 2:49:59 PM

To the commissioners on the Parks & Recreation committee:

Please deny this appeal as it does not align with what was voted on for this property as
well as the well-documented facts that these trees are not native or healthy.  The new
facility will have a positive offset with the green roof with native plant landscaping that
will be more beneficial to our community. On a side note, I own 2 properties downtown
and am fully supportive of the efforts to clean up and modernize our community spaces
especially the main library facility.

Please do not delay the library project because the “squeaky wheels” continue to
attempt to block the community’s desires.

Best Regards

Pamela Blanc Brown

931 High St Santa Cruz, CA 95060

PS: Thank you for your service to the community for serving on the Parks & Recreation
Commission

4.274

mailto:jpamples@yahoo.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: SUSAN KERRY
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Re: Heritage Tree Removal Permits
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 9:56:06 PM

Please add my voice to the many others in our city who are questioning this rush to
remove these heritage trees from one of the last remaining open spaces in downtown
Santa Cruz. In a town where "the need to mitigate 'climate change' due to excess
CO2" is used to justify every new regulation to limit the local citizens' abilities to go
about their business, our city has chosen to issue permits to remove ALL of the Lot 4
heritage trees, even as these trees continue to do what they've done since they were
planted there long ago: take the CO2 being generated by life itself and convert it into
Oxygen. And now you the 'selected', not 'elected', commission members, are about to
decide whether these trees, the true climate-change fighters, spewing no CO2-filled
hot air unlike those seeking to cut them down, should be sacrificed on the altar of
housing, parking, and a new library, none of which will generate any oxygen, but will
generate tons more of CO2. Oh where will those heritage trees be when you really
need them? 

Need I add that the city is issuing permits to cut these trees down well before they
have even secured any funding for the structure they plan to build, and given the
impending collapse of our financial system, both state and federal (or hadn't you
heard), such funding appears to be less and less likely. Sounds like the city is just
asserting its 'bully' rights after a serious challenge by its citizenry. But what's their
hurry and why are they taking it out on these trees, truly the only significant source of
fresh O2 in that block of downtown?

Please deny these permits as being unnecessary at this time, and, even better,
unnecessary at all if any future building on this lot is required to accommodate these
trees and build around them safely. That would certainly be to the benefit of any
oxygen-breathing visitors to this lot, whatever the future has in store.

Theodora Kerry
43 year resident of the City of Santa Cruz

4.275

mailto:thekerry@comcast.net
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: gdavidson@cruzio.com
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Regarding the Heritage Trees
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 12:33:41 PM

To the Commissioners:

As a Santa Cruz citizen and homeowner since 2000, I support in the strongest terms an
injunction against the removal of the heritage trees .
The absence of detailed funding for the library project, and the dismissive attitude toward
these beautiful trees in the formation of a building plan is not congruent with the soul of our
city. We should protect our past- especially that which is harmless and so beneficial to the
community.
I opposed the new mixed-use library building with its emphasis on hotel parking, but-if
eventually funded- it may yet come to pass.

At the very least let us come together, honor nature, support conservation, and find a way
to integrate the trees.

Thank you,

Glenys Davidson
125 Sutphen St
Santa Cruz

4.276

mailto:gdavidson@cruzio.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Martin Gomez
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Regarding Tree Removal Appeal
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 7:02:14 AM

I am writing to urge the Parks and Recreation Commission to deny the appeal of the Heritage Tree
Removal permit related to the Downtown Library and Affordable Housing project (DLAHP). By denying
this appeal you will allow this DLAHP to go forward, resulting in the creation of over 140 affordable
housing units and a new downtown library. If the appeal is approved by the Parks and Recreation
Commission, it will for all intents and purposes, kill the DLAHP. 

After years of public hearings, city council review and approval, public debate and recent voter approval,
it would be an embarrassment to the city and a denial to voice of the people who voted to complete this
project by defeating Measure O in recent November election.. Please deny the appeal. The appeal has
little to do with the trees (which have been evaluated by a registered consulting arborist and determined
to be unhealthy, and non-Native). Instead the appeal is an end run to deny the community a new library
and sorely needed affordable housing.

Martín Gómez
Former member of the Downtown Library Advisory Committee.
(415) 999-9601 

4.277

mailto:mjgomez@sbcglobal.net
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Leslie Keedy
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Fwd: Removal of Heritage Trees on City Lot 4
Date: Thursday, December 08, 2022 8:40:00 PM

On Dec 8, 2022, at 8:28 PM, Susan Monheit <smonheit74@gmail.com> wrote:

 



Dear Ms. Keedy,

I found it appalling that during an election with a measure on the ballot
(Measure O) to determine the fate of Lot 4 and the heritage trees
contained there on, that the City of Santa Cruz would post signage
pushing forward the process for immediate removal of all trees on Lot 4.

 

Given that it may be many years before the ~$1.8 million dollar deficit to
build the library/mixed use project materializes, I request emphatically
that the trees on Lot 4 not be cut down until the City is ready to break
ground on building. Please, do not cut the trees until onsite construction
requires their removal.

 

Sincerely,

Susan Monheit

Santa Cruz Citizen

4.278

mailto:lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:smonheit74@gmail.com


From: Eve Roberson
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Save Lot 4 heritage trees
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 2:46:31 PM

TO: City Planning Commission
Why must these invaluable trees be sacrificed?  They deserve at least a hearing!
Thank you,
E. L. Roberson

4.279

mailto:roberson.eve@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Tim Brattan
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Save Lot 4 trees / Section 9 trees/habitat
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 10:28:01 AM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commissioners and City Council,

We urge you to rescind the tentative tree removal permits issued by the City
in October. Why remove the heritage trees with their beauty and shading
benefits on Lot 4 so long before project funding is identified (if ever), final
plan approval, parking concrete closer to pour, etc? What's the rush?

The City’s own Heritage Tree Ordinance states: "A heritage tree shall only
be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project design cannot be altered to
accommodate existing heritage trees." Has Jayson Architecture offered a
design in a way that would preserve or accommodate any of the 9 heritage
trees on the project site? Heritage trees are crucial for the urban forest and
provide innumerable social and environmental benefits, especially amid the
threatening and intense climate emergency.

Please also vote to preserve trees - many heritage - and the natural habitat
in the 1.6 mile Section 9 of the Coastal Rail Corridor that the City DPW EIR
says will be uprooted to install a trail next to rather than over unusable rail
tracks. The removal of 400 trees and their shading/dappling light, sensitive
butterfly, bird and other insect/animal habitat should be a nonstarter, not
aligned with our shared community values and should be rejected.

Are you so sure, so positive that passenger rail will ever be feasible in that
corridor that you are willing to destroy the linear park’s natural environment
and beauty? We favor building a trail by removing the rails (since they would
have to replaced anyway), leaving the ties in place (to preserve rail option)
and installing a gravel/DG trail bed while other future transit options are
studied.

Sincerely,

Suzi Mahler and Tim Brattan
City of Santa Cruz residents

4.280

mailto:timbrattan@yahoo.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Donna Wolper
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Save lot 4 trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 12:43:34 PM

Should be a no brainer. Pathetic I have to write to demand this.

Sent from my iPad

4.281

mailto:sdonnaw@yahoo.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Zack Schlesinger
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Save our Lot 4 heritage trees
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 10:52:05 AM

I am writing to ask that you not cut down any Lot 4 heritage trees. These trees are important to
the downtown environment and to the heritage of Santa Cruz. 
Best,
Zack

Zack Schlesinger
160 Cypress Park
Santa Cruz, CA
95060

4.282

mailto:zacksc@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: niczar@cruzio.com
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Save the Heritage Trees
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 6:36:41 PM

Greetings! I implore you: Please save the Heritage trees at the Parking Lot
where the weekly Wednesday Farmers Market is held. Below are some of
the many reasons that they should be saved and appreciated for the
beauty and contribution they make to our environment:

• Trees provide great value to the community and the planet.
• There are not very many trees downtown.
• There are many climate benefits from trees and the shade they provide.
• The Santa Cruz city Climate Action Plan calls for more trees not less.
* Trees will continue to provide benefits as long as they remain alive.
• These are heritage trees and need to be saved.
• Wouldn't cutting these trees be a violation of the heritage tree
ordinance?

* There is no compelling reason to cut the trees now rather than later. It
was shocking for me to see the posted tree cutting notice in the Sentinel in
October. Couldn't the trees somehow, someway be saved despite the vote
to create a new library on that lot site? Can't the trees be incorporated into
the design? Respect these mighty sentinels of time and beauty. Do not
destroy the Heritage Trees!! 

Thank you. Sincerely, Nicolette Czarrunchick, Santa Cruz resident

4.283

mailto:niczar@cruzio.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Bob Majzler
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: save the Lot 4 trees
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 8:28:44 AM

Hello,

I am writing to support the effort to save the Heritage trees in Lot 4. 
These are big, beautiful trees that do not deserve to be cut down.  Please do
everything you can to save them.

thank you,

Bob Majzler

4.284

mailto:airbaron@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Nancy Maynard
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Save the trees
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 7:10:26 PM

Keep our downtown trees...  we need more trees downtown not less...
Trees contribute to our well being... and are welcoming to visitors

Nancy Maynard 

4.285

mailto:mtnmom3@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: lisa ekström
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Support for the Appeal and for the Heritage Trees on Lot 4
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 12:16:44 AM

To the Parks and Recreation Commissioners,

Please accept the appeal, deny the permit application, and preserve our Heritage
Trees on Lot 4. There is no compelling reason to approve the destruction of these
trees, especially at this point in a project that is still in planning stages — and
apparently has not adequately investigated the possibilities of incorporating and
preserving at least some of our Heritage Trees. And the funding for this project is far
more than 50% short.

The City of Santa Cruz has a Heritage Tree Ordinance which needs to be followed.

I read that one argument for destroying our Heritage Trees was that they would be
replaced, one to one. Replacing 9 destroyed Heritage Trees with 9 young trees — while
sounding possibly reasonable in terms of mathematics — is not remotely sound in
terms of Santa Cruz’s ecosystems. Mature trees with larger trunk diameters store far
more carbon than smaller trees, and the larger canopy of mature trees and Heritage
Trees also means they're more effective at mitigating urban heat island effect as well
as being more effective at intercepting air pollutants. These are all important and
incredibly valuable in addressing the climate crisis. It’s also important to remember
that when a large tree (that has been industriously storing CO2) is cut down, the CO2
is released back into the environment.

Trees actually appreciate in their value as they mature, which is the opposite of other
city infrastructure, including a new Library and Affordable Housing project.

Finally, there are so many vital benefits these Heritage Trees have brought to all of us,
many of them quantifiable, and yet some of those real benefits are of other qualities
altogether. These trees have shaded us, protected us, given us sense of place and a
place for community in what would otherwise be just another parking lot.

Please protect these trees as they’ve protected us until it’s absolutely and clearly
necessary to consider otherwise, if that indeed ever becomes necessary.

Thank you,
Lisa Ekström
Downtown Santa Cruz

-- 

4.286

mailto:ekstromdesign@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Alyssa Kroeger
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: SUPPORT the Downtown Library & Affordable Housing Project & DENY Tree Removal Permit Appeal
Date: Monday, December 12, 2022 9:40:14 AM

Dear Commission Parks and Recreation,

I join Downtown Forward in supporting the Downtown Library & Affordable Housing Project by denying the tree
removal appeal. The Project would plant more trees than removed and provide additional environmentally beneficial
features such as a green roof and encourages reduction of vehicle miles traveled ("VMT").  This project will also
provide additional community benefits such as a state of the art library, childcare facility, bike parking, resources for
all, and much-needed housing.  It is also not clear whether the heritage trees are proper candidates for preservation.

Sincerely,

Alyssa Kroeger
9 Valmar Ct
Seaside, CA 93955
alyssakroeger@gmail.com

4.287

mailto:alyssakroeger@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: amelia gray
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Support the Library & Affordable Housing Project
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 12:41:30 PM

Dear  Parks and Recreation Commision, 

As a life-long Santa Cruzian, parent, and someone passionate about making sure our
community thrives, I am writing to you to strongly urge the Commission to deny the tree
preservation appeal opponents of the new downtown library project are using in an attempt to
halt the library and housing building. 

Measure O failed. Environmental laws are being abused in California, and have been for a
long time, by NIMBYs that fail to see the need for housing and public transit- this is ignoring
the spirit of the laws and preventing a healthy society.

I urge denying the appeal for the above and following reasons:

A professional arborist says the trees are non-native, in poor condition and are poor
candidates for preservation.
The architect and affordable housing developer say: the project cannot be redesigned and
still achieve the goals of this important project, which has been overwhelmingly supported
by the community and council action.
The Library & Affordable Housing Project will mitigate the removal of the trees by planting
more trees than removed and delivering environmentally beneficial features of the project
(green roof, native plant landscaping, habitat for pollinators and more). 

Sincerely,

Amelia Gray

4.288

mailto:a.eve.gray@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


THE QUESTION OF OUR STORY 

The time to push back is way past due.  How do I know?  Because this is an old tattered, wore-out tale. 
Old by decades of repetition, and destructive consequences.  But certainly not as old and deep-rooted 
as ‘my family’s story’’.  Sadly, this tale is a result of State decrees.  Which is another old account of 
‘follow the money’. As city officials grapple with attaining the unsubstantiated housing density demands, 
other cities band together to build a legal case to defend their environment and sanctity of place.   

You ask, “Who am I to tell this story?”  I am on Death Row appealing for my LIFE.  I hold the TRUTH, the 
REAL, and am WITNESS, as well as home to many creatures sustained by my leaves, branches, and bark. 
I’ve thrived through winds, rains, drought, and earthquakes only to reach higher and broader for  shelter 
and shade. My roots breed life and grow deep into Mother Earth, entwined with others of my stature, 
sending healing elements when needed, and rich sap and acorns for many a meal.   

Lately, the chatter beneath my branches foretells that the empowered will tear at our roots and grind 
our spirits never again to clean the air, provide shade, while forcing families of creatures to impose their 
needs on others’ territories.    

The story is clear: many choose to follow the hungry, confident, unified team, enticing residents with 
digital pictures of bigger hard shiny landscapes, while touting promises of better days ahead. This team 
fights against the citizen voices and ignores opportunities, history, and value of life already here. 

Repeatedly, the self-assured claws of this machinery have ripped away places of beauty and appeal.  
That’s what makes this a very old and tired story. These forces have arrived in Santa Cruz salivating at 
chances to fatten their wallets as they mine our land and water.  Couched in the guise of ‘affordable 
homes’, we pay the price for playhouses for those who can afford what most others cannot.  

Our town, nestled in the wonderous Monterey Bay, is no different than other California coastal cities 
with water ways and  mountainous skylines.  They too have suffered under cement polluting garages 
and huge plate glass structures that rise to block the scenic views and create congestion on streets and 
highways. More wheeling and dealing developers have made their way to our special place convincing 
officials with righteous ‘Stories’ of better days to come. 

Is this then ‘Our Story’?  Do you want aunt hills of people crowed together choking on dirty air?  Plus, 
more boutique hotels for hard-working citizens to sit in traffic jams, but no longer able to  enjoy open 
spaces and the beautiful canopies of our life-giving forms.  

While many of you weep for our lives, who among you will speak TRUTH TO POWER?  By saving ‘US’ you 
can offer better solutions which reflect sanctity of our history and beauty of place.  Plus, with less effort 
and cost, replenish and renovate all the empty and worn buildings. You will write OUR  story.  A better 
century is yours with the WILL and WISDOM.  ‘WE’ are living with tremendous climatic forces. ‘WE’ 
cannot escape this authority. There is a greater need for improving not over-extending emergency 
services. Nature is shouting!  Ignoring this message is irresponsible.  Better to understand our 
Interconnection and Oneness:  PLESASE, SAY YES TO US!  

 “Don’t it always seem to go, that you don’t know what you’ve got til its gone. They paved paradise 
and put up a parking lot.  

 

4.289



From: Debra Feickert
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones
Subject: Tree Appeal
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 6:09:24 PM

Good evening,

I am writing as a concerned citizen about the possibility that heritage trees will be cut down to
make way for the multipurpose project planned in downtown Santa Cruz.
There are many climate benefits from trees and the shade they provide, and the Santa Cruz
city Climate Action Plan calls for more trees not less. Also, these are heritage trees and need
to be saved.

Debra Feickert

4.290

mailto:debfeickert@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Pauline Seales
To: Tremain Hedden-Jones; Leslie Keedy; Parks and Rec; John Hall; Lynda Marin; Magi Amma; Susan Cavalieri
Subject: Tree Cut Permit Appeal
Date: Tuesday, December 06, 2022 3:45:54 PM

Dear Parks & Rec,
My co-appellants insist that we restate our position about any "continuance" or other potential
delay.
We strongly request that the appeal be not just agendized but actually heard on 12/12/22.
To fail to do this would violate the specific regulation 9.56.070 (a) (3).

"The commission shall complete its action within thirty days from the date the matter is
first scheduled for public hearing, unless appellant and appellee mutually agree to
extend said thirty-day period.”

Here is the link to the regulation.

I previously stated clearly that I did not agree to extend the period.
Thanks for all your work on behalf of the people of the city.
Sincerely Pauline Seales

4.291

mailto:paulineseales120@gmail.com
mailto:tjones@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:parksandrec@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jrhall103@mac.com
mailto:lmarin@cruzio.com
mailto:magi@hippocampus.com
mailto:susanwcavalieri@gmail.com
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaCruz/html/SantaCruz09/SantaCruz0956.html


From: Katie Fortney
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Tree removal appeal
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 4:28:46 PM

Hello Parks and Recreation Commission,

I was disappointed to learn that opponents of the new downtown library plan are still trying to
circumvent the long term planning and consultative, democratic process that has worked
towards getting us a wonderful new library. Please deny this appeal about the non-native, not
particularly healthy trees - it's a smokescreen. Proper procedures have been followed, the
independent arborist and the city's Urban Forester have signed off, and there's no reasonable
plan for a project like this that keeps those trees.

With thanks,
Katie Fortney
City of Santa Cruz resident

4.292

mailto:katiefortney@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Mary
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Tree removal in Downtown Santa Cruz
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 12:10:21 PM

Members of Parks and Recreation Committee,
   It  seems popular now to say, "I'm old enough to remember....(fill in the event)."  Well, I am
old enough to remember the beautiful Carnegie Library downtown (someone knew where a
library should be located!), and to see the wrecking ball tear away at our beautiful courthouse,
and the chainsaw go after the majestic spruce tree which hosted a 100ft strand of
bougainvillea climbing through it at the bottom of Chestnut Hill.  These things are gone
forever, in the name of "progress."  Our city is poorer by their absence.
   On the bright side, we still have Lighthouse Field in it's natural splendor, rather than a
convention center.   We still have a few greenbelt areas in town, despite the gloomy outlook
for the Great Meadow on the U.C.S.C. campus.  
   Since it has been 6 years since we voted to remodel the downtown library, please take a
little more time to evaluate the benefits of the mature Magnolia trees on Lot 4.  Without
doubt a minor revision (and there have been a few) to the plans for a multi-purpose
library/garage/child-care center/affordable housing  project  could be made to accommodate
the survival of these trees. If for no other reason, think: Climate Change!
   Thank you for your consideration.
Mary McGranahan

4.293

mailto:mhaber4@hotmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Cory
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Tree Removal Permit - please deny the appeal
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 7:25:30 AM

Dear Parks and Recreation Commission,

Please deny the tree removal permit for the heritage trees at 113-119 Lincoln Street. As noted
in the arborist report, all 12 twelves display an array of adverse health conditions. The appeal
is simply an attempt to stop the Downtown Library and Affordable Housing project. The
results of Measure O were decisive - the voters of Santa Cruz clearly want the project to
proceed. Please deny the appeal.

Regards,
Cory M.

4.294

mailto:cory181818@fastmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: David Laughlin
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: TREE REMOVAL
Date: Sunday, December 11, 2022 11:48:32 AM

Dear Commissioners,   any and all public projects have a high standard to provide the best design possible; this
would include retaining as many of the heritage trees as possible.  And don’t just accept the project sponsor’s claims
that we can’t build the library unless you let us remove these trees.  If they can design a new fantastic library, then
they certainly can propose a design that saves these tree.  Thanks.

4.295

mailto:dlaughlin@ebold.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Pat Wright
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 5:17:27 AM

Please save our trees.

4.296

mailto:jprite@aol.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: mary odegaard
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 2:18:48 PM

To All on the Park and Recreation Commission,

    Accept the permit appeal for lot 4 and comply with the city,s Hetitage Tree Ordinance.  The
design for the proposed project on lot 4 should accommodate the 9 trees.  All 9 trees should
remain standing, providing the many benefits they offer us all.

      Sincerely,    Mary Odegaard

4.297

mailto:marytodegaard@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Karin Grobe
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: Trees on Lot 4
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 8:21:53 AM

I am in support of the appeal of tree removal on lot 4. 
The appeal is contesting the tentative tree removal permits issued by the 
City in October. The grounds for appeal are based on the Heritage Tree 
Ordinance which states:

"A heritage tree shall only be removed if: (c)(3) A construction project 
design cannot be altered to accommodate existing heritage trees."

 
There was no attempt to design the Downtown Library Mixed-Use 
project in a way that would preserve or accommodate any of the 9 
heritage trees on the project site.
 
Our heritage trees are crucial for the urban forest and provide innumerable 
social and environmental benefits, especially amid a period of threatening 
and intense climate change. 

Please give all consideration to the appeal. 

Karin Grobe

4.298

mailto:karingrobe@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Mitchell lachman
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: trees
Date: Friday, December 09, 2022 8:03:48 PM

save the Heritage Trees in the controversial parking, food sales on Wednesday- The  lot across from the Calvary
Church.
   Good bye, Mitchell lachman

4.299

mailto:shevat117@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Susie Kavanagh
To: Parks & Recreation Commission
Subject: We are all non-native and dying
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 4:49:21 PM

Please preserve Lot 4’s heritage trees.
I’ve heard the argument that they are “non-native and dying.”
Aren’t we all?
As non-native beings on this land, it’s our duty to take care of the land and the things living on it. In my book that
means not cutting down trees that add beauty, shade, fresh air, a place to gather and connect in community.
I never bought this idea that a large concrete structure was better than an open space with beautiful trees.
Save the trees and the trees will save us all.
Thanks
Susie Kavanagh

4.300

mailto:susan.h.kavanagh@gmail.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com


From: Keresha Durham
To: Leslie Keedy; Parks & Recreation Commission
Cc: Sandy Brown; Justin Cummings; City Council; Martine Watkins; Donna Meyers; Renee Golder; sjohnson-

kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com; Sonja Brunner
Subject: WITH PHOTOS- Our Heritage Tree Ordinance Speaks for Lot 4 Trees
Date: Saturday, December 10, 2022 9:03:04 AM

If you could not open the photos, I attached the 60 foot lovely Liquid Ambers and 3
elder Magnolias again. 
Preserve these trees
They have been here for several generations
Before most of us arrived.

On Fri, Dec 9, 2022 at 7:45 AM Keresha Durham
<the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com> wrote:

Esteemed Tree Decision-makers- City Council, Leslie and Tremain,

“It's not about what it is, it's about what it can become. 
I am the Lorax. I speak for the trees. I speak for the trees, for the trees have no
tongues.” 
― Dr. Seuss, The Lorax

 OUR AWESOME TREE ORDINANCE  
Please refer to and follow our beautifully-written The Heritage Tree
Ordinance (read it below) which calls to protect, design around and preserve our
urban trees, which include the Lot 4, three magnificent, 50 and 100 year old
Magnolias and two elder 60 foot, towering, colorful, lovely, Liquid Amber trees! 

(PHOTOS ATTACHED)  This ordinance advises against destruction since "the
removal of mature, heritage trees can take generations to restore." 

TREE CANOPY BENEFITS   
Santa Cruz City is unique in that we have fought to preserve our large tree
canopy, which is so beneficial in this era of human-caused climate crisis. 
Large, mature trees sequester the most carbon, clean air pollutants and prevent
pavement heat.  They provide needed habitat, spiritual renewal and joy!   Were you
lucky enough to have a large tree friend to climb as a kid?  I was!  

TREES NEED CAREGIVERS   
These trees are not getting the care they deserve. Being surrounded by cement and
soaking up oil from this parking lot weakens our beloved trees.  If recycled water is

4.301

mailto:the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com
mailto:lkeedy@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:prcommission@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrown@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:jcummings@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:citycouncil@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:mwatkins@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:dmeyers@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:rgolder@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sjohnson-kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sjohnson-kalihari@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:sbrunner@cityofsantacruz.com
mailto:the.earth.needs.small.families@gmail.com
https://www.goodreads.com/work/quotes/886002


used to water trees, this can cause large trees to die from too much salt content. They
need fertilizer, amended soil and clean water.  

MOVE THE TREES AS A LAST RESORT 
If the project designers uncreatively refuse to build around these trees, moving large
trees is possible, rather than destroying them.

REPLANT LARGER NATIVE TREES 
If you must create a replacement canopy for lost or moved trees, re-plant with large,
native-to-this-region trees, not the diminutive, decorative trees on Pacific Avenue. 
Think of the trees that are planted around city hall and on the former Pacific Garden
Mall, they were gorgeous, artful, tall trees providing so much joy!   

SANTA CRUZ'S  TREE ORDINANCE STATES: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18
 SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO THE PRESERVATION
OF HERITAGE TREES

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Cruz has actively encouraged the
development of a safe,
healthy and attractive environment in which its residents can live and
work; and

WHEREAS, in pursuit of these goals the City recognizes the substantial
environmental,
aesthetic and economic importance of its diverse urban forest consisting
of indigenous as well as
non-native trees; and

WHEREAS, this invaluable urban forest has been, and continues to be, an
asset to the
community inasmuch as it contributes to the environmental, aesthetic and
economic stability of
the community; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz recognize that the preservation of
this invaluable
resource is a heritage to the community at large; and

4.302



WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz therefore understand that the
preservation of their
urban forest existing on both public and private property is important to
them and their
community in order to:

(a) Protect, conserve and enhance the City’s attractiveness and its
aesthetic and scenic
environment;

(b) Develop and promote an awareness and understanding of the
importance of urban
forests to the citizens of Santa Cruz;

(c) Encourage and assure the continuation of quality community
development where
existing trees are incorporated into any development and accorded proper
maintenance and protection as a part of the City’s urban forest;

(d) Act as a buffer against urban traffic noise and wind damage, provide
protection from
wind erosion, and provide a privacy screen;

(e) Aid in the reduction of air pollution given the known capacity of trees
to ingest
carbon dioxide and produce oxygen thereby enhancing air quality;

(f) Assist in the absorption of rain waters thereby protecting against soil
erosion by
flooding; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Santa Cruz recognize the right of individuals
to develop,
maintain and enjoy private property to the fullest possible extent
consistent with the public
interest in preserving and maintaining the City’s urban forest in general.

4.303



 PURPOSE
This Chapter is enacted to recognize, protect, optimize and responsibly
manage the community
urban forest by establishing standards and policy consistent with private
rights to develop and
use property in a manner not prejudicial to the public interest while
maintaining the health and
safety of both the urban forest and citizenry. 

It is the purpose of this Chapter to promote and protect a thriving urban
forest and to facilitate proper management practices that include the
City’s ability to protect and preserve tree resources through regulating
their removal, and
 to effectively enforce tree preservation and zoning regulations, and to
promote an appreciation and understanding of trees and their intrinsic
value.

(a) Among the environmental assets that contribute to the livability and
attractiveness of the City
of Santa Cruz are its trees, both indigenous and introduced. Growing in
urban settings,
neighborhoods, business and commercial districts, in parks and in open
spaces, as single
specimens or in groves, trees contribute significant tangible benefits, both
psychological and
environmental, for the residents and visitors to our community alike.

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18
3
(b) Trees contribute beneficially to the urban environment and contribute
to our community’s
and the state’s climate action goals. 

Tree canopy coverage reduces heat buildup, noise and air pollutants;
improves air quality, reduces particulates, and provides oxygen. 

Trees also enhance the aesthetic environment and contribute visually to
the City by providing scenic views, scale,

4.304



color, silhouette and mass. 

Trees contribute to the protection of other natural resources by providing
erosion control, management of storm water and urban runoff, increased
infiltration and groundwater recharge, and improved water retention
capacity of soils. 

Trees provide screens and buffers to separate land uses and are often
landmarks or contribute to the significance of the
City’s history. 

Trees contribute to the economy of the City by increasing and sustaining
property
values, creating employment and training opportunities, and reducing
energy costs.

(c) The urban forest requires stewardship from both community members
and the City to
maximize its benefits, such as tree canopy coverage, shaded areas, and
enhanced habitat for
wildlife on private and public lands.  

(d) The City’s trees collectively constitute an urban forest and an
ecosystem. Removal and
planting of trees can create both negative impact, affecting the urban
forest and the
City as a whole.  The removal of mature trees may in some cases take
generations to fully restore.

(e) Appropriate management of non-native invasive species is encouraged
by the City of Santa
Cruz. Tree replacement requirements are designed to bolster native plant
and animal communities and habitats.

Clearly this ordinance would have you care
for and save these precious trees in lot 4 and

4.305



include them in the design of any project.
Sincerely,
K. Durham 
Environmental Activist
Resident of Santa Cruz since 1981
Educator since 1987
Proud Tree Hugger, Happy Tree Caregiver

-- 
Keresha  Durham~ educator, environmentalist
"care-sha"

     _≈o
 _-\<,_         
(_)/  (_) 
For a quality future for all living things, the earth needs small families

Balance population with finite natural resources
Reduce human-caused carbon

4.306


	Agenda
	2. - Commission and Department Updates.
	3. - Approval of Minutes for the October 10, 2022, regular meeting of the Parks & Recreation Commission.
	4. - Tree Removal Permit Appeal for 113, 119 Lincoln St: [CP22-0128; TR22-0201] (APNs 005-141-11, -21)  for removal of nine (9) Heritage Trees in conjunction with the Downtown Library project.

